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How do I change my election?
You may change your election at any time on-line through Investor ServiceDirect®or by notifying the Administrator.
To be effective with respect to a particular dividend, any such change must be received by the Administrator on or
before the record date for that dividend.  You may, of course, choose not to reinvest any of your dividends, in which
case the Administrator will remit any dividends to you by check or automatic deposit to a bank account you designate.

5.  When are dividends reinvested?
The Administrator will invest dividends in additional shares of PG&E Corporation common stock purchased on the
open market as promptly as practicable, on or after the payable date, normally within one week.  In the unlikely event
that, due to unusual market conditions, the Administrator is unable to invest the funds within 30 days, the
Administrator will remit the funds to you by check. No interest will be paid on funds held by the Administrator
pending investment.

The Administrator will invest dividends in additional shares of common stock purchased directly from PG&E
Corporation on the payment date or the first business day after the payment date.
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6.  How do I make an initial investment?
You can make an initial cash investment in the Plan for as little as $250 but not more than $100,000 in a year. Your
initial investment can be made:

Via on-line enrollment by:
•  Authorizing one deduction (minimum of $250) from your bank account;

•  Authorizing a minimum of five monthly $50.00 automatic deductions from your bank account; or
•  Opening your account on-line and sending your initial investment of $250 or more.

Using an Enrollment Form and:
•  Making one payment (minimum of $250) by check payable to PG&E Corporation/Mellon Bank or by authorizing a
deduction from your bank account; or

•  By authorizing a minimum of five monthly $50.00 automatic deductions from your bank account.

7.  How do I make additional investments?
If you already own PG&E Corporation common stock and are enrolled in the Plan and want to make additional
purchases, you can authorize individual automatic deductions from your bank account through Investor
ServiceDirect® or send a check to the Administrator for each purchase. If you choose to submit a check, please make
sure to include the contribution form from your Plan statement and mail it to the address specified on the statement.
Or, if you wish to make regular monthly purchases, you may authorize automatic monthly deductions from your bank
account. This feature enables you to make ongoing investments in an amount that is comfortable for you, without
having to write a check. Additional cash purchases are subject to a minimum purchase requirement of $50 per
investment and a maximum of $100,000 annually.

8.  What is the source of shares purchased by the Administrator under the Plan?
The Administrator will purchase the shares needed to meet participants’ investments under the Plan either directly
from PG&E Corporation or on the open market, as directed by us.

9.  When will shares be purchased?
Upon receipt of the funds, the Administrator will invest initial and additional cash investments, less applicable fees,
in whole and fractional shares as promptly as practicable, at least once every five business days. Neither PG&E
Corporation nor participants in the Plan will control the timing or pricing of shares purchased. Participants will bear
any risk associated with fluctuations in the market price of PG&E Corporation stock while investment funds are held
pending investment.  In the unlikely event that, due to unusual market conditions, the Administrator is unable to
invest the funds within 35 days, the Administrator will return the funds to you by check. No interest will be paid on
funds held by the Administrator pending investment.

10.  How will the price of shares purchased under the Plan be determined?
The price of PG&E Corporation shares purchased or sold under the Plan will be calculated differently depending
upon whether the transactions are executed directly with PG&E Corporation or on the open market.

•  The price of shares purchased from PG&E Corporation will be the average of the high and the low sale prices of
PG&E Corporation common stock as reported in the New York Stock Exchange Composite Transactions obtained
from Bloomberg, L.P. on the date of the purchase, or if the New York Stock Exchange is closed on that date, on the
next day that the New York Stock Exchange is open.

•  The price of shares purchased or sold on the open market will be the weighted average price per share of all shares
of common stock purchased or sold by the Administrator on the date of the purchase or sale.
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11.  Will I receive certificates for shares purchased?
No, because the Plan provides for share safekeeping. For your convenience, shares purchased under the Plan will be
maintained by the Administrator in your name in non-certificated (book-entry) form. You may, however, request a
stock certificate from the Administrator at any time.

12.  What is safekeeping?
Shares of PG&E Corporation common stock that you buy under the Plan will be maintained in your Plan account in
non-certificated form for safekeeping. Safekeeping protects your shares against loss, theft or accidental destruction
and also provides a convenient way for you to keep track of your shares. Only shares held in safekeeping may be sold
through the Plan.

If you own PG&E Corporation common stock in certificate form, you may deposit your certificates for those shares
with the Administrator, free of charge. The Administrator will provide mail loss insurance coverage for certificates
with a value not exceeding $100,000 in any one shipping package that is mailed to its address at 480 Washington
Boulevard, Jersey City, NJ 07310 by USPS registered mail or by traceable delivery service.

Note: Mail loss insurance covers only the replacement of shares of stock and in no way protects any loss resulting
from fluctuations in the value of such shares.

13.  Can I get certificates if I want them?
Yes.  You may request stock certificates for the whole shares in your book-entry account at any time. Simply contact
the Administrator with your request and they will mail you a stock certificate for the requested number of whole
shares. Certificates will be issued in the name(s) in which the account is registered, unless you instruct the
Administrator otherwise. If the certificate is to be issued in a name other than your Plan account registration, your
signature must be guaranteed by a bank or broker participating in the Medallion Guarantee Plan. Detailed transfer
instructions can be obtained by calling the Administrator at 1-800-719-9056.

14.  What happens if there is a stock split, stock dividend or other distribution with respect to PG&E Corporation
common stock?

Your account will be adjusted in book-entry form to reflect the distribution of any PG&E Corporation common stock
paid as a stock dividend, stock split or similar transaction.

15.  How can I transfer or give gifts of shares?
You may transfer or give gifts of PG&E Corporation common stock to anyone you choose by contacting the
Administrator and requesting a Gift/Transfer Form. After the transfer or gift purchase is completed, upon your
request, the Administrator will send you a non-negotiable gift announcement, which you can present to the recipient.
A notice indicating the transfer of PG&E Corporation common stock will also be forwarded to the recipient.

16.  How do I sell shares?
You can sell your Plan shares at any time by contacting the Administrator. Your sale request will be processed and
your shares will, subject to market conditions and other factors, generally be sold within 24 hours of receipt of your
request. Please note that the Administrator cannot and does not guarantee the actual sale date or price, nor can it stop
or cancel any outstanding sales or issuance requests. All requests are final. The Administrator will mail a check to
you (less applicable sales fees) on the settlement date, which is three business days after your shares have been sold.

Alternatively, you may choose to sell your shares through a stockbroker of your choice, in which case you would
have to request a certificate for the whole shares in your book-entry account from the Administrator for delivery to
your stockbroker or arrange to have your shares transferred electronically to your broker using the Direct Registration
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17.  What are the costs?
There is no fee for enrolling in the Plan. Participation is voluntary and you may discontinue your participation at any
time.  Applicable fees, if any, are as follows:

Reinvestment of all or a portion of quarterly dividends No Charge
Trading fee for reinvested dividends (if open market purchase) No Charge
Purchase of shares with initial investment $10.00
Purchase of shares with additional investments via check (per
investment)

$5.00

Purchase of additional shares via automatic debit of bank account
(per investment):
•  Individual
•  Recurring monthly debit

$2.00
$2.00

Trading fee for initial or additional purchases (if open market
purchase)

$.06 per share

Transfer shares as gift No charge
Certificate safekeeping No charge
Certificate issuance No charge
Sale of shares (full and partial) $15.00
Trading fee for sales $.10 per share
Current year duplicate statement No charge
Charge if check is returned for insufficient funds or if automatic
debit of bank account is rejected

$35.00 per
occurrence

Any charges imposed by your bank in connection with automatic withdrawals from your bank account are your
responsibility.

18.  What about taxes?
The Administrator will send a Form 1099-DIV to you and the Internal Revenue Service after each year-end reporting
all dividend income you received during the year on your PG&E Corporation common stock. If you sell shares
through the Plan, the Administrator will send a Form 1099-B to you and the Internal Revenue Service after year-end,
showing the total proceeds of the transactions. We recommend that you keep your transaction statements, which are
helpful for record keeping and tax purposes.

19.  Will I have the same rights as a shareholder?
As a Plan participant, you enjoy all the rights and privileges associated with stock ownership.  You will receive all
shareholder communications, including proxy material, and annual reports. You will be given the opportunity to vote
your Plan shares, and your shares will be voted in accordance with your direction. If you wish, you may vote your
shares in person at shareholder meetings.

20.  What provisions are made for non-U.S. residents?
Cash investments from non-U.S. residents must be in United States currency and will be invested in the same
manner as investments from other participants. Each participant is responsible for reviewing the applicable
laws of his or her country of residence prior to investing in PG&E Corporation common stock. All dividends
will be subject to withholding under the terms of any applicable tax treaty provisions.

21.  How will I keep track of my investments?
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The Administrator will send a transaction notice confirming the details of each transaction you make. When you
reinvest your dividends, you will receive a statement of your account. If you do not reinvest dividends and have no
additional purchase or sale transactions, you will receive an annual statement detailing the status of your holdings of
PG&E Corporation common stock in your Plan account.

You can also access your Plan account statement through Mellon Investor Services’ on-line service offering,
MLinkSM. Convenient and easy on-line access to your shareholder communications is only a click away. Besides
your Plan account statements, you may access your 1099 tax documents, notification of ACH transmissions,
transaction advices, annual meeting materials and selected correspondence on-line.
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22.  Enrollment is simple and quick. Log on to Investor ServiceDirect®to enjoy the many benefits MLinkSM offers,
including:

•  Faster delivery of important documents
•  Electronic notification of account activity via email

•  Secure access to your mailbox 24 hours a day, 7 days a week
•  Convenient management of your documents – view, print, download

Please visit www.melloninvestor.com/ISD for more information.

23.  How would I terminate my participation?
You may discontinue the reinvestment of your dividends at any time by giving notice to the Administrator. Notice
may be made by telephone, in writing or by changing your dividend election under the account management service
when you access your account over the Internet at www.melloninvestor.com. To be effective for a given dividend
payment, the Administrator must receive notice before the record date of that dividend. The Administrator will
continue to hold your shares unless you request a certificate for any full shares and a check for any fractional share.
You may also request the sale of all or part of any such shares or have the Administrator transfer your shares to your
brokerage account. See question number 16 for information on selling shares.

24.  What if I have questions about the Plan?
Questions regarding enrollment, purchase or sale of share requests, and other transactions or services offered by the
Plan should be directed to the Administrator through the following:

•  Internet
You can enroll in the Plan, obtain information, and perform certain transactions on your PG&E Corporation account
on-line via Investor ServiceDirect®.  New investors must establish a Personal Identification Number (PIN) when
setting up their account. For existing shareholders to gain access, use the 12-digit Investor Identification Number
which can be found in a bolded box on your check stub or statement, to establish your PIN. Upon initial access, you
will be required to complete an account activation process. This one-time authentication process will be used to
validate your identity in addition to your Investor Identification Number and self-assigned PIN.

To access Investor ServiceDirect® please visit the Mellon Investor Services website at: www.melloninvestor.com.

•  Telephone
Telephone shareholder customer service toll-free within the United States and Canada: 1-800-719-9056

Outside of the United States and Canada: 1-201-329-8660
For the hearing impaired (TDD): 1-800-231-5469

An automated voice response system is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Customer Service
Representatives are available from 9:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., Eastern Time, Monday through Friday (except holidays).

•  In Writing
You may also write to the Administrator at the following address:

Mellon Bank, N.A.
c/o Mellon Investor Services

P.O. Box 358035
Pittsburgh, PA 15252-8035
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Be sure to include your name, address, daytime phone number, Investor Identification Number and a reference to
PG&E Corporation on all correspondence.
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Securities held by the Administrator in your Plan account are not subject to protection under the Securities Investor
Protection Act of 1970. The Administrator may use, and commissions may be paid to, a broker-dealer which is
affiliated with the Administrator.  Investors must make independent investment decisions based upon their own
judgment and research.

25.  What are the responsibilities of PG&E Corporation and the Administrator?
PG&E Corporation cannot assure you a profit or protect you against a loss on the shares you purchase under the
Plan.  Neither PG&E Corporation nor the Administrator will be liable for any act done in good faith, or as required
by applicable laws, or for any good faith omission to act. This includes, without limitation, any claims of liability:

•  for the prices at which stock purchases or sales are made as reflected in your Plan account, or the dates of the
purchases or sales of your Plan shares; or

•  for any fluctuation in the market value of your PG&E Corporation shares after they are purchased or sold; or
•  for failure to terminate your account upon your death prior to receiving written notice of such death.

The payment of dividends is at the discretion of PG&E Corporation’s Board of Directors. The Board may change the
amount and timing of dividends at any time without notice.

26.  Can PG&E Corporation make changes to the Plan?
PG&E Corporation reserves the right to suspend, modify or terminate the Plan or your interest in the Plan at any
time. You will receive notice of any such suspension, modification or termination. PG&E Corporation also reserves
the right to change any administrative procedures of the Plan. If the Plan or your interest in the Plan is terminated, the
Administrator will continue to hold your shares of PG&E Corporation stock in book-entry form unless you request
that the Administrator issue a stock certificate or you ask your broker to request that the Administrator transfer the
shares to your brokerage account.

27.  What law governs the Plan?

The terms and conditions of the Plan and its operation shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.

28.  How is the Plan to be interpreted?

Any question of interpretation arising under the Plan will be determined by us, and any such determination will be
final.  Any action taken by us or the Administrator to effectuate the Plan in the good faith exercise of our or their
respective judgment will be binding on all participants.

Use of Proceeds

If we issue shares of PG&E Corporation common stock to purchasers under the Plan, we will use the proceeds from
the sale of such shares for general corporate purposes. We may temporarily invest funds that are not immediately
needed for these purposes in marketable securities. If shares are purchased by the Administrator in the open market,
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we will not receive any proceeds.

Legal Matters

Gary P. Encinas, Senior Director and Counsel, Corporate and Commercial Group of the PG&E Corporation Law
Department will pass upon the validity of the common stock issued by us under the Plan.  Mr. Encinas, together with
other members of the group, beneficially own common stock of PG&E Corporation.

Experts

The consolidated financial statements, the related financial statement schedules, and management's report on the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting incorporated in this prospectus by reference from PG&E
Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 have been audited by Deloitte &
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Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their reports, which are incorporated
herein by reference (which reports (1) express an unqualified opinion on the financial statements and financial
statement schedules and include explanatory paragraphs referring to PG&E Corporation’s adoption in 2006 of new
accounting standards for defined benefit pensions and other postretirement plans and share-based payments, PG&E
Corporation’s adoption in December 2005 of a new interpretation of accounting standards for asset retirement
obligations, and PG&E Corporation’s adoption in 2004 of a change in the method of computing earnings per share,
(2) express an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment regarding effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, and (3) express an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting), and have been so incorporated by reference in reliance upon the reports of such firm given upon their
authority as experts in accounting and auditing.
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PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 14.  Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution.

The following table sets forth all expenses payable by us in connection with the sale of the securities being
registered.  All the amounts shown are estimates except for the SEC registration fee.

SEC registration fee $  6,904.43
NYSE listing fees $  5,000.00
Accounting fees and expenses $  5,000.00
Printing and engraving $  3,200.00
Total $20,104.43

Item 15.  Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

We are a California corporation.  Section 317 of the California Corporations Code provides for indemnification of a
corporation’s directors and officers under certain circumstances.  Our articles of incorporation authorize us to provide
indemnification of any person who is or was our director, officer, employee or other agent, or is or was serving at our
request as a director, officer, employee or agent of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture,
trust or other enterprise, or was a director, officer, employee or agent of a foreign or domestic corporation which was a
predecessor corporation of us or of another enterprise at the request of the predecessor corporation through our
bylaws, resolutions of our board of directors, agreements with agents, vote of shareholders or disinterested directors,
or otherwise, in excess of the indemnification otherwise permitted by Section 317 of the California Corporations
Code, subject only to the applicable limits set forth in Section 204 of the California Corporations Code.  Our articles
of incorporation also eliminate the liability of our directors to the fullest extent permissible by California law.  Our
board of directors has adopted a resolution regarding our policy of indemnification and we maintain insurance which
insures our directors and officers against certain liabilities.

Item 16.  Exhibits.

Exhibit
Number Description

4.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2003, File No. 1-12609).

4.2 Bylaws of PG&E Corporation amended as of April 18, 2007 (incorporated by
reference from PG&E Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 20,
2007, Exhibit 99.1)

5 Opinion of Gary P. Encinas

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.

23.2 Consent of Gary P. Encinas  (included in Exhibit 5)
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24.1 Powers of Attorney

24.2 Resolution of the Board of Directors authorizing the execution of the Registration
Statement.

        II-1     
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ITEM 17. Undertakings

(a) The undersigned registrant undertakes:

(1)           To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment of this
registration statement:

(i)           To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;

(ii)           To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement
(or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental
change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or
decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was
registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in
the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume
and price represent no more than a 20% change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the “Calculation
of Registration Fee” table in the effective registration statement; and

(iii)           To include any material information relating to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the
registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement;

Provided, however, that paragraphs (a)(1)(i), (a)(1)(ii) and (a)(1)(iii) do not apply if the registration statement is on

Form S-3 or Form F-3, and the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs
is contained in reports filed with or furnished to the Commission by the registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in this registration statement, or is
contained in a form of prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) that is part of this registration statement.

(2)           That, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective
amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the
offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(3)           To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered
which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.

(4)           That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act to any purchaser:

(i)           If the registrant is relying on Rule 430B:

(A)           Each prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of this
registration statement as of the date the filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in this registration
statement; and

(B)           Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2), (b)(5), or (b)(7) as part of this registration
statement in reliance on Rule 430B relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(i), (vii), or (x) for the
purpose of providing the information required by section 10(a) of the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of and
included in this registration statement as of the earlier of the date such form of prospectus is first used after
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effectiveness or the date of the first contract of sale of securities in the offering described in the prospectus.  As
provided in Rule 430B, for liability purposes of the issuer and any person that is at that date an underwriter, such date
shall be deemed to be a new effective date of this registration statement relating to the securities in this registration
statement to which that prospectus relates, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the
initial bona fide offering thereof.  Provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus
that is part of this registration statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into
this registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of
contract of sale prior to such effective date, supersede or modify any statement that was made in this registration
statement or prospectus that was part of this registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to
such effective date.

        II-2     
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(5)           That, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act to any purchaser in
the initial distribution of the securities:

The undersigned registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned registrant pursuant to
this registration statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the
securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the undersigned
registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:

(i)           Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relating to the offering required to be
filed pursuant to Rule 424;

(ii)           Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant or
used or referred to by the undersigned registrant;

(iii)           The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information
about the undersigned registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant; and

(iv)           Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the
purchaser.

(b)           The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the
Securities Act, each filing of the registrant’s annual report pursuant to section 13(a) or section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan’s annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the
Exchange Act) that is incorporated by reference in the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration
statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time will be deemed to be
the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(c)           The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to deliver or cause to be delivered with the prospectus, to each
person to whom the prospectus is sent or given, the latest annual report to security holders that is incorporated by
reference in the prospectus and furnished pursuant to and meeting the requirements of Rule 14a-3 or Rule 14c-3 under
the Exchange Act; and, where interim financial information required to be presented by Article 3 of Regulation S-X
are not set forth in the prospectus, to deliver, or cause to be delivered to each person to whom the prospectus is sent or
given, the latest quarterly report that is specifically incorporated by reference in the prospectus to provide such interim
financial information.

(d)           Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to
directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the provisions described under Item 15 above,
or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such
indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a
claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid
by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding)
is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the
registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a
court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed
in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the Registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to
believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of San Francisco, State of California,
on
July 11, 2007.

PG&E CORPORATION

By   PETER A. DARBEE*
        Peter A. Darbee
        Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by the
following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Title Date

PETER A. DARBEE*
Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive
Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

July 11, 2007Peter A. Darbee

CHRISTOPHER P. JOHNS*
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)

July 11, 2007Christopher P. Johns

G. ROBERT POWELL* July 11, 2007
G. Robert Powell  Vice President and Controller (Principal Accounting Officer)

DAVID R. ANDREWS* July 11, 2007
David R. Andrews  Director

LESLIE S. BILLER* July 11, 2007
Leslie S. Biller Director

David A. Coulter Director

C. LEE COX* July 11, 2007
C. Lee Cox  Director

MARYELLEN C HERRINGER* July 11, 2007
Maryellen C. Herringer  Director

RICHARD A. MESERVE* July 11, 2007
Richard A. Meserve  Director
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MARY S. METZ* Director
July 11,
2007

Mary S. Metz

BARBARA L. RAMBO* Director
July 11,
2007

Barbara L. Rambo

BARRY LAWSON
WILLIAMS* Director

July 11,
2007

Barry Lawson Williams

*By:  GARY P. ENCINAS
July 11,
2007

Gary P. Encinas
Attorney-in-fact
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit
Number Description

4.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2003, File No. 1-12609).

4.2 Bylaws of PG&E Corporation amended as of April 18, 2007 (incorporated by
reference from PG&E Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 20,
2007, Exhibit 99.1)

5 Opinion of Gary P. Encinas

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.

23.2 Consent of Gary P. Encinas  (included in Exhibit 5)

24.1 Powers of Attorney

24.2 Resolution of the Board of Directors authorizing the execution of the Registration
Statement.
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 valign="bottom">                                    
Total combined
  $ 82,609     $ 72,349     $ 18,986     $ 85,910                                    
Year Ended December 31, 2005

East Tennessee
  $ 80,003     $ 28,722     $ 23,640     $ 59,316  
Other
    �       44,568       �       �                                    
Total
    80,003       73,290       23,640       59,316  
Interest expense
    �       8,506       �       �                                    
Total combined
  $ 80,003     $ 64,784     $ 23,640     $ 59,316                                    
Year Ended December 31, 2004

East Tennessee
  $ 81,716     $ 36,464     $ 21,492     $ 34,269  
Other
    �       34,147       �       �                                    
Total
    81,716       70,611       21,492       34,269  
Interest expense
    �       8,258       �       �                                    
Total combined
  $ 81,716     $ 62,353     $ 21,492     $ 34,269                                    

Segment Assets

December 31,
2006 2005

(In thousands)

East Tennessee $ 841,789 $ 780,432
Other 442,793 422,340

Total combined $ 1,284,582 $ 1,202,772
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5.  Regulatory Matters

Regulatory Assets.  Pursuant to the requirements of SFAS No. 71, the Company records assets and liabilities that
result from the regulated ratemaking process that would not be recorded under GAAP for non-regulated entities. For
the years presented, the Company�s entities have no regulatory liabilities.

December 31, Recovery/Refund
2006 2005 Period Ends

(In thousands)

Regulatory Assets(1)
Regulatory asset related to income taxes(2) $ 8,481 $ 7,711 (3) 
Vacation accrual (non-current)(2) 1,989 812 2007

Total Regulatory Assets $ 10,470 $ 8,523

All regulatory assets are excluded from rate base unless otherwise noted.

(1) Included in Other Regulatory Assets and Deferred Debits on the Combined Balance Sheets.

(2) These amounts are expected to be included in future rate filings.

(3) Recovery/refund period currently unknown.

East Tennessee.  On November 1, 2005, East Tennessee placed into effect new rates approved by FERC as a result of
a rate settlement with customers. The settlement agreement includes a five-year rate moratorium, a reduction of
depreciation rates, and certain operational changes. On December 14, 2006, East Tennessee filed to establish system
wide segmentation on part of its system, subject to FERC approval. This filing was generally supported by the
customers, and is proposed to be implemented effective November 1, 2007.

Gulfstream.  In September 2005, FERC approved Gulfstream�s Cost and Revenue study that was required to be filed
as a condition in its Phase I and Phase II expansion projects. Gulfstream is not anticipated to have further filing
requirements until three years after its Phase III expansion facilities are placed into service, currently expected in
2008.

Management believes that the effect of these matters will have no material adverse effect on the Company�s future
combined results of operations, cash flows or financial position.
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6.  Income Taxes

Income Tax Expense

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Current income taxes
Federal $ (1,622) $ 3,240 $ (22,210)(1)
State (450) 225 247

Total current income taxes (2,072) 3,465 (21,963)

Deferred income taxes
Federal 11,489 3,068 31,094(1)
State 1,324 1,301 71

Total deferred income taxes 12,813 4,369 31,165

Total income tax expense presented in Combined Statements of
Operations $ 10,741 $ 7,834 $ 9,202

(1) Current and deferred federal income taxes in 2004 were impacted by an organizational restructuring undertaken
by the Company�s parent, Spectra Energy.

Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense at the U.S. Federal Statutory Income Tax Rate to Actual Tax Expense
(Statutory Rate Reconciliation)

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Income tax expense, computed at the statutory rate of 35% $ 25,322 $ 22,674 $ 21,824
State income tax, net of federal income tax effect 568 992 206
Entities not subject to income tax (14,387) (16,200) (12,423)
Other items, net (763) 368 (405)

Total income tax expense from operations $ 10,741 $ 7,834 $ 9,202

Effective tax rate 14.8% 12.1% 14.8%
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Net Deferred Income Tax Liability Components

December 31,
2006 2005

Deferred credits and other liabilities $ 3,365 $ 6,819
Valuation allowance � �

Net deferred income tax assets 3,365 6,819

Accelerated depreciation rates (112,041) (100,253)
State deferred income tax, net of federal tax effect (4,335) (3,377)

Total deferred income tax liabilities (116,376) (103,630)

Total net deferred income tax liabilities $ (113,011) $ (96,811)
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7.  Interest Rate, Credit Risk and Financial Instruments

Credit Risk.  The Company�s principal customers for natural gas transportation activities are industrial end-users,
marketers, exploration and production companies, local distribution companies and utilities located throughout the
southern and southeastern U.S. The Company has concentrations of receivables from natural gas and electric utilities
and their affiliates, as well as industrial customers, exploration and production companies and marketers. These
concentrations of customers may affect the Company�s overall credit risk in that risk factors can negatively impact the
credit quality of the entire sector. Where exposed to credit risk, the Company analyzes the counterparties� financial
condition prior to entering into an agreement, establishes credit limits and monitors the appropriateness of those limits
on an ongoing basis.

The Company also obtains cash or letters of credit from customers to provide credit support outside of collateral
agreements, where appropriate, based on its financial analysis of the customer and the regulatory or contractual terms
and conditions applicable to each transaction.

Interest Rate.  Changes in interest rates expose the Company to risk as a result of its issuance of fixed-rate debt. The
Company monitors market debt rates to identify the need to mitigate this risk, including consideration of hedging
activities, if needed. The Company has not previously entered into hedging contracts to mitigate this risk, except for
interest rate swaps entered into by Gulfstream in anticipation of their $850 million in project financing, issued October
2005.

Financial Instruments.  The fair value of financial instruments is summarized in the following table. Judgment is
required in interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates determined as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005 are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could have realized in
current markets.

December 31,
Approximate Approximate

Book
Value Fair Value

Book
Value Fair Value

2006 2005
(In thousands)

Long-term debt(1) $ 150,000 $ 150,065 $ 150,000 $ 152,924

(1) There are no current maturities.

The fair value of accounts receivable and accounts payable are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because of the short-term nature of these instruments.

8.  Deferred Revenues
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East Tennessee has a long-term contract with a customer with billed amounts that decline annually over the term of
the contract. The revenues billed over the 20 year term of the contract range from $9.9 million to $8.7 million. The
annual amount of revenue recognized is $9.4 million with the difference deferred in Deferred Revenues, a long-term
Other Liability account. The long-term liability for this contract is $2.3 million as of December 31, 2006 and
$1.8 million as of December 31, 2005.

9.  Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates and Related Transactions

Investments in affiliates that are not controlled by the Company, but over which it has significant influence, are
accounted for using the equity method. As of December 31, 2006, the carrying amount of investments represented a
50% interest in Market Hub and a 24.5% interest in Gulfstream. The Company�s share of net earnings from these
unconsolidated affiliates is reflected in the Combined Statements of Operations as Equity in Earnings of
Unconsolidated Affiliates.

The Company received distributions of $20,335 thousand in 2006 from Gulfstream. These distributions are included
in Distributions from Equity Investments within Cash Flows from Operating Activities on the accompanying
Combined Statements of Cash Flows. In 2005, the Company received distributions of
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)
$181,788 thousand from Gulfstream. Of these distributions, $29,645 thousand are included in Distributions from
Equity Investments within Cash Flows from Operating Activities and $152,143 thousand, characterized as a financing
activity by Gulfstream, are included in Distributions from Equity Investments within Cash Flows from Investing
Activities on the accompanying Combined Statements of Cash Flows. The Company received distributions of $13,720
thousand from Gulfstream in 2004. These distributions are included in Distributions from Equity Investments within
Cash Flows from Operating Activities on the accompanying Combined Statements of Cash Flows.

In October 2005, Gulfstream issued $500,000 thousand aggregate principal amount of 5.56% Senior Notes due 2015
and $350,000 thousand aggregate principal amount of 6.19% Senior Notes due 2025. The proceeds were used by
Gulfstream to pay off a construction loan and the balance of the proceeds, net of transaction costs, of approximately
$621,000 thousand was distributed to the partners based upon their ownership percentage, which resulted in the
distribution of $152,143 thousand to the Company that is classified within Cash Flows from Investing Activities in
2005 noted above.

Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliates

December 31,
2006 2005
(In thousands)

Gulfstream $ 186,354 $ 190,243
Market Hub 256,439 232,097

Total $ 442,793 $ 422,340

Equity in Earning of Unconsolidated Affiliates

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Gulfstream $ 16,763 $ 16,611 $ 11,081
Market Hub 24,342 29,676 24,414

Total $ 41,105 $ 46,287 $ 35,495

Summarized Combined Financial Information of Unconsolidated Affiliates
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December 31,
2006 2005

(In thousands)

Balance Sheets
Current assets $ 104,919 $ 190,901
Non-current assets 2,228,787 2,106,631
Current liabilities 179,925 150,562
Non-current liabilities 855,734 881,490

Net assets $ 1,298,047 $ 1,265,480
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Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(In thousands)

Statement of Operations
Operating revenues $ 259,061 $ 223,033 $ 159,458
Operating expenses 101,527 73,310 61,225
Net income 117,106 127,153 94,057

10.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Estimated December 31,
Useful Life 2006 2005

(In thousands)

Land N/A $ 1,054 $ 1,054
Natural gas transmission 50 years 757,345 651,531
Equipment 3-10 years 3,392 3,220
Vehicles 3-5 years 2,415 2,453
Construction in process N/A 12,265 25,823
Other 5-33 years 23,582 22,588

Total property, plant and equipment 800,053 706,669
Total accumulated depreciation (108,233) (90,353)

Total net property, plant and equipment $ 691,820 $ 616,316

Capitalized interest, which includes the interest expense component of AFUDC, amounted to $3,362 thousand for
2006, $1,421 thousand for 2005 and $2,350 thousand for 2004.

In 2006, the Company capitalized $5.7 million of previously expensed project development costs based on
managements� determination that such costs are properly included in regulated rates. The Company also capitalized in
2005 a non-cash accrual of $7.5 million for acquisition of right of way for the Patriot Expansion project. In 2004, the
Company capitalized $24.0 million representing a capital accrual for the resolution of certain construction-related
litigation. (See discussion at Note 12).

East Tennessee.  In March 2006, Duke Energy Gas Services (DEGS), an affiliated company, contributed to East
Tennessee approximately 34 miles of 10-inch diameter pipeline running from Lee County, Virginia to an
interconnection with the Company�s Hawkins County Lateral in Rogersville, Tennessee at net book value of
approximately $8,506 thousand by an equity transfer between the affiliated companies. Associated deferred taxes of
$2,958 thousand related to such assets were transferred from the affiliate. These assets were part of DEGS� Stone
Mountain System and the remaining Stone Mountain System assets were sold by DEGS� to an unrelated third party.
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On February 8, 2006, FERC issued a certificate of public convenience and necessity authorizing East Tennessee to
construct and operate the Jewell Ridge Lateral, a 32-mile, 20-inch diameter pipeline in Tazewell and Smyth Counties,
Virginia. On March 16, 2006, FERC issued a letter order approving the East Tennessee�s request to install tee and side
tap valve assemblies to its existing pipelines as part of the Jewell Ridge Lateral project. The lateral was constructed
during the summer of 2006 and was placed into service in October 2006. The amounts capitalized to Property, Plant
and Equipment included $60,150 thousand for the Jewell Ridge Lateral natural gas pipeline project in Southwest
Virginia.
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11.  Debt

Long-term Debt.  Long-term debt consists of notes payable of $150 million at 5.71% outstanding as of December 31,
2006 and 2005 due in one installment in 2012. Interest payments of $4,283 thousand are paid on June and December
each year through 2012.

Restrictive Debt Covenants.  The Company�s debt agreement contains financial covenants which limit the amount of
debt that can be outstanding as a percentage of the total capital. Failure to maintain the covenants could require the
Company to immediately pay down the outstanding balance. The covenant calculations are performed by the
Company on a quarterly basis to establish that they are in compliance with the covenant. As of December 31, 2006,
the Company was in compliance with those covenants. In addition, the debt agreement may allow for acceleration of
payments or termination of the agreements due to nonpayment, or to the acceleration of other significant indebtedness
of the borrower or some of its subsidiaries, if any. The debt agreement does not contain material adverse change
clauses.

The financial covenants limiting the amount of debt outstanding as a percent of total capital effectively restrict the use
of net assets. The sum of the restricted net assets at East Tennessee of $235 million and our proportionate
undistributed earnings of Market Hub of $113 million, amounts to 35% of the Company�s combined net assets as of
December 31, 2006. Gulfstream had no undistributed earnings as of December 31, 2006. As such there may be a
significant restriction on the ability of East Tennessee, Market Hub and Gulfstream to transfer funds to Spectra
Energy Partners, LP by means of intercompany loans, advances or cash dividends.

Change in Control Covenant.  East Tennessee�s $150 million notes contain a provision which requires the Company
to offer to redeem the notes at par upon the occurrence of a change in control event. On April 12, 2007, notices were
sent to noteholders to communicate this redemption offer. No noteholders accepted the redemption offer.

12.  Commitments and Contingencies

General Insurance.  The Company�s operations have carried, through Duke Energy�s captive insurance company,
insurance and reinsurance coverages consistent with companies engaged in similar commercial operations with similar
type properties. Following the separation of Spectra Energy from Duke Energy, Spectra Energy is providing
substantially similar insurance and reinsurance coverages. The Company�s insurance coverage includes (1) commercial
general public liability insurance for liabilities arising to third parties for bodily injury and property damage resulting
from the Company�s operations; (2) workers� compensation liability coverage to required statutory limits;
(3) automobile liability insurance for all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles covering liabilities to third parties for
bodily injury and property damage; (4) financial services insurance policies in support of the indemnification
provisions of the Company�s by-law and, and (5) property insurance covering the replacement value of all real and
personal property damage, including damages arising from machinery breakdowns, earthquake, flood damage and
business interruption/extra expense. All coverages are subject to certain deductibles, terms and conditions common for
companies with similar types of operations.

The Company maintains excess liability insurance coverage above the established primary limits for commercial
general liability and automobile liability insurance. Limits, terms, conditions and deductibles are comparable to those
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carried by other energy companies of similar size. The cost of the Parent�s general insurance coverages and applicable
allocations to the Company continued to fluctuate over the past year reflecting the changing conditions of the
insurance markets.

Environmental.  The Company is subject to federal, state and local regulations regarding air and water quality,
hazardous and solid waste disposal and other environmental matters. Management believes there are no matters that
will have a material adverse effect on the Company�s results of operations, cash flows, or financial position.
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Litigation and Legal Proceedings.  The Company is involved in legal, tax and regulatory proceedings in various
forums regarding performance, contracts and other matters arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which
involve substantial amounts. Management believes that the final disposition of these proceedings will have no
material adverse effect on the Company�s results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

The Company�s prime contractor for certain capital expansion projects claimed in a federal court lawsuit and in
arbitration that it was underpaid for services provided on the projects. Numerous subcontractors also filed liens or
lawsuits against the Contractor and in some cases the Company. In January 2005, all disputes were resolved and
litigation between the parties was dismissed. Third party claims were also resolved in 2005 in consideration of a
$24,500 thousand settlement between the Company and the Contractor.

The Company�s operating entities are involved in other legal, tax and regulatory proceedings in various forms
regarding performance, contracts, royalty disputes, mismeasurement and mispayment claims (some of which are
brought as class actions) and other matters arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which involve
substantial amounts. Management believes that the final disposition of these proceedings will have no material
adverse effect on the Company�s combined results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

Other Commitments and Contingencies.  The Company enters into contracts that require payment of cash at specified
periods, based on stated minimum quantities and prices. The following table summarizes the Company�s contractual
cash obligations for each of the periods presented. The table below excludes all amounts classified as current
liabilities on the Combined Balance Sheets:

Less than
1 More Than 5

Year 2-3 Years 4-5 Years Years

Total (2007)
(2008 &
2009)

(2010 &
2011)

(Beyond
2011)

(in thousands)

Long-term debt(1) $ 150,000 $ � $ � $ � $ 150,000
Interest on debt obligations(2) 51,390 8,565 17,130 17,130 8,565
Material/capital purchases 894 894 � �
Right of way payments(3) 5,017 5,017

Total contractual cash obligations $ 207,301 $ 14,476 $ 17,130 $ 17,130 $ 158,565

(1) Represents future principal repayments of notes payable.

(2) Represents interest expense on notes payable, based on the stated interest rate on the notes of 5.71%.

(3) Represents capital commitments for various right of way matters.
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Leases.  The Company leases assets in several areas of operations. Rental expense for these leases were
$854 thousand and $664 thousand in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Future minimum rental payments under operating leases for the years 2007 through 2008 are de minimus. There are
no future minimum lease payments beyond 2008.
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13. Stock-Based Compensation

Duke Energy granted stock options, phantom stock and performance awards to designated employees. Spectra Energy
expects to make similar grants to designated employees. The costs of these awards are identified by employee and are
an expense of the subsidiary for which the employee works. The Company had employees participating in the awards.
Effective January 1, 2006, Duke Energy and the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R, �Share-Based Payments,� which
requires that compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions be recognized in the financial statements.
That cost is measured based on the fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued.

The Company recorded $338 thousand of expense for stock options, phantom stock and performance awards for 2006.
Prior to 2006, no Company employees received any of the Duke Energy grants of such awards.

14. Employee Benefit Plans

Duke Energy U.S. Retirement Plan.  Historically, the Company participated in Duke Energy�s non-contributory
defined benefit retirement plan and with the separation of Spectra Energy from Duke Energy, now participates in
Spectra Energy�s non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan. The plan covers most U.S. employees using a cash
balance formula. Under a cash balance formula, a plan participant accumulates a retirement benefit consisting of pay
credits that are based upon a percentage (which may vary with age and years of service) of current eligible earnings
and current interest credits.

Duke Energy�s policy is to fund amounts on an actuarial basis to provide assets sufficient to meet benefits to be paid to
plan participants. Duke Energy did not make any contributions to its defined benefit retirement plan in 2006 or 2005.
Duke Energy made voluntary contributions of $250 million in 2004. Duke Energy does not anticipate making a
contribution to the plan in 2007.

Actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the average remaining service period of the active employees. The
average remaining service period of the active employees covered by the retirement plan is 11 years. Duke Energy
determines the market-related value of plan assets using a calculated value that recognizes changes in fair value of the
plan assets over five years. Duke Energy uses a September 30 measurement date for its defined benefit retirement
plan.

The fair value of Duke Energy�s plan assets was $4,324 million as of September 30, 2006 and $2,948 million as of
September 30, 2005. The projected benefit obligation was $4,823 million as of September 30, 2006 and
$2,853 million as of September 30, 2005. The accumulated benefit obligation was $4,408 million at September 30,
2006 and $2,753 million at September 30, 2005.

The Company�s net periodic pension benefit expense for the U.S. plan, as allocated by Duke Energy, was
$232.5 thousand for 2006, $159.1 thousand for 2005, and $148.6 thousand in 2004. These allocations were based on
expenses; net of asset returns, as actuarially determined for the employees associated with the Company�s operating
units.

Duke Energy also sponsors, and the Company participates in, an employee savings plan that covers substantially all
U.S. employees. Duke Energy contributes a matching contribution equal to 100% of before-tax employee
contributions, of up to 6% of eligible pay per period. Duke Energy expensed employer matching contributions of
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$75 million in 2006, $61 million in 2005 and $57 million in 2004. The Company�s net periodic pension benefit
expense for the U.S. plan, as allocated by Duke Energy, was $374.9 thousand for 2006, $265.8 thousand for 2005, and
$262.4 thousand in 2004.

Duke Energy U.S. Other Post-Retirement Benefits.  The Company participates in Duke Energy�s, health care and life
insurance benefit plans that provide such benefits for retired employees on a contributory and non-contributory basis.
Employees are eligible for these benefits if they have met age and service requirements at retirement, as defined in the
plans.
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These benefit costs are accrued over an employee�s active service period to the date of full benefits eligibility. The net
unrecognized transition obligation is amortized over approximately 20 years. Actuarial gains and losses are amortized
over the average remaining service period of the active employees. The average remaining service period of the active
employees covered by the plan is 13 years. The fair value of Duke Energy�s plan assets was $237 million as of
September 30, 2006 and $242 million as of September 30, 2005. The accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation
was $1,264 million as of December 31, 2006, and $791 million as of December 31, 2005. Duke Energy uses a
September 30 measurement date for its other post-retirement benefit plan.

The Company�s net periodic post-retirement benefit cost, as allocated by Duke Energy, was $665.0 thousand,
$511.6 thousand, and $560.8 thousand for December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.
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COMBINED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2007 2006
(In thousands)

Operating Revenues:
Transportation of natural gas $ 24,950 $ 20,938
Transportation of natural gas � affiliates � 54
Storage of natural gas and other 1,483 1,229

Total operating revenues 26,433 22,221

Operating Expenses:
Operations, maintenance and other 3,587 6,420
Operations, maintenance and other � affiliates 3,318 4,066
Depreciation and amortization 4,969 4,754
Property and other taxes (127) 1,607

Total operating expenses 11,747 16,847

Operating Income 14,686 5,374

Other Income and Expenses:
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 11,385 7,059
Other income, net 12 335

Total other income and expenses 11,397 7,394

Interest Income 9 4
Interest Expense 2,156 2,067

Earnings before Income Taxes 23,936 10,705

Income Tax Expense 4,733 1,212

Net Income $ 19,203 $ 9,493
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COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
(Unaudited)

March 31,
2007

(In thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Accounts receivable
Trade, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $232 thousand, and $241 thousand, respectively $ 9,921
Natural gas imbalance receivables 1,800
Natural gas imbalance receivables � affiliates 8,053
Inventory 1,477
Taxes receivable � affiliates 1,179
Other 1,620

Total current assets 24,050

Investments and Other Assets:
Investment in unconsolidated affiliates 450,068
Goodwill 118,293

Total investments and other assets 568,361

Property, Plant and Equipment
Cost 799,540
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (110,751)

Net property, plant and equipment 688,789

Regulatory Assets and Deferred Debits 10,766

Total Assets $ 1,291,966

LIABILITIES AND NET PARENT EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable trade $ 2,753
Accounts payable trade � affiliates �
Taxes accrued 2,024
Taxes accrued � affiliates 6,465
Interest accrued 2,498
Accrued liabilities 8,242
Natural gas imbalance payables 3,238
Natural gas imbalance payables � affiliates 3,421
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Other 3,003

Total current liabilities 31,644

Long-term debt 150,000

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Deferred income taxes 114,230
Other 8,390

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 122,620

Commitments and Contingencies
Parent Net Equity
Parent net investment 983,989
Accumulated other comprehensive income 3,713

Total parent net equity 987,702

Total Liabilities and Parent Net Equity $ 1,291,966
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SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS PREDECESSOR

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2007 2006
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income $ 19,203 $ 9,493
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 4,969 4,754
Equity earnings of unconsolidated affiliates (11,385) (7,059)
Allowance for funds used during construction � equity (12) (331)
Distributions received from equity investments 4,029 5,635
Deferred income taxes 1,285 5,034
(Increase) decrease in
Accounts receivable (1,714) (1,734)
Other current assets 439 (313)
Other assets 59 87
Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable 516 (1,907)
Accrued taxes 1,733 (3,668)
Other current liabilities 3,310 (4,500)
Other liabilities 46 11,608

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 22,478 $ 17,099

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures (1,931) (10,841)
Net cash used in investing activities $ (1,931) $ (10,841)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Member�s dividend (East Tennessee Natural Gas) (12,500) �
Transfers to Parent, net (8,047) (6,258)

Net cash used in financing activities $ (20,547) $ (6,258)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents $ � $ �
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period � �

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period $ � $ �

F-39

Edgar Filing: OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORP - Form 4

Table of Contents 46



Table of Contents

SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS PREDECESSOR

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF PARENT NET EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Unaudited)

Accumulated
Other

Parent Net Comprehensive Parent Net
Investment Income (Loss) Equity

(In thousands)

Balance December 31, 2005 $ 891,586 $ 4,110 $ 895,696

Net income 9,493 � 9,493
Other comprehensive income reclassification into earnings
from cash flow hedges � (79) (79)
Net transfers from parent 2,248 � 2,248

Balance March 31, 2006 $ 903,327 $ 4,031 $ 907,358

Balance December 31, 2006 $ 985,333 $ 3,792 $ 989,125

Net income 19,203 � 19,203
Other comprehensive income reclassification into earnings
from cash flow hedges � (79) (79)
Member�s Dividends (12,500) � (12,500)
Net transfers to parent (8,047) � (8,047)

Balance March 31, 2007 $ 983,989 $ 3,713 $ 987,702
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NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.  Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

These financial statements of Spectra Energy Partners Predecessor (the Company) are prepared in connection with the
proposed initial public offering of limited partnership units in Spectra Energy Partners, LP (the Partnership), which
was formed in March 2007 and which will own certain of the operations and assets of the Company, as further
described below. Through its operating units, the Company is engaged in the transportation of natural gas through
interstate pipeline systems that serve the southeastern United States, and the storage of natural gas in underground
facilities that are located in southeast Texas and in south central Louisiana.

The Company is comprised of companies that are subsidiaries of Spectra Energy Corp (Spectra Energy) for the
periods presented in these financials.

The combined financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the basis of Spectra Energy�s historical
ownership percentages of the operations that are expected to be contributed to the Partnership. These historical
ownership percentages included: 100% for East Tennessee Natural Gas LLC (East Tennessee), 50% of Market Hub
Partners, LLC (Market Hub) and 24.5% of Gulfstream Natural Gas System, LLC (Gulfstream). The Company
accounts for investments in 20% to 50% owned affiliates, and investments in less than 20% owned affiliates where
Spectra Energy Partners Predecessor has the ability to exercise significant influence, under the equity method.
Accordingly the combined historical financial statements for the Company, as the financial statement predecessor to
the Partnership, reflect the inclusion of East Tennessee, and investments in Market Hub and Gulfstream using the
equity method of accounting. These combined financial statements have been prepared from the separate records
maintained by those entities and may not necessarily be indicative of the actual results of operations that might have
occurred if the Company or the Partnership had been operated separately during those periods. Because a direct
ownership relationship did not exist among the entities comprising the Company, the net investment in the Company
is shown as Net Parent Investment in lieu of owner�s equity in the combined financial statements.

As part of the initial public offering of limited partnership units of the Partnership, expected to occur in the second
quarter of 2007 subject to Securities and Exchange Commission and other approvals, Spectra Energy plans to
contribute to the Partnership certain of the operations and assets of the Company. The Partnership will own 100% of
East Tennessee, 50% of Market Hub (excluding certain operations of Market Hub that will be retained by Spectra
Energy) and 24.5% of Gulfstream. The Partnership is expected to consolidate its ownership in East Tennessee, with
equity accounting for Market Hub and Gulfstream.

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company�s combined financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements reflect all normal recurring adjustments that are, in the
opinion of management, necessary to fairly present the Company�s results of operations and financial position.
Amounts reported in the Combined Statement of Operations are not necessarily indicative of amounts expected for the
respective annual periods.

2.  Separation from Duke Energy

In June 2006, the Board of Directors of Duke Energy Corporation (Duke Energy) authorized management to pursue a
plan to create two separate publicly traded companies by spinning off Duke Energy�s natural gas business to Duke
Energy shareholders. The spin-off was completed on January 2, 2007, at which time Spectra Energy became a

Edgar Filing: OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORP - Form 4

Table of Contents 48



separate publicly-traded entity. Spectra Energy primarily owns the Natural Gas Transmission and Field Services
segments of Spectra Energy Capital LLC, formerly Duke Capital LLC.

Spectra Energy and Duke Energy Corp entered into various agreements associated with the separation of the natural
gas businesses and related rights, obligations and assets from Duke Energy. As a result of the
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NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)
separation that was effective on January 2, 2007, Spectra Energy and Duke Energy are no longer considered to be
related parties.

On January 2, 2007, Duke Energy transferred to Spectra Energy the assets and liabilities, including related tax
impacts, associated with the Company�s employee benefits and captive insurance positions, as well as miscellaneous
corporate assets and liabilities.

See also Note (11) for further discussion of employee benefit plans. Certain of these transfers from Duke Energy are
subject to change, primarily as a result of final actuarial analyses of the separation of the benefit plans.

Subsidiaries of Spectra Energy and Duke Energy continue to conduct business pursuant to ongoing contracts and
arrangements in the normal course of those operations, primarily services for the transportation of natural gas. In
addition, as a result of the separation from Duke Energy, Spectra Energy, primarily through Spectra Energy Capital,
LLC (Spectra Capital), has newly staffed various corporate and other support functions, such as treasury, tax, cash
management, payroll, accounts payable, information technology, human resources, and legal and compliance that are
required for Spectra Energy to operate as a stand-alone public company. Primarily during the first year following the
separation date, it is expected that Duke Energy will provide certain transition services to Spectra Energy until such
time as Spectra Energy can create all of the necessary stand-alone functions. The Duke Energy corporate costs
included in the Company�s historical financial statements will be replaced by Spectra Energy�s independent operating
costs, including the new corporate functions.

3.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates.  To conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States, management
makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the combined financial statements and notes.
Although these estimates are based on management�s best available knowledge at the time, actual results may differ.

4.  Transactions with Affiliates

In the normal course of business, the Company provides natural gas transportation, storage and other services to
Spectra Energy and its affiliates. In addition, the Company engages in other transactions with affiliates, including
reimbursement of costs incurred by affiliates on behalf of the Company and allocations from affiliates for various
corporate services including legal, accounting, treasury, information technology and human resources. Affiliates
charge such expenses based on the cost of actual services provided or using various allocation methodologies based on
the Company�s percentage of assets, employees, earnings or other measures, as compared to other affiliates.
Management believes the allocation methodologies are reasonable; however, these allocations and estimates may not
represent the amounts that would have been incurred had the Company operated as a separate entity.

Transactions with affiliates are summarized in the tables below:

Statement of Operations

Three Months Ended
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March 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)

Transportation of natural gas(1) $ � $ 54
Operating and maintenance expenses(2) 3,318 4,066
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(1) In the normal course of business, the Company provides natural gas transportation, storage and other services to
affiliates

(2) Includes allocations of various overhead charges that are based either on the cost of actual service received or
using various allocation methodologies based on the Company�s percentage of assets, employees, earnings or
other measures, as compared to Spectra Energy affiliates.

East Tennessee. In March 2006 Duke Energy Gas Services (DEGS), an affiliated company, contributed to East
Tennessee approximately 34 miles of 10-inch diameter pipeline running from Lee County, Virginia to an
interconnection with the Company�s Hawkins County Lateral in Rogersville, Tennessee at net book value of
approximately $8,506 thousand by a non-cash, equity transfer between the affiliated companies. Associated deferred
taxes of $2,958 thousand related to such assets were transferred from the affiliate. These assets were part of DEGS
Stone Mountain System and the remaining Stone Mountain System assets were sold by DEGS to an unrelated third
party.

5.  Business Segments

The Company�s operations are organized into one business segment: East Tennessee. The Company�s business segment
is considered the sole reportable segment under SFAS No. 131.

East Tennessee provides interstate transportation of natural gas and the storage and redelivery of liquefied natural gas
(LNG) for customers in the southeastern U.S. These operations are primarily subject to the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC) and the U.S. Department of Transportation�s (DOT) rules and regulations.

The remainder of the Company�s operations is presented as �Other�. While it is not considered a business segment, Other
primarily includes the Company�s equity investments in Gulfstream and Market Hub, and certain unallocated corporate
costs.

Market Hub owns and operates two natural gas storage facilities, Moss Bluff and Egan, which are located in Southeast
Texas and South Central Louisiana respectively. Market Hub operations are subject to the rules and regulations of
FERC and DOT. Gulfstream provides interstate natural gas pipeline transportation for customers in central and
southern Florida. Gulfstream operations are subject to the rules and regulations of FERC or Texas Railroad
Commission (TRC) and DOT.

Accounting policies for the Company�s sole segment is in conformance with U.S. GAAP and is consistent with the
Company�s accounting policies.

Management evaluates segment performance primarily based on earnings before interest and taxes from continuing
operations (EBIT). On a segment basis, EBIT represents all profits from continuing operations (both operating and
non-operating) before deducting interest and taxes.
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Business Segment Data

Segment EBIT
/

Combined Depreciation Capital and

Total
Earnings
before and Investment

Revenues Income Taxes Amortization Expenditures
(In thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2007
East Tennessee $ 26,433 $ 14,707 $ 4,969 $ (1,931)
Other � 11,385 � �

Total 26,433 26,092 4,969 (1,931)
Interest expense � 2,156 � �

Total combined $ 26,433 $ 23,936 $ 4,969 $ (1,931)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2006
East Tennessee $ 22,221 $ 5,713 $ 4,754 $ (10,841)
Other � 7,059 � �

Total 22,221 12,772 4,754 (10,841)
Interest expense � 2,067 � �

Total combined $ 22,221 $ 10,705 $ 4,754 $ (10,841)

Segment Assets

March 31, December 31,
2007 2006

(In thousands)

East Tennessee $ 841,898 $ 841,789
Other 450,068 442,793

Total combined $ 1,291,966 $ 1,284,582
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Change in Control Covenant.  East Tennessee�s $150 million notes contain a provision which requires the Company
to offer to redeem the notes at par upon the occurrence of a change in control event. On April 12, 2007, notices were
sent to noteholders to communicate this redemption offer. No noteholders accepted the redemption offer.

6.  Debt

Long-term Debt.  Long-term debt consists of notes payable of $150 million at 5.71% outstanding as of March 31,
2007 and December 31, 2006 due in one installment in 2012. Interest payments of $4,283 thousand are paid on June
and December each year through 2012.

Restrictive Debt Covenants.  The Company�s debt agreement contains financial covenants which limit the amount of
debt that can be outstanding as a percentage of the total capital. Failure to maintain the covenants could require the
Company to immediately pay down the outstanding balance. The covenant calculations are performed by the
Company on a quarterly basis to establish that they are in compliance with the covenant. As of March 31, 2007, the
Company was in compliance with those covenants. In addition, the debt agreement may allow for acceleration of
payments or termination of the agreements due to nonpayment, or to the acceleration of other significant indebtedness
of the borrower or some of its subsidiaries, if any. The debt agreement does not contain material adverse change
clauses.
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The financial covenants limiting the amount of debt outstanding as a percent of total capital effectively restrict the use
of net assets. The sum of the restricted net assets at East Tennessee of $234 million and our proportionate
undistributed earnings of Market Hub of $120 million, amounts to 36% of the Company�s combined net assets as of
March 31, 2007. Gulfstream has no undistributed earnings as of March 31 2007. As such there may be a significant
restriction on the ability of East Tennessee, Market Hub and Gulfstream to transfer funds to the Partnership by means
of intercompany loans, advances or cash dividends.

7.  Commitments and Contingencies

Environmental.  The Company is subject to federal, state and local regulations regarding air and water quality,
hazardous and solid waste disposal and other environmental matters. Management believes there are no matters that
will have a material adverse effect on the Company�s results of operations, cash flows, or financial position.

Litigation and Legal Proceedings.  The Company is involved in legal, tax and regulatory proceedings in various
forums regarding performance, contracts and other matters arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which
involve substantial amounts. Management believes that the final disposition of these proceedings will have no
material adverse effect on the Company�s results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

The Company�s operating entities are involved in other legal, tax and regulatory proceedings in various forms
regarding performance, contracts, royalty disputes, mismeasurement and mispayment claims (some of which are
brought as class actions) and other matters arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which involve
substantial amounts. Management believes that the final disposition of these proceedings will have no material
adverse effect on the Company�s combined results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

8.  Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates and Related Transactions

Investments in affiliates that are not controlled by the Company, but over which it has significant influence, are
accounted for using the equity method. As of March 31, 2007, the carrying amount of investments represented a 50%
interest in Market Hub and a 24.5% interest in Gulfstream. The Company�s share of net earnings from those
unconsolidated affiliates is reflected in the Combined Statements of Operations as Equity in Earnings of
Unconsolidated Affiliates.

Periodically, the Company receives distributions from the unconsolidated affiliates. When received, these distributions
are included in Distributions from Equity Investments within Cash Flows from Operating Activities on the
accompanying Combined Statements of Cash Flows. The Company received distributions of $3,675 thousand and
$5,635 from Gulfstream and $355 thousand and $0 from Market Hub for the three month period ending March 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively.

Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliates

March 31, December 31,
2007 2006
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Gulfstream $ 186,787 $ 186,354
Market Hub 263,281 256,439

Total $ 450,068 $ 442,793
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Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2007 2006
(In thousands)

Gulfstream $ 4,188 $ 2,331
Market Hub 7,197 4,728

Total $ 11,385 $ 7,059

Summarized Combined Financial Information of Unconsolidated Affiliates

March 31, December 31,
2007 2006

(In thousands)

Balance Sheets
Current Assets $ 113,473 $ 104,919
Non-current assets: 2,245,671 2,228,787
Current liabilities: 165,083 179,925
Non-current liabilities: 880,447 855,734

Net assets $ 1,313,614 $ 1,298,047

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2007 2006
(In thousands)

Statements of Operations
Operating revenues $ 58,787 $ 55,830
Operating expenses 14,686 24,580
Net income 31,609 18,952

9.  New Accounting Pronouncements
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The following new accounting pronouncements were adopted by the Company during the periods presented
subsequent to March 31, 2006:

FIN 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes � an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.�  In July 2006, the
FASB issued FIN 48, which provides guidance on accounting for income tax positions about which the Company has
concluded there is a level of uncertainty with respect to the recognition in its financial statements. FIN 48 prescribes a
minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet. Tax positions are defined very broadly and include
not only tax deductions and credits but also decisions not to file in a particular jurisdiction, as well as the taxability of
transactions. The Company implemented FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007. The implementation had no material
impact on the financial statements. Upon implementation of FIN 48, the Company will now reflect interest expense
related to taxes as Interest Expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. In addition, subsequent accounting
for FIN 48 (after January 1, 2007) will involve an evaluation to determine if any changes have occurred that would
impact the existing uncertain tax positions as well as determining whether any new tax positions are uncertain. Any
impacts resulting from the evaluation of existing uncertain tax positions or from the recognition of new uncertain tax
positions would impact Income Tax Expense and Interest Expense.
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NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

The following new accounting pronouncements have been issued, but have not yet been adopted by the Company as
of March 31, 2007:

SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements.�  In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, which defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair value measurements. However, in some cases, the
application of SFAS No. 157 may change the Company�s current practice for measuring and disclosing fair values
under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements. For the Company,
SFAS No. 157 is effective as of January 1, 2008 and must be applied prospectively except in certain cases. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 157 and cannot currently estimate the impact that
SFAS No. 157 will have on its consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

SFAS No. 159, �The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.�  In February 2007, the FASB
issued SFAS No. 159, which permits entities to choose to measure certain financial instruments at fair value. For the
Company, SFAS No. 159 is effective as of January 1, 2008 and will have no impact on amounts presented for periods
prior to the effective date. The Company cannot currently estimate the impact that SFAS No. 159 will have on its
consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows and has not yet determined whether or not it will
choose to measure items subject to SFAS No. 159 at fair value.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Partners of Spectra Energy Partners, LP
Houston, Texas

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Spectra Energy Partners, LP (the �Company�) as of March 26,
2007. This financial statement is the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on this financial statement based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
balance sheet is free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform,
an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the balance sheet, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall balance sheet presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such balance sheet presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Spectra Energy
Partners, LP as of March 26, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

/s/  Deloitte & Touche LLP

Houston, Texas
March 27, 2007
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SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS, LP

BALANCE SHEET
March 26, 2007

ASSETS

Total assets $ �

PARTNERS� EQUITY
Partners� Equity
Limited partners� equity $ 2,940
General partner�s equity 60
Less receivables from Spectra Energy Corp and Spectra Energy Partners (DE) GP, LP (3,000)

Total liabilities and partners� equity $ �

See note to balance sheet
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SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS, LP

NOTE TO THE BALANCE SHEET

1.  Nature of Operations

Spectra Energy Partners, LP (the Partnership) is a Delaware limited partnership formed on March 19, 2007 to acquire
certain of the assets of Spectra Energy Corp (the Company), including 100% of East Tennessee Natural Gas LLC, a
50% equity method investment in Market Hub Partners Holding, LLC, and a 24.5% equity method investment in
Gulfstream Natural Gas System, LLC.

The Partnership intends to offer 10,000,000 common units, representing limited partner interests, pursuant to a public
offering and to concurrently issue 34,629,880 common units and 21,638,730 subordinated units, representing
additional limited partner interests, to subsidiaries of the Company, as well as 1,352,421 general partner units
representing an aggregate 2% general partner interest in the Partnership and its operating partnership on a consolidated
basis to Spectra Energy (DE) GP, LP.

Spectra Energy (DE) GP, LP, as general partner, contributed $60 and the Company and Spectra Energy (DE) GP, LP,
as the organizational limited partner, contributed $2,940 all in the form of notes receivable to the Partnership on
March 19, 2007. The receivables from the Company and Spectra Energy (DE) GP, LP have been reflected as a
deduction from Partners� equity on the accompanying balance sheet. There have been no other transactions involving
the Partnership as of March 26, 2007.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Partners of Spectra Energy Partners (DE) GP, LP
Houston, Texas

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Spectra Energy Partners (DE) GP, LP (the �Company�) as of
March 26, 2007. This financial statement is the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on this financial statement based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
balance sheet is free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform,
an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the balance sheet, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall balance sheet presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such balance sheet presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Spectra Energy
Partners (DE) GP, LP as of March 26, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Houston, Texas
March 27, 2007
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SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS (DE) GP, LP

BALANCE SHEET
MARCH 26, 2007

ASSETS
Investment in Spectra Energy Partners, LP 60

Total assets $ 60

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS� EQUITY
Payable to Spectra Energy Partners, LP $ 60
Partners� Equity
Limited partners� equity 990
General partner�s equity 10
Less receivable from Spectra Energy Corp and its subsidiaries (1,000)

Total partners� equity �

Total liabilities and partners� equity $ 60

See note to the balance sheet
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SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS (DE) GP, LP

NOTE TO THE BALANCE SHEET

1.  Nature of Operations

Spectra Energy (DE) GP, LP (General Partner) is a Delaware company formed on March 19, 2007, to become the
general partner of Spectra Energy Partners, LP (Partnership). The General Partner is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Spectra Energy Corp (Spectra Energy). The General Partner owns a 2% general partner interest in the
Partnership.

On March 26, 2007, Spectra Energy contributed $1,000 in the form of notes receivable to Spectra Energy (DE) GP,
LP in exchange for a 100% ownership interest.

The General Partner has invested $60 in the form of notes receivable in the Partnership. There have been no other
transactions involving the General Partner as of March 26, 2007.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors
Gulfstream Natural Gas System, L.L.C.
Houston, Texas

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Gulfstream Natural Gas System, L.L.C. (the �Company�) as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related statements of operations, members� equity, comprehensive income, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Gulfstream
Natural Gas Systems, L.L.C. as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Houston, Texas
March 27, 2007
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GULFSTREAM NATURAL GAS SYSTEM, L.L.C.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(In thousands)

Operating Revenues
Transportation of natural gas $ 178,768 $ 140,287 $ 90,411
Other 1,489 4,817 3,204

Total operating revenues 180,257 145,104 93,615

Operating Expenses
Operations and maintenance 7,234 1,542 1,750
Operations and maintenance � affiliates 7,992 7,755 7,705
Depreciation and amortization 30,406 29,190 25,354
Property and other taxes 17,847 15,060 7,839

Total operating expenses 63,479 53,547 42,648

Operating Income 116,778 91,557 50,967
Gains on Sales of Other Assets and Other, net 78 � �
Other Income and Expenses
Allowance for funds used during construction � equity 241 1,113 3,107
Other income and expenses, net 112 670 246

Total other income and expenses 353 1,783 3,353

Interest Expense
Long-term debt 48,911 27,029 13,248
Allowance for funds used during construction � borrowed (124) (1,489) (4,156)

Total interest expense 48,787 25,540 9,092

Net Income $ 68,422 $ 67,800 $ 45,228

See notes to financial statements

F-55

Edgar Filing: OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORP - Form 4

Table of Contents 67



Table of Contents

GULFSTREAM NATURAL GAS SYSTEM, L.L.C.

BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2006 2005

(In thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 29,426 $ 27,255
Accounts receivable 14,964 19,096
Other 2,292 2,434

Total current assets 46,682 48,785

Property, Plant and Equipment
Cost 1,719,116 1,708,436
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 123,866 93,524

Net property, plant and equipment 1,595,250 1,614,912

Deferred Charges
Allowance for funds used during construction � gross up 22,490 22,731
Unamortized debt expense 7,878 8,278
Other 230 192

Total deferred charges 30,598 31,201

Total Assets $ 1,672,530 $ 1,694,898

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS� EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 2,004 $ 5,715
Accounts payable � affiliates 903 834
Accrued taxes 13,983 5,933
Accrued interest 8,244 8,931
Other liabilities 5,719 6,594
Fuel tracker liabilities 2,455 5,493
Other 1,345 2,160

Total current liabilities 34,653 35,660

Other Long-term Liabilities 6,160 11,441

Long-term Debt 849,571 849,534
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Commitments and Contingencies
Members� Equity
Members� equity 766,668 781,487
Accumulated other comprehensive income 15,478 16,776

Total members� equity 782,146 798,263

Total Liabilities and Members� Equity $ 1,672,530 $ 1,694,898

See notes to financial statements
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GULFSTREAM NATURAL GAS SYSTEM, L.L.C.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(In thousands)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 68,422 $ 67,800 $ 45,228
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 31,099 33,716 30,679
Allowance for funds used during construction � equity (241) (1,113) (3,107)
Gains on sales of assets (78) � �
Reclassification adjustments from accumulated other comprehensive
income into net income (1,298) (234) �
(Increase) decrease in
Accounts receivable 3,772 (9,698) 420
Other current assets (545) (143) 3,575
Deferred charges 2,814 402 (642)
Increase (decrease) in
Account payable 994 (2,066) 102
Accrued taxes 8,050 4,861 (1,264)
Accrued interest (687) 6,709 1,573
Accrued liabilities (875) 5,830 (172)
Fuel tracker liabilities (2,260) 2,962 �
Other current liabilities 3,197 2,940 223
Long-term liabilities (5,281) (108) 2

Net cash provided by operating activities 107,083 111,858 76,617

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures (21,654) (62,206) (124,057)

Net cash used in investing activities (21,654) (62,206) (124,057)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Members� distributions (83,000) (741,990) (56,000)
Proceeds from the settlement of hedge instruments � 17,010 �
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt � 892,069 128,257
Payments for the redemption of long-term debt � (217,680) �
Payments for debt issuance costs (258) (8,399) �

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (83,258) (58,990) 72,257

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 2,171 (9,338) 24,817
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 27,255 36,593 11,776
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Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 29,426 $ 27,255 $ 36,593

Supplemental Disclosures
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 49,423 $ 15,794 $ 6,349
Significant non-cash transactions:
Property, plant and equipment accruals 2,204 � �
Gas imbalances payable 778 2,531 492
Allowance for funds used during construction-gross up (241) 274 1,431
Contribution in aid of construction � 16,685 �
Hurricane insurance receivable � � (4,783)

See notes to financial statements
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GULFSTREAM NATURAL GAS SYSTEM, L.L.C.

STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS� EQUITY

Spectra
Energy The Williams
Capital,
LLC Companies Total

(In thousands)

Balance January 1, 2004 $ 732,372 $ 732,372 $ 1,464,744

Members� distributions (28,000) (28,000) (56,000)
Attributed deferred tax benefit 715 716 1,431
Net income 22,614 22,614 45,228

Balance December 31, 2004 $ 727,701 $ 727,702 $ 1,455,403

Members� distributions (370,995) (370,995) (741,990)
Attributed deferred tax benefit 137 137 274
Other comprehensive income 8,505 8,505 17,010
Reclassification into earnings from cash flow hedges (117) (117) (234)
Net income 33,900 33,900 67,800

Balance December 31, 2005 $ 399,131 $ 399,132 $ 798,263

Members� distributions (41,500) (41,500) (83,000)
Attributed deferred tax benefit (120) (121) (241)
Reclassification into earnings from cash flow hedges (649) (649) (1,298)
Net income 34,211 34,211 68,422

Balance December 31, 2006 $ 391,073 $ 391,073 $ 782,146

See notes to financial statements
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GULFSTREAM NATURAL GAS SYSTEM, L.L.C.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(In thousands)

Net Income $ 68,422 $ 67,800 $ 45,228
Other comprehensive income
Net unrealized gain on cash flow hedges 16,776 17,010 �
Reclassification adjustment into earnings (1,298) (234) �

Total other comprehensive income 15,478 16,776 �

Total Comprehensive Income $ 83,900 $ 84,576 $ 45,228

See notes to financial statements

F-59

Edgar Filing: OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORP - Form 4

Table of Contents 73



Table of Contents

GULFSTREAM NATURAL GAS SYSTEM, L.L.C.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

1.  Nature of Operations

In June 2006, the Board of Directors of Duke Energy Corporation (Duke Energy) authorized management to pursue a
plan to create two separate publicly traded companies by spinning off Duke Energy�s natural gas business to Duke
Energy shareholders. The spin-off was completed on January 2, 2007 creating Spectra Energy Corp (Spectra Energy),
which primarily owns the Natural Gas Transmission and Field Services segments of Spectra Energy Capital LLC
(Spectra Energy Capital), formerly Duke Capital LLC. Gulfstream Natural Gas System, L.L.C. (the Company) is 50%
owned by Spectra Energy.

The Company was formed on May 17, 1999 as a Delaware limited liability company.

The Company is an interstate natural gas pipeline system owned 50% by a subsidiary of Duke Energy Corporation
(Duke Energy) and 50% by a subsidiary of The Williams Companies, Inc. (Williams). The Company is under the joint
management of Duke Energy, which provides the business functions, and of Williams, which provides the technical
functions.

In May 2002, the Company placed the Phase I facilities in service which consists of 582 miles of pipeline which
originates near Pascagoula, Mississippi and Mobile, Alabama, extends in a southeasterly direction across the Gulf of
Mexico into southern Tampa Bay, Florida, continues east across central Florida, turns north through Polk County and
terminates in Osceola County, Florida. In February 2005, the Company placed the Phase II facilities in service, which
extends the pipeline system an additional 109 miles across to eastern Florida and into Martin County, Florida.

The Company can transport up to 1.1 billion cubic feet of natural gas each day from natural gas reserves in the Mobile
Bay area of the Gulf of Mexico to a variety of customers, including electric utilities, local distribution companies and
municipal users in gas markets in south and central Florida. The pipeline has seven supply connection points in
Mississippi and Alabama. The Company�s interstate natural gas transmission operations are subject to the rules and
regulations of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC).

2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation.  The financial statements reflect the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of
the Company. The financial statements do not include any of the assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenses of the
members.

Use of Estimates.  To conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States, management
makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the Financial Statements and Notes. Although
these estimates are based on management�s best available knowledge at the time, actual results could differ.

Cash and Cash Equivalents.  All liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at date of
purchase are considered cash equivalents.

Accounting for Hedges.  The Company entered into derivative transactions that are hedges of the future cash flows of
forecasted transactions (cash flow hedges). These derivatives are recorded on the Balance Sheets at their fair value as
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. Cash outflows and inflows related to derivative instruments are a
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component of operating and financing cash flows in the accompanying Statements of Cash Flows.

Qualifying non-trading derivatives may be designated as either a hedge of a forecasted transaction or future cash flows
(cash flow hedge). For all hedge contracts, the Company provides formal documentation of the hedge in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133,
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GULFSTREAM NATURAL GAS SYSTEM, L.L.C.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)
�Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.� In addition, at inception and on a monthly basis the
Company formally assesses whether the hedge contract is highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows. The
Company documents hedging activity by transaction type (i.e. swaps) and risk management strategy (i.e. interest rate
risk).

Cash Flow Hedges.  Changes in the fair value of a derivative designated and qualified as a cash flow hedge, to the
extent effective, are included in Statements of Members� Equity and Comprehensive Income as Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (AOCI) until earnings are affected by the hedged transaction. The Company discontinues
hedge accounting prospectively when it has determined that a derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge, or
when it is no longer probable that the hedged forecasted transaction will occur. When hedge accounting is
discontinued because the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge, the derivative is subject to the
Mark-to-Market Model of Accounting (MTM Model) prospectively. Gains and losses related to discontinued hedges
that were previously accumulated in AOCI will remain in AOCI until the underlying contract is reflected in earnings;
unless it is probable that the hedged forecasted transaction will not occur at which time associated deferred amounts in
AOCI are immediately recognized in current earnings.

Valuation.  When available, quoted market prices or prices obtained through external sources are used to measure a
contract�s fair value. For contracts with a delivery location or duration for which quoted market prices are not
available, fair value is determined based on internally developed valuation techniques or models.

Property, Plant and Equipment.  Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation. The Company capitalizes all construction-related direct labor and material costs, as well as indirect
construction costs. Indirect costs include administrative and general costs and the cost of funds used during
construction. The cost of renewals and betterments that extend the useful life of property, plant and equipment is also
capitalized. The cost of repairs, replacements and major maintenance projects, which do not extend the useful life or
increase the expected output of property, plant and equipment, is expensed as it is incurred. Depreciation is generally
computed over the asset�s estimated useful life using the straight-line method. The composite weighted-average
depreciation rates were 1.8% for 2006, 1.9% for 2005 and 1.7% for 2004.

When the Company retires its regulated property, plant and equipment, it charges the original cost plus the cost of
retirement, less salvage value, to accumulated depreciation and amortization. When it sells entire regulated operating
units, or retires or sells non-regulated properties, the cost is removed from the property account and the related
accumulated depreciation and amortization accounts are reduced. Any gain or loss is recorded as income, unless
otherwise required by the FERC.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, SFAS No. 143, �Accounting For Asset Retirement Obligations�
(SFAS No. 143) which was adopted by the Company on January 1, 2003 and addresses financial accounting and
reporting for legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the related asset
retirement costs. The standard applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result
from the acquisition, construction, development and/or normal use of the asset. SFAS No. 143 requires that the fair
value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which it is incurred, if a reasonable
estimate of fair value can be made. The fair value of the liability is added to the carrying amount of the associated
asset. This additional carrying amount is then depreciated over the life of the asset. The liability increases due to the
passage of time based on the time value of money until the obligation is settled. Subsequent to the initial recognition,
the liability is adjusted for any revisions to the expected value of the retirement obligation (with corresponding

Edgar Filing: OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORP - Form 4

Table of Contents 76



adjustments to property, plant, and equipment), and for accretion of the liability due to the passage of time. Additional
depreciation expense is recorded prospectively for any property, plant and equipment increases.
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GULFSTREAM NATURAL GAS SYSTEM, L.L.C.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

Asset retirement obligations of the Company relate primarily to right-of-way agreements, asbestos removal and
contractual leases for land use. In accordance with SFAS No. 143, the Company identified certain assets that have an
indeterminate life, and thus the fair value of the retirement obligation is not reasonably estimable. These assets
included on-shore pipelines. A liability for these asset retirement obligations will be recorded when a fair value is
determinable.

In March 2005, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation No. 47, �Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations� (FIN 47). The adoption of FIN 47 had no impact on the income of the regulated gas pipeline operations.
Any effects would be offset by the establishment of regulatory assets and liabilities pursuant to SFAS No. 71.

Unamortized Debt Expense.  Debt expenses incurred with the issuance of outstanding long-term debt are amortized
over the terms of the debt issues. Any call premiums or unamortized expenses associated with refinancing higher-cost
debt obligations to finance regulated assets and operations are amortized consistent with regulatory treatment of those
items, where appropriate. The unamortized amount was $7,878 thousand and $8,278 thousand at December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively, and is classified in Deferred Charges in the accompanying Balance Sheets.

Cost-Based Regulation.  The Company accounts for certain of its regulated operations under the provisions of
SFAS No. 71, �Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation� (SFAS No. 71). The economic effects of
regulation can result in a regulated company recording assets for costs that have been or are expected to be approved
for recovery from customers or recording liabilities for amounts that are expected to be returned to customers in the
rate-setting process in a period different from the period in which the amounts would be recorded by an unregulated
enterprise. Accordingly, the Company records assets and liabilities that result from the regulated ratemaking process
that would not be recorded under GAAP for non-regulated entities. Management continually assesses whether
regulatory assets are probable of future recovery by considering factors such as applicable regulatory changes, recent
rate orders applicable to other regulated entities, and the status of any pending or potential deregulation legislation.
Based on this continual assessment, management believes the existing regulatory assets are probable of recovery.
These regulatory assets are primarily classified in the Balance Sheets as Deferred Charges. The Company periodically
evaluates the applicability of SFAS No. 71, and considers factors such as regulatory changes and the impact of
competition. If cost-based regulation ends or competition increases, the Company may have to reduce its asset
balances to reflect a market basis less than cost and write-off their associated regulatory assets and liabilities.

Revenue Recognition.  Revenues on natural gas transportation are recognized when the service is provided. From
time to time, certain revenues may be subject to refund pending the outcome of rate matters before the FERC, and
reserves are established where required. There were no pending rate cases and no related reserves were recorded as of
December 31, 2006, or 2005. The allowances for doubtful accounts were $54 thousand, and $0 as of December 31,
2006, and December 31, 2005, respectively.
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GULFSTREAM NATURAL GAS SYSTEM, L.L.C.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

Customer billings that are equal to or greater than 10% of revenues during the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005 are as follows:

Customer

December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Florida Power & Light Company 51% 41% 23%
Florida Power Corporation 22% 23% 29%
TECO Energy and subsidiaries 10% 13% (1)
Calpine Energy and subsidiaries (1) (1) 15%

(1) Percentage below 10%

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC).  AFUDC, which represents the estimated debt and
equity costs of capital funds necessary to finance the construction of new regulated facilities, consists of two
components, an equity component and an interest component. The equity component is a non-cash item. AFUDC is
capitalized as a component of Property, Plant and Equipment cost, with offsetting credits to the Statements of
Operations. After construction is completed, the Company is permitted to recover these costs through inclusion in the
rate base and in the depreciation provision. The total amount of AFUDC included in the Statements of Operations for
2006 was $365 thousand, which consisted of an equity component of $241 thousand and an interest expense
component of $124 thousand. The total amount of AFUDC included in the Statements of Operations for 2005 was
$2,602 thousand, which consisted of an equity component of $1,113 thousand and an interest expense component of
$1,489 thousand. The total amount of AFUDC included in the Statements of Operations for 2004 was $7,263
thousand, which consisted of an equity component of $3,107 thousand and an interest expense component of $4,156
thousand.

Income Taxes.  The Company is not subject to income tax, but rather the taxable income or loss of the Company is
reported on the respective income tax returns of its members. Accordingly, there is no federal tax provision in these
financial statements. Since the Company is not responsible for the attributed income taxes, amounts related to the
gross-up of AFUDC-Equity are carried in the individual capital accounts of the members. Deferred charges at
December 31, 2006, and 2005, reflect the deferred income tax effect of the AFUDC equity gross up of $22,490
thousand and $22,731 thousand, respectively.

New Accounting Standards.  The following new accounting standard has been issued, but has not yet been adopted
by the Company as of December 31, 2006:

SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements� (SFAS No. 157).  In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157,
which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair value measurements. However, in some cases,
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the application of SFAS No. 157 may change the Company�s current practice for measuring and disclosing fair values
under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements. For the Company,
SFAS No. 157 is effective as of January 2008 and must be applied prospectively except in certain cases. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 157, and cannot currently estimate the impact of
SFAS No. 157 on its consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

3.  Regulatory Matters

In September 2005, FERC approved Gulfstream�s Cost and Revenue study that was required to be filled as a condition
in its Phase I and Phase II expansion projects. Gulfstream is not anticipated to have
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GULFSTREAM NATURAL GAS SYSTEM, L.L.C.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)
further filing requirements until three years after its recently announced Phase III expansion facilities are placed into
service, currently expected in 2008.

FERC Accounting Order.  In June 2005, FERC issued an Order on Accounting for Pipeline Assessment Costs that
requires most pipeline inspection and integrity assessment activities to be recognized as expenses, as incurred. In the
Order, FERC confirmed that pipeline betterments and replacements, including those resulting from integrity
inspections, will continue to be capitalized when appropriate. This FERC Order is effective for pipeline inspection and
for integrity assessment costs incurred on or subsequent to January 1, 2006, and increased annual expenses for the
Company by an immaterial amount for 2006. Pipeline inspection and integrity assessment costs capitalized prior to the
effective date of the rule are not impacted.

4.  Related Party Transactions

Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(In thousands)

Operation and maintenance expenses $ 7,992 $ 7,755 $ 7,705

Balance Sheets

December 31,
2006 2005
(In thousands)

Property, plant and equipment(a) $ 2,995 $ 12,066
Accounts payable 903 834

(a) Reflects amounts billed in the annual period.

In 2005, approximately $9,622 thousand of this amount consisted of a construction fee to Gulfstream Management &
Operating Services, L.L.C. (GMOS) related to the successful completion of Phase II pipeline construction. In 2006,
there was not a construction fee.

GMOS, 50%-owned by an affiliate of Duke Energy and 50%-owned by an affiliate of Williams, provides
management, construction and operating services pursuant to agreements entered into with the Company and with
affiliates of Duke Energy and Williams. GMOS bills the Company for services rendered including labor and benefit
costs, employee expenses, overhead costs and in some cases, third party costs. Such amounts are reflected in the
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Statements of Operations for the year as Operation and Maintenance Expenses or in the Balance Sheets as Property,
Plant and Equipment, as appropriate.

5.  Gas Imbalances

The Balance Sheets include in-kind balances as a result of differences in gas volumes received and delivered for
customers. Since the settlement of imbalances is in-kind, changes in the balances do not have an impact on the
Company�s Statements of Cash Flows. Accounts Receivable include $1,712 thousand and $1,802 thousand as of both
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and Other Current Liabilities include $1,345 thousand and $2,161
thousand, as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, related to gas imbalances. Natural gas volumes owed to
(by) the Company are valued at natural gas market index prices as of the balance sheet dates.
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GULFSTREAM NATURAL GAS SYSTEM, L.L.C.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

6.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Estimated December 31,
Useful Life 2006 2005

(In thousands)

Land N/A $ 18,013 $ 18,208
Natural gas transmission 60 years 1,642,926 1,634,239
Equipment 5-7 years 1,257 1,231
Vehicles 5 years 417 417
Construction in process N/A 12,193 10,114
Other 5-20 years 44,310 44,227

Total property, plant and equipment 1,719,116 1,708,436
Total accumulated depreciation (123,866) (93,524)

Total net property, plant and equipment $ 1,595,250 $ 1,614,912

7.  Hedging Activities, Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Interest Rate Cash Flow Hedges.  The Company was exposed to the impact of market fluctuations in interest rates.
To protect the Company from increasing interest rates and the resulting higher cost of the debt that was issued in
2005, the Company made a decision to lock in existing interest rates by using financial derivatives (swaps) for hedge
strategies. The total amount of the debt issued was $850,000 thousand of which $500,000 thousand was hedged. As of
September 30, 2005, the Company entered into interest rate swaps totaling $500,000 thousand, all of which were
terminated on October 12, 2005, prior to the issuance of the related debt. These derivatives were initially recorded on
the Balance Sheets at their fair value as Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (AOCI). Changes in the fair value
of a derivative designated and qualified as a cash flow hedge, to the extent effective, are included in Statements of
Members� Equity and Comprehensive Income as Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income until earnings are
affected by the hedged transaction. Subsequent to the termination of the interest rate hedges, deferred gains of $15,478
thousand in AOCI as of December 31, 2006 will continue to be amortized to interest expense over the term of the new
debt issued through November 1, 2015.

Financial Instruments.  The Company�s financial instruments include $850,000 thousand of long-term debt with an
approximate fair value of $852,492 thousand and $857,584 thousand as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates
determined as of December 31, 2006, and 2005, are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could have
realized in current markets.

Credit Risk.  The Company�s principal customers for natural gas transportation are utilities located throughout the state
of Florida. The Company has concentrations of receivables from utilities throughout Florida. These concentrations of
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customers may affect the Company�s overall credit risk in that risk factors can negatively impact the credit quality of
the entire sector. Where exposed to credit risk, the Company analyzes the counterparties� financial condition prior to
entering into an agreement, establishes credit limits and monitors the appropriateness of those limits on an ongoing
basis. The Company also obtains cash, letters of credit or other acceptable forms of security from customers, where
appropriate, based on its financial analysis of the customer and the regulatory or contractual terms and conditions
applicable to each transaction.

Long-term Debt.  In October 2005, the Company entered into two fixed rate senior notes. $500,000 thousand mature
on November 1, 2015, and $350,000 thousand mature on November 1, 2025. Proceeds
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)
from the debt issuance were used to repay the existing indebtedness and the remaining proceeds were distributed to
the Company�s members.

Debt

December 31,
2006 2005
(In thousands)

Note payable, 5.56% $ 500,000 $ 500,000
Note payable, 6.19% 350,000 350,000
Unamortized debt discount (429) (466)
Total debt $ 849,571 $ 849,534

Less current maturity � �

Total Long-term portion $ 849,571 $ 849,534

8.  Commitments and Contingencies

General Insurance.  The Company carries, through Williams, insurance consistent with companies engaged in similar
commercial operations with similar type properties. The Company�s insurance coverage includes (1) excess liability
insurance for liabilities arising to third parties for bodily injury and property damage resulting from the Company�s
operations; and (2) automobile liability insurance for all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles covering liabilities to
third parties for bodily injury and property damage. Each owner insures their 50% ownership of the Company�s
property with insurance covering the replacement value of all real and personal property damage, including damages
arising from machinery breakdowns, earthquake, and flood damage. The Company has onshore business
interruption/extra expense insurance. All coverages are subject to certain deductibles, terms and conditions common
for companies with similar types of operations.

Each owner of the Company also maintains excess liability insurance coverage for their ownership interest excess of
the limits for excess liability insurance maintained by the Company. Limits, terms, conditions and deductibles are
comparable to those carried by other energy companies of similar size.

The cost of the Company�s general insurance coverages continued to fluctuate over the past year reflecting the
changing conditions of the insurance markets.

Environmental.  The Company is subject to federal, state and local regulations regarding air and water quality,
hazardous and solid waste disposal and other environmental matters. Management believes that there are no matters
that will have a material adverse effect on the Company�s results of operations, cash flows or financial position.
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Litigation.  The Company is involved in legal, tax and regulatory proceedings in various forums, regarding
performance, contracts and other matters arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which involve substantial
amounts. Management believes that the final disposition of these proceedings will have no material adverse effect on
consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

Contractual Obligations.  The Company enters into contracts that require payment of cash at certain specified
periods, based on certain specified minimum quantities and prices. The following table summarizes the Company�s
contractual cash obligations for each of the periods presented. The table below excludes all amounts classified as
current liabilities on the Balance Sheets, other than current maturities of long-term
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)
debt. It is expected that the majority of current liabilities on the Balance Sheets will be paid in cash in 2006.

Payment Due By Period

Less
than 2-3 Years 4-5 Years More than
1 Year (2008 & (2010 & 5 Years

Total (2007) 2009) 2011)
(Beyond
2011)

(In thousands)

Long-term debt $ 850,000 $ � $ � $ � $ 850,000
Operating leases 811 419 284 108 �
Material/Capital purchases(1) 12,000 6,000 6,000 � �

Total contractual cash obligations $ 862,811 $ 6,419 $ 6,284 $ 108 $ 850,000

(1) The Company entered into a contract in which it will provide a $28,000 thousand contribution in aid of
construction (�CIAC�), under the provisions of it�s FERC gas tariff, to a customer in six unequal installments
through December 31, 2008. In return for the $28,000 thousand payment, the customer will construct a lateral
that will connect to the Company�s mainline. The customer agreed to execute two consecutive Firm
Transportation Service (�FTS�) contracts that will be used on the Company�s mainline system. These contracts
combined began on June 1, 2005, and will extend through December 31, 2028. The Company has recorded an
asset of $26,100 thousand which is included within Property, Plant and Equipment and a corresponding liability
which is included in Other Current Liabilities and Long-term Liabilities on the Company�s Balance Sheets.
Through December 31, 2006, the Company has paid $16,000 thousand to the customer pursuant to the contract.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors
Market Hub Partners Holding, LLC
Houston, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Market Hub Partners Holding, LLC and
subsidiaries (the �Company�) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
member�s equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company�s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Market Hub Partners Holding, LLC and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/  Deloitte & Touche LLP

Houston, Texas
March 27, 2007
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MARKET HUB PARTNERS HOLDING, LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(In thousands)

Operating Revenues
Salt cavern storage revenues $ 75,645 $ 64,667 $ 56,261
Salt cavern storage revenues � affiliates 308 3,564 6,787
Other 2,851 9,698 2,795

Total operating revenues 78,804 77,929 65,843

Operating Expenses
Operation and maintenance 14,130 3,635 5,801
Operation and maintenance � affiliates 12,133 5,832 2,997
Depreciation and amortization 7,815 6,938 6,788
Property and other taxes 3,970 3,358 2,991

Total operating expenses 38,048 19,763 18,577

Gain on Sale of Other Assets, and Other, net 10,553 1,136 1,539
Operating Income 51,309 59,302 48,805

Other Income � 10 (6)

Interest Income 11 41 30
Interest Expense (2,636) � �

Net Income $ 48,684 $ 59,353 $ 48,829

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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MARKET HUB PARTNERS HOLDING, LLC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2006 2005
(In thousands)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts $ 12,058 $ 27,791
Accounts receivable � affiliates � 132
Inventory 906 6,013
Natural gas imbalance receivables 5,957 29,073
Natural gas imbalance receivables � affiliates 39,316 79,107

Total current assets 58,237 142,116

Other Assets
Advances receivable � affiliates 94,177 �
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization 200,497 200,497
Other assets 67 1,211

Total other assets 294,741 201,708

Property, Plant and Equipment
Cost 370,721 315,141
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 62,523 56,331

Net property, plant and equipment 308,198 258,810

Total Assets $ 661,176 $ 602,634

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER�S EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 6,034 $ 714
Accounts payable � affiliates � 516
Accrued taxes 1,309 930
Natural gas imbalance payables 43,794 108,180
Natural gas imbalance payables � affiliates 2,485 �
Collateral liabilities 3,631 2,290
Collateral liabilities � affiliates 55,000 �
Other accrued liabilities 8,019 2,272

Total current liabilities 120,272 114,902
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Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Advances payable � affiliates � 20,511
Other 3 4
Other � affiliates 25,000 �

Total deferred credits and other liabilities 25,003 20,515

Commitments & Contingencies
Paid-in capital 290,258 276,382
Retained earnings 225,643 190,835
Member�s Equity 515,901 467,217

Total Liabilities and Member�s Equity $ 661,176 $ 602,634

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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MARKET HUB PARTNERS HOLDING, LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income $ 48,684 $ 59,353 $ 48,829
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 7,815 6,938 6,788
Gain on sale of other assets (10,553) (1,136) (1,539)
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable 5,812 15,728 (36,810)
Accounts receivable � affiliates 132 578 128
Inventory 6,113 (3,137) (808)
Other current assets � � 260
Other assets 21,608 (1,085) 330
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 5,320 (879) 1,593
Accounts payable � affiliates (516) 516 �
Accrued taxes 379 (506) (214)
Collateral liabilities 1,341 491 1,799
Collateral liabilities � affiliates 55,000 � �
Other accrued liabilities 2,638 (14,587) 22,852
Deferred credits and other liabilities (2) 4 (304)
Deferred credits and other liabilities � affiliates 25,000 � �

Net cash provided by operating activities 168,771 62,278 42,904

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures (54,083) (37,987) (17,000)
Net increase in advances receivable � affiliates (94,177) � �
Net decrease in advances payable � affiliates (20,511) (24,291) (28,294)
Proceeds on sale of other assets � � 2,390

Net cash used in investing activities (168,771) (62,278) (42,904)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents � � �
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year � � �

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ � $ � $ �

Supplemental Disclosures
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 43 $ � $ �
Significant non-cash transactions:
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Gas imbalances 62,907 61,274 1,349
Property, plant and equipment accruals 4,853 1,771 1,757
Property, plant and equipment retirements 3,348 978 7,445
Interaccount property, plant and equipment transfers/reclasses � 2,001 11,287
Intercompany property, plant and equipment transfers � � 6,132

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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MARKET HUB PARTNERS HOLDING, LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF MEMBER�S EQUITY

Total
(In thousands)

Balance January 1, 2004 $ 359,035

Net income 48,829

Balance December 31, 2004 $ 407,864

Net income 59,353

Balance December 31, 2005 $ 467,217

Net income 48,684

Balance December 31, 2006 $ 515,901

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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MARKET HUB PARTNERS HOLDING, LLC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

1.  Nature of Operations

In June 2006, the Board of Directors of Duke Energy Corporation (Duke Energy) authorized management to pursue a
plan to create two separate publicly traded companies by spinning off Duke Energy�s natural gas business to Duke
Energy shareholders. The spin-off was completed on January 2, 2007 at which time Spectra Energy Corp (Spectra
Energy) became a separate publicly-traded entity. Spectra Energy primarily owns the Natural Gas Transmission and
Field Services segments of Spectra Energy Capital LLC (Spectra Energy Capital), formerly Duke Capital LLC.
Market Hub Partners Holding, LLC (the Company) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Spectra Energy.

The Company was converted from a Delaware limited partnership to a Delaware limited liability company on
December 31, 2003. The Company was wholly owned by indirect subsidiaries of Duke Energy. The Company owns
and operates two natural gas storage facilities: Moss Bluff, located near Houston, Texas and Egan, located in Acadia
Parish, Louisiana. These facilities provide producers, end-users, local distribution companies, pipelines and energy
marketers with high deliverability storage services, as well as hub services, such as park and loan services, wheeling
and title transfer. The Company�s Egan facilities are subject to the rules and regulations of the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC). Moss Bluff, as a Hinshaw pipeline, must also comply with some requirements under
FERC regulations.

2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation.  The financial statements reflect the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of
the Company. The financial statements do not include any of the assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenses of the
members.

Consolidation.  These Consolidated Financial Statements include, after eliminating intercompany transactions and
balances, the accounts of the Company and all majority-owned subsidiaries.

Use of Estimates.  To conform with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States,
management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Notes. Although these estimates are based on management�s best available knowledge at the time,
actual results could differ from those estimates.

Inventory.  Inventory primarily consists of natural gas held in storage and is recorded at the lower of cost or market
value, primarily determined using the average cost method. An adjustment to inventory was recorded in 2006 as a
result of a reconciliation between the physical and book balances of natural gas held in storage. This adjustment was
recognized by reducing recorded inventory by $1,984 thousand, increasing natural gas imbalance payables by $1,006
thousand and charging a like amount to operation and maintenance.

Goodwill.  The Company evaluates the impairment of goodwill related to the purchase of the Company under the
guidance of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, �Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.�
Under this provision, goodwill is subject to an annual test for impairment. The Company has designated August 31 as
the date it performs the annual review for goodwill impairment. Impairment testing of goodwill consists of a two-step
process. The first step involves a comparison of the fair value of the Company with its carrying amount. If the
carrying amount of the company exceeds its fair value, the second step of the process involves a comparison of the
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fair value and the carrying value of the goodwill of the Company. If the carrying value of the goodwill of the
Company exceeds the fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to the excess.
Additional impairment tests are performed between the annual reviews; if events or changes in circumstances make it
more likely than not that the fair value of the company is below its carrying amount.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

The Company uses a discounted cash flow analysis to determine fair value. Key assumptions in the determination of
fair value include the use of an appropriate discount rate and estimated future cash flows. In estimating cash flows, the
Company incorporates current market information, historical factors, and other factors into its forecasted revenue and
expenses and other cash flow impacts.

Property, Plant and Equipment.  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The
Company capitalizes all construction-related direct labor and material costs, as well as indirect construction costs.
Indirect costs include general engineering, taxes and the cost of funds used during construction. The cost of renewals
and betterments that extend the useful life of property, plant and equipment is also capitalized. The cost of repairs,
replacements and major maintenance projects, which do not extend the useful life or increase the expected output of
property, plant and equipment, is expensed as it is incurred. Depreciation is generally computed over the asset�s
estimated useful life using the straight-line method. The composite weighted-average depreciation rates were 3.00%
for 2006, 3.01% for 2005 and 3.11% for 2004.

When the Company retires its regulated property, plant and equipment, it charges the original cost plus the cost of
retirement, less salvage, to accumulated depreciation and amortization. When it sells entire regulated operating units,
or retires or sells non-regulated properties, the cost is removed from the property account and the related accumulated
depreciation and amortization accounts are reduced. Any gain or loss is recorded as income.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, �Accounting For Asset Retirement Obligations� (SFAS No. 143) which
was adopted by the Company on January 1, 2003 and addresses financial accounting and reporting for legal
obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the related asset retirement costs. The
standard applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the acquisition,
construction, development and/or normal use of the asset. SFAS No. 143 requires that the fair value of a liability for
an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which it is incurred, if a reasonable estimate of fair value
can be made. The fair value of the liability is added to the carrying amount of the associated asset. This additional
carrying amount is then depreciated over the life of the asset. The liability increases due to the passage of time based
on the time value of money until the obligation is settled. Subsequent to the initial recognition, the liability is adjusted
for any revisions to the expected value of the retirement obligation (with corresponding adjustments to property, plant,
and equipment), and for accretion of the liability due to the passage of time. Additional depreciation expense is
recorded prospectively for any property, plant and equipment increases.

Asset retirement obligations of the Company relate primarily to right-of-way agreements, asbestos removal and
contractual leases for land use. In accordance with SFAS No. 143, the Company identified certain assets that have an
indeterminate life, and thus the fair value of the retirement obligation is not reasonably estimable. These assets
included on-shore pipelines. A liability for these asset retirement obligations will be recorded when a fair value is
determinable.

In March 2005, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation No. 47, �Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations� (FIN 47). The adoption of FIN 47 had no impact on the income of the regulated gas pipeline operations.
Any effects would be offset by the establishment of regulatory assets and liabilities pursuant to SFAS No. 71.

Environmental Expenditures.  The Company expenses environmental expenditures related to conditions caused by
past operations that do not generate current or future revenues. Environmental expenditures related to operations that
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generate current or future revenues are expensed or capitalized, as appropriate. Liabilities are recorded when the
necessity for environmental remediation becomes probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated, or when other
potential environmental liabilities are reasonably estimable and probable.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

Revenue Recognition.  Revenues on natural gas storage are recognized when the service is provided. There were no
pending rate cases and no related reserves were recorded as of December 31, 2006 and 2005. The allowance for
doubtful accounts was $0 as of both December 31, 2006, and 2005.

Customer billings that exceeded 10% of revenues during the years ended 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

% of Consolidated Revenues
Years Ended December 31,

Customer 2006 2005 2004

Northern Indiana Public Service Co 10.6% 11.2% 16.2%

New Accounting Standards.  The following new accounting standards have been issued, but have not yet been
adopted by the Company as of December 31, 2006.

SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements� (SFAS No. 157).  In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157,
which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair value measurements. However, in some cases,
the application of SFAS No. 157 may change the Company�s current practice for measuring and disclosing fair values
under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements. For the Company,
SFAS No. 157 is effective as of January 1, 2008 and must be applied prospectively except in certain cases. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 157, and cannot currently estimate the impact of
SFAS No. 157 on its consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

3.  Related Party Transactions

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(In thousands)

Storage of natural gas and other services (1) $ 308 $ 3,564 $ 6,787
Operation and maintenance expenses (2) 12,133 5,832 2,997

(1) In the normal course of business, the Company provides natural gas storage and other services to affiliates.

(2) Includes reimbursement of costs incurred by affiliates on behalf of the Company and allocations from Spectra
Capital affiliates for various services and other costs. Affiliates charge such expenses based on the cost of actual
services provided or using various allocation methodologies based on the Company�s percentage of assets,
employees, earnings, or other measures, as compared to other affiliates.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,
2006 2005
(In thousands)

Accounts receivable $ � $ 132
Natural gas imbalance receivables 39,316 79,107
Accounts payable � 516
Natural gas imbalance payables 2,485 �
Collateral liabilities 55,000 �
Other 25,000 �
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MARKET HUB PARTNERS HOLDING, LLC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)
Advances receivable and payable-affiliates do not bear interest. Advances are carried as unsecured, open accounts and
are not segregated between current and non-current amounts. Increases and decreases in advances generally result
from the movement of funds to provide for operations and capital expenditures of the Company.

During 2006 in accordance with the Company�s credit policies, the Company received an $80,000 thousand security
deposit from an affiliate, associated with natural gas imbalance receivables from the affiliate. The Company is
required to pay a market rate of interest on the security deposit. Of the $80,000 thousand balance, $55,000 thousand is
classified as a current liability with $25,000 thousand classified as long term since it relates to a contract position that
is not expected to be repaid until April 2008.

4.  Gas Imbalances

The Consolidated Balance Sheets include in-kind balances as a result of differences in gas volumes received and
delivered for customers. Since the settlement of imbalances is in-kind, changes in the balances do not have an impact
on the Company�s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Natural gas volumes owed to (by) the Company are valued
at natural gas market index prices as of the balance sheet dates.

5.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Net Property, Plant and Equipment

Estimated December 31,
Useful Life 2006 2005

(In thousands)

Land N/A $ 12,415 $ 12,415
Salt Cavern Storage facilities 15-40 years 312,787 272,082

Equipment 10-40 years 221 217
Vehicles 5 years 115 133

Constructions in process N/A 42,583 28,179
Other 5 years 2,600 2,115
Total property, plant and equipment 370,721 315,141
Total accumulated depreciation (62,523) (56,331)
Total net property, plant and equipment $ 308,198 $ 258,810

6.  Credit Risk

Credit Risk.  The Company markets high deliverability natural gas storage services and hub services to pipelines,
local distribution companies, producers, end-users, power generators, and energy marketers. The Company has
concentrations of receivables from these industries throughout these regions. These concentrations of customers may
affect the Company�s overall credit risk in that risk factors can negatively impact the credit quality of the entire sector.
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Where exposed to credit risk, the Company analyzes the counterparties� financial condition prior to entering into an
agreement, establishes credit limits and monitors the appropriateness of those limits on an ongoing basis. The
Company also obtains cash, letters of credit or other acceptable forms of security from customers, where appropriate,
based on its financial analysis of the customer and the regulatory or contractual terms and conditions applicable to
each transaction.

7.  Commitments and Contingencies

General Insurance.  The Company carries, through a Duke Energy Affiliate, insurance and reinsurance coverages
consistent with companies engaged in similar commercial operations with similar type properties.
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MARKET HUB PARTNERS HOLDING, LLC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)
The Company�s insurance coverage includes (1) commercial general public liability insurance for liabilities arising to
third parties for bodily injury and property damage resulting from the Company�s operations; (2) workers�
compensation liability coverage to required statutory limits; (3) automobile liability insurance for all owned,
non-owned and hired vehicles covering liabilities to third parties for bodily injury and property damage, (4) financial
services insurance policies in support of the indemnification provisions of the Company�s by-laws and (5) property
insurance covering the replacement value of all real and personal property damage, including damages arising from
machinery breakdowns, earthquake, flood damage and business interruption/extra expense. All coverages are subject
to certain deductibles, terms and conditions common for companies with similar types of operations.

The Company also maintains, through an affiliate, excess liability insurance coverage above the established primary
limits for commercial general liability and automobile liability insurance. Limits, terms, conditions and deductibles
are comparable to those carried by other energy companies of similar size. The cost of the Company�s general
insurance coverages continued to fluctuate over the past year reflecting the changing conditions of the insurance
markets.

Environmental.  The Company is subject to federal, state and local regulations regarding air and water quality,
hazardous and solid waste disposal and other environmental matters. Management believes there are no matters that
will have a material adverse effect on the Company�s results of operations, cash flows, or financial position.

Litigation.  The Company is involved in legal, tax and regulatory proceedings in various forums regarding
performance, contracts and other matters arising in the ordinary course of business, some of which involve substantial
amounts. Management believes that the final disposition of these proceedings will have no material adverse effect on
the Company�s consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

Leases.  The Company leases assets in several areas of operations. Rental expense for these leases, including amounts
allocated from Duke Energy affiliates, was $377 thousand for 2006, $311 thousand for 2005 and $35 thousand for
2004.
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Appendix A

FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED
AGREEMENT OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

OF
SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS, LP
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FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT OF LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP OF SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS, LP

THIS FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP OF SPECTRA
ENERGY PARTNERS, LP dated as of July 2, 2007, is entered into by and between Spectra Energy Partners (DE) GP,
LP, a Delaware limited partnership, as the General Partner, and Spectra Energy Transmission, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company (the �Organizational Limited Partner�), together with any other Persons who become Partners
in the Partnership or parties hereto as provided herein. In consideration of the covenants, conditions and agreements
contained herein, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

Section 1.1  Definitions.

The following definitions shall be for all purposes, unless otherwise clearly indicated to the contrary, applied to the
terms used in this Agreement.

�Acquisition� means any transaction in which any Group Member acquires (through an asset acquisition, merger, stock
acquisition or other form of investment) control over all or a portion of the assets, properties or business of another
Person for the purpose of increasing the long-term operating capacity or asset base of the Partnership Group from the
operating capacity or asset base of the Partnership Group existing immediately prior to such transaction.

�Additional Book Basis� means the portion of any remaining Carrying Value of an Adjusted Property that is attributable
to positive adjustments made to such Carrying Value as a result of Book-Up Events. For purposes of determining the
extent that Carrying Value constitutes Additional Book Basis:

(a) Any negative adjustment made to the Carrying Value of an Adjusted Property as a result of either a Book-Down
Event or a Book-Up Event shall first be deemed to offset or decrease that portion of the Carrying Value of such
Adjusted Property that is attributable to any prior positive adjustments made thereto pursuant to a Book-Up Event or
Book-Down Event.

(b) If Carrying Value that constitutes Additional Book Basis is reduced as a result of a Book-Down Event and the
Carrying Value of other property is increased as a result of such Book-Down Event, an allocable portion of any such
increase in Carrying Value shall be treated as Additional Book Basis; provided, that the amount treated as Additional
Book Basis pursuant hereto as a result of such Book-Down Event shall not exceed the amount by which the Aggregate
Remaining Net Positive Adjustments after such Book-Down Event exceeds the remaining Additional Book Basis
attributable to all of the Partnership�s Adjusted Property after such Book-Down Event (determined without regard to
the application of this clause (b) to such Book-Down Event).

�Additional Book Basis Derivative Items� means any Book Basis Derivative Items that are computed with reference to
Additional Book Basis. To the extent that the Additional Book Basis attributable to all of the Partnership�s Adjusted
Property as of the beginning of any taxable period exceeds the Aggregate Remaining Net Positive Adjustments as of
the beginning of such period (the �Excess Additional Book Basis�), the Additional Book Basis Derivative Items for such
period shall be reduced by the amount that bears the same ratio to the amount of Additional Book Basis Derivative
Items determined without regard to this sentence as the Excess Additional Book Basis bears to the Additional Book
Basis as of the beginning of such period.
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�Additional Limited Partner� means a Person admitted to the Partnership as a Limited Partner pursuant to Section 10.4
and who is shown as such on the books and records of the Partnership.

�Adjusted Capital Account� means the Capital Account maintained for each Partner as of the end of each fiscal year of
the Partnership, (a) increased by any amounts that such Partner is obligated to restore
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under the standards set by Treasury Regulation Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(c) (or is deemed obligated to restore under
Treasury Regulation Sections 1.704-2(g) and 1.704-2(i)(5)) and (b) decreased by (i) the amount of all losses and
deductions that, as of the end of such fiscal year, are reasonably expected to be allocated to such Partner in subsequent
years under Sections 704(e)(2) and 706(d) of the Code and Treasury Regulation Section 1.751-1(b)(2)(ii), and (ii) the
amount of all distributions that, as of the end of such fiscal year, are reasonably expected to be made to such Partner in
subsequent years in accordance with the terms of this Agreement or otherwise to the extent they exceed offsetting
increases to such Partner�s Capital Account that are reasonably expected to occur during (or prior to) the year in which
such distributions are reasonably expected to be made (other than increases as a result of a minimum gain chargeback
pursuant to Section 6.1(d)(i) or 6.1(d)(ii)). The foregoing definition of Adjusted Capital Account is intended to
comply with the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d) and shall be interpreted consistently
therewith. The �Adjusted Capital Account� of a Partner in respect of a General Partner Unit, a Common Unit, a
Subordinated Unit, a Class B Unit or an Incentive Distribution Right or any other Partnership Interest shall be the
amount that such Adjusted Capital Account would be if such General Partner Unit, Common Unit, Subordinated Unit,
Class B Unit, Incentive Distribution Right or other Partnership Interest were the only interest in the Partnership held
by such Partner from and after the date on which such General Partner Unit, Common Unit, Class B Unit,
Subordinated Unit, Incentive Distribution Right or other Partnership Interest was first issued.

�Adjusted Operating Surplus� means, with respect to any period, Operating Surplus generated with respect to such
period (a) less any net decrease in cash reserves for Operating Expenditures with respect to such period not relating to
an Operating Expenditure made with respect to such period, and (b) plus (i) any net decrease made in subsequent
periods in cash reserves for Operating Expenditures initially established with respect to such period to the extent such
decrease results in a reduction in Adjusted Operating Surplus in subsequent periods pursuant to clause (a) above and
(ii) any net increase in cash reserves for Operating Expenditures with respect to such period required by any debt
instrument for the repayment of principal, interest or premium. Adjusted Operating Surplus does not include that
portion of Operating Surplus included in clause (a)(i) of the definition of Operating Surplus.

�Adjusted Property� means any property the Carrying Value of which has been adjusted pursuant to Section 5.5(d)(i) or
5.5(d)(ii).

�Affiliate� means, with respect to any Person, any other Person that directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries controls, is controlled by or is under common control with, the Person in question. As used herein, the
term �control� means the possession, direct or indirect, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management
and policies of a Person, whether through ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.

�Aggregate Quantity of Class B Units� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 5.11.

�Aggregate Remaining Net Positive Adjustments� means, as of the end of any taxable period, the sum of the Remaining
Net Positive Adjustments of all the Partners.

�Agreed Allocation� means any allocation, other than a Required Allocation, of an item of income, gain, loss or
deduction pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.1, including a Curative Allocation (if appropriate to the context in
which the term �Agreed Allocation� is used).

�Agreed Value� of any Contributed Property means the fair market value of such property or other consideration at the
time of contribution as determined by the General Partner. The General Partner shall use such method as it determines
to be appropriate to allocate the aggregate Agreed Value of Contributed Properties contributed to the Partnership in a
single or integrated transaction among each separate property on a basis proportional to the fair market value of each
Contributed Property.
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as it may be amended, supplemented or restated from time to time.
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�Assignee� means a Person to whom one or more Limited Partner Interests have been transferred in a manner permitted
under this Agreement and who has executed and delivered a Transfer Application, including a Taxation Certification,
as required by this Agreement, but who has not been admitted as a Substituted Limited Partner.

�Associate� means, when used to indicate a relationship with any Person, (a) any corporation or organization of which
such Person is a director, officer or partner or is, directly or indirectly, the owner of 20% or more of any class of
voting stock or other voting interest; (b) any trust or other estate in which such Person has at least a 20% beneficial
interest or as to which such Person serves as trustee or in a similar fiduciary capacity; and (c) any relative or spouse of
such Person, or any relative of such spouse, who has the same principal residence as such Person.

�Available Cash� means, with respect to any Quarter ending prior to the Liquidation Date:

(a) the sum of (i) all cash and cash equivalents of the Partnership Group (or the Partnership�s proportionate share of
cash and cash equivalents in the case of Subsidiaries that are not wholly owned) on hand at the end of such Quarter,
and (ii) if the General Partner so determines, all or any portion of additional cash and cash equivalents of the
Partnership Group (or the Partnership�s proportionate share of cash and cash equivalents in the case of Subsidiaries that
are not wholly owned) on hand on the date of determination of Available Cash with respect to such Quarter, less

(b) the amount of any cash reserves (or the Partnership�s proportionate share of cash reserves in the case of
Subsidiaries that are not wholly owned) established by the General Partner to (i) provide for the proper conduct of the
business of the Partnership Group (including reserves for future capital expenditures, for anticipated future credit
needs of the Partnership Group and for refunds of collected rates reasonably likely to be refunded as a result of a
settlement or hearing relating to FERC rate proceedings) subsequent to such Quarter, (ii) comply with applicable law
or any loan agreement, security agreement, mortgage, debt instrument or other agreement or obligation to which any
Group Member is a party or by which it is bound or its assets are subject or (iii) provide funds for distributions under
Section 6.4 or 6.5 in respect of any one or more of the next four Quarters; provided, however, that the General Partner
may not establish cash reserves pursuant to (iii) above if the effect of such reserves would be that the Partnership is
unable to distribute the Minimum Quarterly Distribution on all Common Units, plus any Cumulative Common Unit
Arrearage on all Common Units, with respect to such Quarter; and, provided further, that disbursements made by a
Group Member or cash reserves established, increased or reduced after the end of such Quarter but on or before the
date of determination of Available Cash with respect to such Quarter shall be deemed to have been made, established,
increased or reduced, for purposes of determining Available Cash, within such Quarter if the General Partner so
determines.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, �Available Cash� with respect to the Quarter in which the Liquidation Date occurs and
any subsequent Quarter shall equal zero.

�Board of Directors� means the board of directors or managers of a corporation or limited liability company or the
board of directors or board of managers of the general partner of a limited partnership, as applicable.

�Book Basis Derivative Items� means any item of income, deduction, gain or loss included in the determination of Net
Income or Net Loss that is computed with reference to the Carrying Value of an Adjusted Property (e.g., depreciation,
depletion, or gain or loss with respect to an Adjusted Property).

�Book-Down Event� means an event that triggers a negative adjustment to the Capital Accounts of the Partners pursuant
to Section 5.5(d).
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�Book-Tax Disparity� means with respect to any item of Contributed Property or Adjusted Property, as of the date of
any determination, the difference between the Carrying Value of such Contributed Property or Adjusted Property and
the adjusted basis thereof for federal income tax purposes as of such date. A Partner�s share of the Partnership�s
Book-Tax Disparities in all of its Contributed Property and
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Adjusted Property will be reflected by the difference between such Partner�s Capital Account balance as maintained
pursuant to Section 5.5 and the hypothetical balance of such Partner�s Capital Account computed as if it had been
maintained strictly in accordance with federal income tax accounting principles.

�Book-Up Event� means an event that triggers a positive adjustment to the Capital Accounts of the Partners pursuant to
Section 5.5(d).

�Business Day� means Monday through Friday of each week, except that a legal holiday recognized as such by the
government of the United States of America or the State of Texas shall not be regarded as a Business Day.

�Capital Account� means the capital account maintained for a Partner pursuant to Section 5.5. The �Capital Account� of a
Partner in respect of a General Partner Unit, a Common Unit, a Subordinated Unit, a Class B Unit, an Incentive
Distribution Right or any other Partnership Interest shall be the amount that such Capital Account would be if such
General Partner Unit, Common Unit, Subordinated Unit, Class B Unit, Incentive Distribution Right or other
Partnership Interest were the only interest in the Partnership held by such Partner from and after the date on which
such General Partner Unit, Common Unit, Class B Unit, Subordinated Unit, Incentive Distribution Right or other
Partnership Interest was first issued.

�Capital Contribution� means any cash, cash equivalents or the Net Agreed Value of Contributed Property that a Partner
contributes to the Partnership.

�Capital Improvement� means any (a) addition or improvement to the capital assets owned by any Group Member,
(b) the construction of new capital assets or (c) capital contributions by a Group Member to a Person that is not a
Subsidiary in which a Group Member has an equity interest to fund such Group Member�s Pro Rata share of the cost of
the construction of new capital assets by such Person, in each case if such addition, improvement, acquisition or
construction is made to increase the long-term operating capacity, asset base or income of the Partnership Group, in
the case of clauses (a) and (b), or such Person, in the case of clause (c), from the operating capacity, asset base or
income of the Partnership Group or such Person, as the case may be, existing immediately prior to such addition,
improvement, acquisition or construction.

�Capital Surplus� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.3(a).

�Carrying Value� means (a) with respect to a Contributed Property, the Agreed Value of such property reduced (but not
below zero) by all depreciation, amortization and cost recovery deductions charged to the Partners� and Assignees�
Capital Accounts in respect of such Contributed Property, and (b) with respect to any other Partnership property, the
adjusted basis of such property for federal income tax purposes, all as of the time of determination. The Carrying
Value of any property shall be adjusted from time to time in accordance with Sections 5.5(d)(i) and 5.5(d)(ii) and to
reflect changes, additions or other adjustments to the Carrying Value for dispositions and acquisitions of Partnership
properties, as deemed appropriate by the General Partner.

�Cause� means a court of competent jurisdiction has entered a final, non-appealable judgment finding the General
Partner liable for actual fraud or willful misconduct in its capacity as a general partner of the Partnership.

�Certificate� means (a) a certificate (i) substantially in the form of Exhibit A to this Agreement, (ii) issued in global
form in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Depositary or (iii) in such other form as may be adopted by
the General Partner, issued by the Partnership evidencing ownership of one or more Common Units or (b) a
certificate, in such form as may be adopted by the General Partner, issued by the Partnership evidencing ownership of
one or more other Partnership Securities.
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Secretary of State of the State of Delaware as referenced in Section 7.2, as such Certificate of Limited Partnership
may be amended, supplemented or restated from time to time.
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�Citizenship Certification� means a properly completed certificate in such form as may be specified by the General
Partner by which an Assignee or a Limited Partner certifies that he (and if he is a nominee holding for the account of
another Person, that to the best of his knowledge such other Person) is an Eligible Citizen.

�claim� (as used in Section 7.12(d)) has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 7.12(d).

�Class B Unit� means a Partnership Security representing a fractional part of the Partnership Interests of all Limited
Partners, and having the rights and obligations specified with respect to Class B Units in this Agreement.

�Closing Date� means the first date on which Common Units are issued and sold by the Partnership to the Underwriters
pursuant to the provisions of the Underwriting Agreement.

�Closing Price� means, in respect of any class of Limited Partner Interests, as of the date of determination, the last sale
price on such day, regular way, or in case no such sale takes place on such day, the average of the closing bid and
asked prices on such day, regular way, as reported in the principal consolidated transaction reporting system with
respect to securities listed on the principal National Securities Exchange (other than the Nasdaq National Market) on
which the respective Limited Partner Interests are listed or admitted to trading or, if such Limited Partner Interests are
not listed or admitted to trading on any National Securities Exchange (other than the Nasdaq National Market), the last
quoted price on such day or, if not so quoted, the average of the high bid and low asked prices on such day in the
over-the-counter market, as reported by the Nasdaq National Market or such other system then in use, or, if on any
such day such Limited Partner Interests of such class are not quoted by any such organization, the average of the
closing bid and asked prices on such day as furnished by a professional market maker making a market in such
Limited Partner Interests of such class selected by the General Partner, or if on any such day no market maker is
making a market in such Limited Partner Interests of such class, the fair value of such Limited Partner Interests on
such day as determined by the General Partner.

�Code� means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and in effect from time to time. Any reference herein to
a specific section or sections of the Code shall be deemed to include a reference to any corresponding provision of any
successor law.

�Combined Interest� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 11.3(a).

�Commission� means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

�Commodity Hedge Contract� means any commodity exchange, swap, forward, cap, floor, collar or other similar
agreement or arrangement entered into for the purpose of hedging the Partnership Group�s exposure to fluctuations in
the price of hydrocarbons in their operations and not for speculative purposes.

�Common Unit� means a Partnership Security representing a fractional part of the Partnership Interests of all Limited
Partners and Assignees, and having the rights and obligations specified with respect to Common Units in this
Agreement. The term �Common Unit� does not include a Subordinated Unit or Class B Unit prior to its conversion into
a Common Unit pursuant to the terms hereof.

�Common Unit Arrearage� means, with respect to any Common Unit, whenever issued, as to any Quarter within the
Subordination Period, the excess, if any, of (a) the Minimum Quarterly Distribution with respect to a Common Unit in
respect of such Quarter over (b) the sum of all Available Cash distributed with respect to a Common Unit in respect of
such Quarter pursuant to Section 6.4(a)(i).
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�Conflicts Committee� means a committee of the Board of Directors of the General Partner composed entirely of two or
more directors, each of whom (a) is not a security holder, officer or employee of the General Partner, (b) is not an
officer, director or employee of any Affiliate of the General Partner, (c) is not a holder of any ownership interest in the
Partnership Group other than Common Units and (d) meets the independence standards required of directors who
serve on an audit committee of a board of directors established by the Securities Exchange Act and the rules and
regulations of the Commission thereunder and by the National Securities Exchange on which the Common Units are
listed or admitted to trading.
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�Contributed Property� means each property or other asset, in such form as may be permitted by the Delaware Act, but
excluding cash, contributed to the Partnership. Once the Carrying Value of a Contributed Property is adjusted
pursuant to Section 5.5(d), such property shall no longer constitute a Contributed Property, but shall be deemed an
Adjusted Property.

�Contribution Agreement� means that certain Contribution and Conveyance Agreement, dated as of the Closing Date,
among the General Partner, the Partnership, the Operating Partnership and certain other parties, together with the
additional conveyance documents and instruments contemplated or referenced thereunder, as such may be amended,
supplemented or restated from time to time.

�Converted Common Units� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.1(d)(x)(B).

�Cumulative Common Unit Arrearage� means, with respect to any Common Unit, whenever issued, and as of the end of
any Quarter, the excess, if any, of (a) the sum resulting from adding together the Common Unit Arrearage as to an
Initial Common Unit for each of the Quarters within the Subordination Period ending on or before the last day of such
Quarter over (b) the sum of any distributions theretofore made pursuant to Section 6.4(a)(ii) and the second sentence
of Section 6.5 with respect to an Initial Common Unit (including any distributions to be made in respect of the last of
such Quarters).

�Curative Allocation� means any allocation of an item of income, gain, deduction, loss or credit pursuant to the
provisions of Section 6.1(d)(xi).

�Current Market Price� means, in respect of any class of Limited Partner Interests, as of the date of determination, the
average of the daily Closing Prices per Limited Partner Interest of such class for the 20 consecutive Trading Days
immediately prior to such date.

�Delaware Act� means the Delaware Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act, 6 Del C. Section 17-101, et seq., as
amended, supplemented or restated from time to time, and any successor to such statute.

�Departing General Partner� means a former general partner from and after the effective date of any withdrawal or
removal of such former general partner pursuant to Section 11.1 or Section 11.2.

�Depositary� means, with respect to any Units issued in global form, The Depository Trust Company and its successors
and permitted assigns.

�Economic Risk of Loss� has the meaning set forth in Treasury Regulation Section 1.752-2(a).

�Eligible Citizen� means a Person qualified to own interests in real property in jurisdictions in which any Group
Member does business or proposes to do business from time to time, and whose status as a Limited Partner or
Assignee the General Partner determines does not or would not subject such Group Member to a significant risk of
cancellation or forfeiture of any of its properties or any interest therein.

�Eligible Holder� means a Person either (a) subject to United States federal income taxation on the income generated by
the Partnership or (b) not subject to United States federal income taxation on the income generated by the Partnership,
but all of whose beneficial owners are subject to United States federal income taxation on the income generated by the
Partnership. Schedule I to the Transfer Application provides examples of Persons that are and Persons that are not
Eligible Holders.
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�Estimated Incremental Quarterly Tax Amount� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.9.

�Event of Withdrawal� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 11.1(a).

�Expansion Capital Expenditures� means cash expenditures for Acquisitions or Capital Improvements, and shall not
include Maintenance Capital Expenditures.

�FERC� means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.

�Final Subordinated Units� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.1(d)(x).

�First Liquidation Target Amount� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.1(c)(i)(E).
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�First Target Distribution� means $0.345 per Unit per Quarter (or, with respect to the period commencing on the
Closing Date and ending on September 30, 2007, it means the product of $0.345 multiplied by a fraction of which the
numerator is the number of days in such period, and of which the denominator is 92), subject to adjustment in
accordance with Sections 5.11, 6.6 and 6.9.

�Fully Diluted Basis� means, when calculating the number of Outstanding Units for any period, a basis that includes, in
addition to the Outstanding Units, all Partnership Securities and options, rights, warrants and appreciation rights
relating to an equity interest in the Partnership (a) that are convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Units
that are senior to or pari passu with the Subordinated Units, (b) whose conversion, exercise or exchange price is less
than the Current Market Price on the date of such calculation, (c) that may be converted into or exercised or
exchanged for such Units prior to or during the Quarter immediately following the end of the period for which the
calculation is being made without the satisfaction of any contingency beyond the control of the holder other than the
payment of consideration and the compliance with administrative mechanics applicable to such conversion, exercise
or exchange and (d) that were not converted into or exercised or exchanged for such Units during the period for which
the calculation is being made; provided, however, that for purposes of determining the number of Outstanding Units
on a Fully Diluted Basis when calculating whether the Subordination Period has ended or Subordinated Units are
entitled to convert into Common Units pursuant to Section 5.7, such Partnership Securities, options, rights, warrants
and appreciation rights shall be deemed to have been Outstanding Units only for the four Quarters that comprise the
last four Quarters of the measurement period; provided, further, that if consideration will be paid to any Group
Member in connection with such conversion, exercise or exchange, the number of Units to be included in such
calculation shall be that number equal to the difference between (i) the number of Units issuable upon such
conversion, exercise or exchange and (ii) the number of Units that such consideration would purchase at the Current
Market Price.

�General Partner� means Spectra Energy Partners (DE) GP, LP, a Delaware limited partnership, and its successors and
permitted assigns that are admitted to the Partnership as general partner of the Partnership, in its capacity as general
partner of the Partnership (except as the context otherwise requires).

�General Partner Interest� means the ownership interest of the General Partner in the Partnership (in its capacity as a
general partner without reference to any Limited Partner Interest held by it), which is evidenced by General Partner
Units, and includes any and all benefits to which the General Partner is entitled as provided in this Agreement,
together with all obligations of the General Partner to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement.

�General Partner Unit� means a fractional part of the General Partner Interest having the rights and obligations
specified with respect to the General Partner Interest. A General Partner Unit is not a Unit.

�Group� means a Person that with or through any of its Affiliates or Associates has any contract, arrangement,
understanding or relationship for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting (except voting pursuant to a revocable
proxy or consent given to such Person in response to a proxy or consent solicitation made to 10 or more Persons),
exercising investment power or disposing of any Partnership Interests with any other Person that beneficially owns, or
whose Affiliates or Associates beneficially own, directly or indirectly, Partnership Interests.

�Group Member� means a member of the Partnership Group.

�Group Member Agreement� means the partnership agreement of any Group Member, other than the Partnership, that is
a limited or general partnership, the limited liability company agreement of any Group Member that is a limited
liability company, the certificate of incorporation and bylaws or similar organizational documents of any Group
Member that is a corporation, the joint venture agreement or similar governing document of any Group Member that
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Person other than a limited or general partnership, limited liability company, corporation or joint venture, as such may
be amended, supplemented or restated from time to time.

�Holder� as used in Section 7.12, has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 7.12(a).

A-7

Edgar Filing: OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORP - Form 4

Table of Contents 122



Table of Contents

�IDR Reset Election� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 5.11(a).

�Incentive Distribution Right� means a non-voting Limited Partner Interest issued to the General Partner, which Limited
Partner Interest will confer upon the holder thereof only the rights and obligations specifically provided in this
Agreement with respect to Incentive Distribution Rights (and no other rights otherwise available to or other
obligations of a holder of a Partnership Interest). Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the
holder of an Incentive Distribution Right shall not be entitled to vote such Incentive Distribution Right on any
Partnership matter except as may otherwise be required by law.

�Incentive Distributions� means any amount of cash distributed to the holders of the Incentive Distribution Rights
pursuant to Sections 6.4(a)(v), (vi) and (vii) and 6.4(b)(iii), (iv) and (v).

�Incremental Income Taxes� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.9.

�Indemnified Persons� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 7.12(d).

�Indemnitee� means (a) the General Partner, (b) any Departing General Partner, (c) any Person who is or was an
Affiliate of the General Partner or any Departing General Partner, (d) any Person who is or was a member, partner,
director, officer, fiduciary or trustee of any Group Member (other than any Person who is or was a Limited Partner of
the Partnership in such Person�s capacity as such), the General Partner or any Departing General Partner or any
Affiliate of any Group Member, the General Partner or any Departing General Partner, (e) any Person who is or was
serving at the request of the General Partner or any Departing General Partner or any Affiliate of the General Partner
or any Departing General Partner as an officer, director, member, partner, fiduciary or trustee of another Person;
provided that a Person shall not be an Indemnitee by reason of providing, on a fee-for-services basis, trustee, fiduciary
or custodial services, and (f) any Person the General Partner designates as an �Indemnitee� for purposes of this
Agreement.

�Ineligible Holder� means a Person whom the General Partner has determined is not an Eligible Holder.

�Initial Common Units� means the Common Units sold in the Initial Offering.

�Initial Limited Partners� means the Organizational Limited Partner, Spectra Energy Southeast Pipeline Corp. and the
General Partner (with respect to the Common Units, Subordinated Units and Incentive Distribution Rights received by
them pursuant to Section 5.2) and the Underwriters, in each case upon being admitted to the Partnership in accordance
with Section 10.1.

�Initial Offering� means the initial offering and sale of Common Units to the public, as described in the Registration
Statement.

�Initial Unit Price� means (a) with respect to the Common Units and the Subordinated Units, the initial public offering
price per Common Unit at which the Underwriters offered the Common Units to the public for sale as set forth on the
cover page of the prospectus included as part of the Registration Statement and first issued at or after the time the
Registration Statement first became effective or (b) with respect to any other class or series of Units, the price per Unit
at which such class or series of Units is initially sold by the Partnership, as determined by the General Partner, in each
case adjusted as the General Partner determines to be appropriate to give effect to any distribution, subdivision or
combination of Units.
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�Interest Rate Hedge Contract� means any interest rate exchange, swap, forward, cap, floor collar or other similar
agreement or arrangement entered into for the purpose of reducing the exposure of the Partnership Group to
fluctuations in interest rates in their financing activities and not for speculative purposes.

�Interim Capital Transactions� means the following transactions if they occur prior to the Liquidation Date:
(a) borrowings, refinancings or refundings of indebtedness (other than for items purchased on open account in the
ordinary course of business) by any Group Member and sales of debt securities of any Group Member; (b) sales of
equity interests of any Group Member (including the Common Units sold to the Underwriters pursuant to the exercise
of the Over-Allotment Option); (c) sales or other voluntary or involuntary dispositions of any assets of any Group
Member other than (i) sales or other dispositions of inventory, accounts receivable and other assets in the ordinary
course of business, and (ii) sales or other dispositions of assets as part of normal retirements or replacements; (d) the
termination of Interest Rate
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Hedge Contracts or Commodity Hedge Contracts prior to the termination date specified therein; (e) capital
contributions received; or (f) corporate reorganizations or restructurings.

�Issue Price� means the price at which a Unit is purchased from the Partnership, net of any sales commission or
underwriting discount charged to the Partnership.

�Limited Partner� means, unless the context otherwise requires, (a) the Organizational Limited Partner prior to its
withdrawal from the Partnership, each Initial Limited Partner, each Substituted Limited Partner, each Additional
Limited Partner and any Departing General Partner upon the change of its status from General Partner to Limited
Partner pursuant to Section 11.3, in each case, in such Person�s capacity as limited partner of the Partnership or
(b) solely for purposes of Articles V, VI, VII, IX and XII, each Assignee; provided, however, that when the term
�Limited Partner� is used herein in the context of any vote or other approval, including Articles XIII and XIV, such term
shall not, solely for such purpose, include any holder of an Incentive Distribution Right (solely with respect to its
Incentive Distribution Rights and not with respect to any other Limited Partner Interest held by such Person) except as
may be required by law.

�Limited Partner Interest� means the ownership interest of a Limited Partner or Assignee in the Partnership, which may
be evidenced by Common Units, Class B Units, Subordinated Units, Incentive Distribution Rights or other Partnership
Securities or a combination thereof or interest therein, and includes any and all benefits to which such Limited Partner
or Assignee is entitled as provided in this Agreement, together with all obligations of such Limited Partner or
Assignee to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement; provided, however, that when the term �Limited
Partner Interest� is used herein in the context of any vote or other approval, including Articles XIII and XIV, such term
shall not, solely for such purpose, include any Incentive Distribution Right except as may be required by law.

�Limited Partner Unit� means each of the Common Units, Class B Units, Subordinated Units and other Units
representing fractional parts of the Partnership Interests of all Limited Partners and Assignees.

�Liquidation Date� means (a) in the case of an event giving rise to the dissolution of the Partnership of the type
described in clauses (a) and (b) of the first sentence of Section 12.2, the date on which the applicable time period
during which the holders of Outstanding Units have the right to elect to continue the business of the Partnership has
expired without such an election being made, and (b) in the case of any other event giving rise to the dissolution of the
Partnership, the date on which such event occurs.

�Liquidator� means one or more Persons selected by the General Partner to perform the functions described in
Section 12.4 as liquidating trustee of the Partnership within the meaning of the Delaware Act.

�Maintenance Capital Expenditures� means cash expenditures (including expenditures for the addition or improvement
to the capital assets owned by any Group Member or for the acquisition of existing, or the construction of new, capital
assets) if such expenditures are made to maintain, including over the long term, the operating capacity, asset base or
income of the Partnership Group.

�Merger Agreement� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 14.1.

�Minimum Quarterly Distribution� means $0.30 per Unit per Quarter (or with respect to the period commencing on the
Closing Date and ending on September 30, 2007, it means the product of $0.30 multiplied by a fraction of which the
numerator is the number of days in such period and of which the denominator is 92), subject to adjustment in
accordance with Sections 5.11, 6.6 and 6.9.
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�National Securities Exchange� means an exchange registered with the Commission under Section 6(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act and any successor to such statute.

�Net Agreed Value� means, (a) in the case of any Contributed Property, the Agreed Value of such property reduced by
any liabilities either assumed by the Partnership upon such contribution or to which such property is subject when
contributed, and (b) in the case of any property distributed to a Partner or Assignee by the Partnership, the
Partnership�s Carrying Value of such property (as adjusted pursuant to Section 5.5(d)(ii)) at the time such property is
distributed, reduced by any indebtedness either assumed by such Partner or Assignee upon such distribution or to
which such property is subject at the time of
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distribution, in either case, as determined under Section 752 of the Code, and (c) in the case of a contribution of
Common Units by the General Partner to the Partnership as a Capital Contribution pursuant to Section 5.2(b), an
amount per Common Unit contributed equal to the Current Market Price per Common Unit as of the date of the
contribution.

�Net Income� means, for any taxable year, the excess, if any, of the Partnership�s items of income and gain (other than
those items taken into account in the computation of Net Termination Gain or Net Termination Loss) for such taxable
year over the Partnership�s items of loss and deduction (other than those items taken into account in the computation of
Net Termination Gain or Net Termination Loss) for such taxable year. The items included in the calculation of Net
Income shall be determined in accordance with Section 5.5(b) and shall not include any items specially allocated
under Section 6.1(d); provided, that the determination of the items that have been specially allocated under
Section 6.1(d) shall be made as if Section 6.1(d)(xii) were not in this Agreement.

�Net Loss� means, for any taxable year, the excess, if any, of the Partnership�s items of loss and deduction (other than
those items taken into account in the computation of Net Termination Gain or Net Termination Loss) for such taxable
year over the Partnership�s items of income and gain (other than those items taken into account in the computation of
Net Termination Gain or Net Termination Loss) for such taxable year. The items included in the calculation of Net
Loss shall be determined in accordance with Section 5.5(b) and shall not include any items specially allocated under
Section 6.1(d); provided, that the determination of the items that have been specially allocated under Section 6.1(d)
shall be made as if Section 6.1(d)(xii) were not in this Agreement.

�Net Positive Adjustments� means, with respect to any Partner, the excess, if any, of the total positive adjustments over
the total negative adjustments made to the Capital Account of such Partner pursuant to Book-Up Events and
Book-Down Events.

�Net Termination Gain� means, for any taxable year, the sum, if positive, of all items of income, gain, loss or deduction
recognized by the Partnership after the Liquidation Date. The items included in the determination of Net Termination
Gain shall be determined in accordance with Section 5.5(b) and shall not include any items of income, gain or loss
specially allocated under Section 6.1(d).

�Net Termination Loss� means, for any taxable year, the sum, if negative, of all items of income, gain, loss or deduction
recognized by the Partnership after the Liquidation Date. The items included in the determination of Net Termination
Loss shall be determined in accordance with Section 5.5(b) and shall not include any items of income, gain or loss
specially allocated under Section 6.1(d).

�Non-citizen Assignee� means a Person whom the General Partner has determined does not constitute an Eligible Citizen
and as to whose Partnership Interest the General Partner has become the Substituted Limited Partner, pursuant to
Section 4.9.

�Nonrecourse Built-in Gain� means with respect to any Contributed Properties or Adjusted Properties that are subject to
a mortgage or pledge securing a Nonrecourse Liability, the amount of any taxable gain that would be allocated to the
Partners pursuant to Sections 6.2(b)(i)(A), 6.2(b)(ii)(A) and 6.2(b)(iii) if such properties were disposed of in a taxable
transaction in full satisfaction of such liabilities and for no other consideration.

�Nonrecourse Deductions� means any and all items of loss, deduction or expenditure (including any expenditure
described in Section 705(a)(2)(B) of the Code) that, in accordance with the principles of Treasury
Regulation Section 1.704-2(b), are attributable to a Nonrecourse Liability.

�Nonrecourse Liability� has the meaning set forth in Treasury Regulation Section 1.752-1(a)(2).
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�Notice of Election to Purchase� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 15.1(b).

�Omnibus Agreement� means that certain Omnibus Agreement, dated as of the Closing Date, among Spectra Energy
Corp., the General Partner and the Partnership, as such agreement may be amended, supplemented or restated from
time to time.
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�Operating Expenditures� means all Partnership Group cash expenditures (or the Partnership�s proportionate share of
expenditures in the case of Subsidiaries that are not wholly owned), including, but not limited to, taxes,
reimbursements of the General Partner, interest payments, payments made in the ordinary course of business under
Interest Rate Hedge Contracts and Commodity Hedge Contracts, Maintenance Capital Expenditures, non-Pro Rata
repurchases of Units (other than those made with the proceeds of an Interim Capital Transaction), subject to the
following:

(a) payments (including prepayments and prepayment penalties) of principal of and premium on indebtedness shall
not constitute Operating Expenditures; and

(b) Operating Expenditures shall not include (i) Expansion Capital Expenditures, (ii) payment of transaction expenses
(including taxes) relating to Interim Capital Transactions or (iii) distributions to Partners. Where capital expenditures
consist of both Maintenance Capital Expenditures and Expansion Capital Expenditures, the General Partner, with the
concurrence of the Conflicts Committee, shall determine the allocation between the portion consisting of Maintenance
Capital Expenditures and the portion consisting of Expansion Capital Expenditures.

�Operating Partnership� means Spectra Energy Partners OLP, LP, a Delaware limited partnership, and any successors
thereto.

�Operating Surplus� means, with respect to any period ending prior to the Liquidation Date, on a cumulative basis and
without duplication,

(a) the sum of

(i) an amount equal to the sum of (A) two times the amount needed for any one Quarter for the Partnership to pay the
minimum quarterly distribution on all Units (including the General Partner Units) and (B) two times the amount in
excess of the minimum quarterly distribution for any quarter to pay a distribution on all Common Units at the same
per unit amount as was distributed on the Common Units in excess of the minimum quarterly distribution in the
immediately preceding quarter, provided the amount in (B) will be deemed to be Operating Surplus only to the extent
that the distribution paid in respect of such amounts is paid on Common Units (or with respect to the period
commencing on the Closing Date and ending on September 30, 2007, it means the product of (x) $0.60 multiplied by
(C) a fraction of which the numerator is the number of days in such period and the denominator is 92 multiplied by
(D) the number of Units and General Partner Units Outstanding on the Record Date with respect to such period), and

(ii) all cash receipts of the Partnership Group (or the Partnership�s proportionate share of cash receipts in the case of
Subsidiaries that are not wholly owned) for the period beginning on the Closing Date and ending on the last day of
such period, but excluding cash receipts from Interim Capital Transactions (except to the extent specified in
Section 6.5 and provided that cash receipts from the termination of a Commodity Hedge Contract or an Interest Rate
Hedge Contract prior to its specified termination date shall be included in Operating Surplus in equal quarterly
installments over the remaining scheduled life of such Commodity Hedge Contract or Interest Rate Hedge Contract),
less

(b) the sum of (i) Operating Expenditures for the period beginning on the Closing Date and ending on the last day of
such period and (ii) the amount of cash reserves (or the Partnership�s proportionate share of cash reserves in the case of
Subsidiaries that are not wholly owned) established by the General Partner to provide funds for future Operating
Expenditures; provided, however, that disbursements made (including contributions to a Group Member or
disbursements on behalf of a Group Member) or cash reserves established, increased or reduced after the end of such
period but on or before the date of determination of Available Cash with respect to such period shall be deemed to
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have been made, established, increased or reduced, for purposes of determining Operating Surplus, within such period
if the General Partner so determines.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, �Operating Surplus� with respect to the Quarter in which the Liquidation Date occurs
and any subsequent Quarter shall equal zero.

�Opinion of Counsel� means a written opinion of counsel (who may be regular counsel to the Partnership or the General
Partner or any of its Affiliates) acceptable to the General Partner.
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�Option Closing Date� means the date or dates on which any Common Units are sold by the Partnership to the
Underwriters upon exercise of the Over-Allotment Option.

�Organizational Limited Partner� means Spectra Energy Transmission, LLC in its capacity as the organizational limited
partner of the Partnership pursuant to this Agreement.

�Outstanding� means, with respect to Partnership Securities, all Partnership Securities that are issued by the Partnership
and reflected as outstanding on the Partnership�s books and records as of the date of determination; provided, however,
that if at any time any Person or Group (other than the General Partner or its Affiliates) beneficially owns 20% or
more of the Outstanding Partnership Securities of any class then Outstanding, all Partnership Securities owned by
such Person or Group shall not be voted on any matter and shall not be considered to be Outstanding when sending
notices of a meeting of Limited Partners to vote on any matter (unless otherwise required by law), calculating required
votes, determining the presence of a quorum or for other similar purposes under this Agreement, except that Units so
owned shall be considered to be Outstanding for purposes of Section 11.1(b)(iv) (such Units shall not, however, be
treated as a separate class of Partnership Securities for purposes of this Agreement); provided, further, that the
foregoing limitation shall not apply to (i) any Person or Group who acquired 20% or more of the Outstanding
Partnership Securities of any class then Outstanding directly from the General Partner or its Affiliates, (ii) any Person
or Group who acquired 20% or more of the Outstanding Partnership Securities of any class then Outstanding directly
or indirectly from a Person or Group described in clause (i) provided that the General Partner shall have notified such
Person or Group in writing that such limitation shall not apply, or (iii) any Person or Group who acquired 20% or
more of any Partnership Securities issued by the Partnership with the prior approval of the Board of Directors of the
General Partner.

�Over-Allotment Option� means the over-allotment option granted to the Underwriters by the Partnership pursuant to the
Underwriting Agreement.

�Partner Nonrecourse Debt� has the meaning set forth in Treasury Regulation Section 1.704-2(b)(4).

�Partner Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain� has the meaning set forth in Treasury Regulation Section 1.704-2(i)(2).

�Partner Nonrecourse Deductions� means any and all items of loss, deduction or expenditure (including any
expenditure described in Section 705(a)(2)(B) of the Code) that, in accordance with the principles of Treasury
Regulation Section 1.704-2(i), are attributable to a Partner Nonrecourse Debt.

�Partners� means the General Partner and the Limited Partners.

�Partnership� means Spectra Energy Partners, LP, a Delaware limited partnership.

�Partnership Group� means the Partnership and its Subsidiaries treated as a single consolidated entity.

�Partnership Interest� means an interest in the Partnership, which shall include the General Partner Interest and Limited
Partner Interests.

�Partnership Minimum Gain� means that amount determined in accordance with the principles of Treasury
Regulation Section 1.704-2(d).

�Partnership Security� means any class or series of equity interest in the Partnership (but excluding any options, rights,
warrants and appreciation rights relating to an equity interest in the Partnership), including Common Units, Class B
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Units, Subordinated Units, General Partner Units and Incentive Distribution Rights.

�Per Unit Capital Amount� means, as of any date of determination, the Capital Account, stated on a per Unit basis,
underlying any Unit held by a Person other than the General Partner or any Affiliate of the General Partner who holds
Units.

�Percentage Interest� means as of any date of determination (a) as to the General Partner with respect to General Partner
Units and as to any Unitholder or Assignee holding Units, the product obtained by multiplying (i) 100% less the
percentage applicable to clause (b) below by (ii) the quotient obtained by
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dividing (A) the number of General Partner Units held by the General Partner or the number of Units held by such
Unitholder or Assignee, as the case may be, by (B) the total number of all Outstanding Units and General Partner
Units, and (b) as to the holders of other Partnership Securities issued by the Partnership in accordance with
Section 5.6, the percentage established as a part of such issuance. The Percentage Interest with respect to an Incentive
Distribution Right shall at all times be zero.

�Person� means an individual or a corporation, firm, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, trust,
unincorporated organization, association, government agency or political subdivision thereof or other entity.

�Pro Rata� means (a) when used with respect to Units or any class thereof, apportioned equally among all designated
Units in accordance with their relative Percentage Interests, (b) when used with respect to Partners and Assignees or
Record Holders, apportioned among all Partners and Assignees or Record Holders in accordance with their relative
Percentage Interests and (c) when used with respect to holders of Incentive Distribution Rights, apportioned equally
among all holders of Incentive Distribution Rights in accordance with the relative number or percentage of Incentive
Distribution Rights held by each such holder.

�Purchase Date� means the date determined by the General Partner as the date for purchase of all Outstanding Limited
Partner Interests of a certain class (other than Limited Partner Interests owned by the General Partner and its
Affiliates) pursuant to Article XV.

�Quarter� means, unless the context requires otherwise, a fiscal quarter of the Partnership, or, with respect to the fiscal
quarter of the Partnership which includes the Closing Date, the portion of such fiscal quarter after the Closing Date.

�Recapture Income� means any gain recognized by the Partnership (computed without regard to any adjustment required
by Section 734 or Section 743 of the Code) upon the disposition of any property or asset of the Partnership, which
gain is characterized as ordinary income because it represents the recapture of deductions previously taken with
respect to such property or asset.

�Record Date� means the date established by the General Partner or otherwise in accordance with this Agreement for
determining (a) the identity of the Record Holders entitled to notice of, or to vote at, any meeting of Limited Partners
or entitled to vote by ballot or give approval of Partnership action in writing without a meeting or entitled to exercise
rights in respect of any lawful action of Limited Partners or (b) the identity of Record Holders entitled to receive any
report or distribution or to participate in any offer.

�Record Holder� means the Person in whose name a Common Unit is registered on the books of the Transfer Agent as
of the opening of business on a particular Business Day, or with respect to other Partnership Interests, the Person in
whose name any such other Partnership Interest is registered on the books that the General Partner has caused to be
kept as of the opening of business on such Business Day.

�Redeemable Interests� means any Partnership Interests for which a redemption notice has been given, and has not been
withdrawn, pursuant to Section 4.10.

�Registration Statement� means the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-141687) as it has been or as it
may be amended or supplemented from time to time, filed by the Partnership with the Commission under the
Securities Act to register the offering and sale of the Common Units in the Initial Offering.

�Remaining Net Positive Adjustments� means as of the end of any taxable period, (i) with respect to the Unitholders
holding Common Units, Class B Units or Subordinated Units, the excess of (a) the Net Positive Adjustments of the
Unitholders holding Common Units, Class B Units or Subordinated Units as of the end of such period over (b) the
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sum of those Partners� Share of Additional Book Basis Derivative Items for each prior taxable period, (ii) with respect
to the General Partner (as holder of the General Partner Units), the excess of (a) the Net Positive Adjustments of the
General Partner as of the end of such period over (b) the sum of the General Partner�s Share of Additional Book Basis
Derivative Items with respect to the General Partner Units for each prior taxable period, and (iii) with respect to the
holders of Incentive
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Distribution Rights, the excess of (a) the Net Positive Adjustments of the holders of Incentive Distribution Rights as
of the end of such period over (b) the sum of the Share of Additional Book Basis Derivative Items of the holders of
the Incentive Distribution Rights for each prior taxable period.

�Required Allocations� means (a) any limitation imposed on any allocation of Net Losses or Net Termination Losses
under Section 6.1(b) or Section 6.1(c)(ii) and (b) any allocation of an item of income, gain, loss or deduction pursuant
to Section 6.1(d)(i), Section 6.1(d)(ii), Section 6.1(d)(iv), Section 6.1(d)(vii) or Section 6.1(d)(ix).

�Residual Gain� or �Residual Loss� means any item of gain or loss, as the case may be, of the Partnership recognized for
federal income tax purposes resulting from a sale, exchange or other disposition of a Contributed Property or Adjusted
Property, to the extent such item of gain or loss is not allocated pursuant to Section 6.2(b)(i)(A) or
Section 6.2(b)(ii)(A), respectively, to eliminate Book-Tax Disparities.

�Reset MQD� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 5.11(e).

�Reset Notice� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 5.11(b).

�Retained Converted Subordinated Unit� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 5.5(c)(ii).

�Second Liquidation Target Amount� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.1(c)(i)(F).

�Second Target Distribution� means $0.375 per Unit per Quarter (or, with respect to the period commencing on the
Closing Date and ending on September 30, 2007, it means the product of $0.375 multiplied by a fraction of which the
numerator is equal to the number of days in such period and of which the denominator is 92), subject to adjustment in
accordance with Section 5.11, Section 6.6 and Section 6.9.

�Securities Act� means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, supplemented or restated from time to time and any
successor to such statute.

�Securities Exchange Act� means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, supplemented or restated from time
to time and any successor to such statute.

�Share of Additional Book Basis Derivative Items� means in connection with any allocation of Additional Book Basis
Derivative Items for any taxable period, (i) with respect to the Unitholders holding Common Units, Class B Units or
Subordinated Units, the amount that bears the same ratio to such Additional Book Basis Derivative Items as the
Unitholders� Remaining Net Positive Adjustments as of the end of such period bears to the Aggregate Remaining Net
Positive Adjustments as of that time, (ii) with respect to the General Partner (as holder of the General Partner Units),
the amount that bears the same ratio to such Additional Book Basis Derivative Items as the General Partner�s
Remaining Net Positive Adjustments as of the end of such period bears to the Aggregate Remaining Net Positive
Adjustment as of that time, and (iii) with respect to the Partners holding Incentive Distribution Rights, the amount that
bears the same ratio to such Additional Book Basis Derivative Items as the Remaining Net Positive Adjustments of
the Partners holding the Incentive Distribution Rights as of the end of such period bears to the Aggregate Remaining
Net Positive Adjustments as of that time.

�Special Approval� means approval by a majority of the members of the Conflicts Committee.

�Subordinated Unit� means a Partnership Security representing a fractional part of the Partnership Interests of all
Limited Partners and Assignees and having the rights and obligations specified with respect to Subordinated Units in
this Agreement. The term �Subordinated Unit� does not include a Common Unit or Class B Unit. A Subordinated Unit
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that is convertible into a Common Unit shall not constitute a Common Unit until such conversion occurs.

�Subordination Period� means the period commencing on the Closing Date and ending on the first to occur of:

(a) the first date on which there are no longer outstanding any Subordinated Units due to the conversion of
Subordinated Units into Common Units pursuant to Section 5.7 or otherwise; and
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(b) the date on which the General Partner is removed as general partner of the Partnership upon the requisite vote by
holders of Outstanding Units under circumstances where Cause does not exist and Units held by the General Partner
and its Affiliates are not voted in favor of such removal.

�Subsidiary� means, with respect to any Person, (a) a corporation of which more than 50% of the voting power of shares
entitled (without regard to the occurrence of any contingency) to vote in the election of directors or other governing
body of such corporation is owned, directly or indirectly, at the date of determination, by such Person, by one or more
Subsidiaries of such Person or a combination thereof, (b) a partnership (whether general or limited) in which such
Person or a Subsidiary of such Person is, at the date of determination, a general or limited partner of such partnership,
but only if more than 50% of the partnership interests of such partnership (considering all of the partnership interests
of the partnership as a single class) is owned, directly or indirectly, at the date of determination, by such Person, by
one or more Subsidiaries of such Person, or a combination thereof, or (c) any other Person (other than a corporation or
a partnership) in which such Person, one or more Subsidiaries of such Person, or a combination thereof, directly or
indirectly, at the date of determination, has (i) at least a majority ownership interest or (ii) the power to elect or direct
the election of a majority of the directors or other governing body of such Person.

�Substituted Limited Partner� means a Person who is admitted as a Limited Partner to the Partnership pursuant to
Section 10.2 in place of and with all the rights of a Limited Partner and who is shown as a Limited Partner on the
books and records of the Partnership.

�Surviving Business Entity� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 14.2(b).

�Target Distributions� means, collectively, the First Target Distribution, Second Target Distribution and Third Target
Distribution.

�Taxation Certification� means a properly completed certificate in such form or forms as may be specified by the
General Partner by which a Limited Partner or Assignee certifies that he (and if he is a nominee holding for the
account of another Person, that to the best of his knowledge such other Person) is an Eligible Holder and includes a
Transfer Application containing such a certification.

�Third Liquidation Target Amount� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.1(c)(i)(G).

�Third Target Distribution� means $0.45 per Unit per Quarter (or, with respect to the period commencing on the
Closing Date and ending on September 30, 2007, it means the product of $0.45 multiplied by a fraction of which the
numerator is equal to the number of days in such period and of which the denominator is 92), subject to adjustment in
accordance with Sections 5.11, 6.6 and 6.9.

�Trading Day� means, for the purpose of determining the Current Market Price of any class of Limited Partner Interests,
a day on which the principal National Securities Exchange on which such class of Limited Partner Interests are listed
is open for the transaction of business or, if Limited Partner Interests of a class are not listed on any National
Securities Exchange, a day on which banking institutions in New York City generally are open.

�transfer� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 4.4(a).

�Transfer Agent� means such bank, trust company or other Person (including the General Partner or one of its Affiliates)
as shall be appointed from time to time by the General Partner to act as registrar and transfer agent for the Common
Units; provided, that if no Transfer Agent is specifically designated for any other Partnership Securities, the General
Partner shall act in such capacity.

Edgar Filing: OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORP - Form 4

Table of Contents 137
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Certificate or in a form substantially to the same effect in a separate instrument.

�Underwriter� means each Person named as an underwriter in Schedule I to the Underwriting Agreement who purchases
Common Units pursuant thereto.
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�Underwriting Agreement� means that certain Underwriting Agreement dated as of June 26, 2007 among the
Underwriters, the Partnership, the General Partner and the other parties thereto, providing for the purchase of
Common Units by the Underwriters.

�Unit� means a Partnership Security that is designated as a �Unit� and shall include Common Units, Class B Units and
Subordinated Units but shall not include (i) General Partner Units (or the General Partner Interest represented thereby)
or (ii) Incentive Distribution Rights.

�Unit Majority� means (i) during the Subordination Period, at least a majority of the Outstanding Common Units
(excluding Common Units owned by the General Partner and its Affiliates), voting as a class, and at least a majority
of the Outstanding Subordinated Units, voting as a class, and (ii) after the end of the Subordination Period, at least a
majority of the Outstanding Common Units and Class B Units, if any, voting as a single class.

�Unitholders� means the holders of Units.

�Unpaid MQD� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 6.1(c)(i)(B).

�Unrealized Gain� attributable to any item of Partnership property means, as of any date of determination, the excess, if
any, of (a) the fair market value of such property as of such date (as determined under Section 5.5(d)) over (b) the
Carrying Value of such property as of such date (prior to any adjustment to be made pursuant to Section 5.5(d) as of
such date).

�Unrealized Loss� attributable to any item of Partnership property means, as of any date of determination, the excess, if
any, of (a) the Carrying Value of such property as of such date (prior to any adjustment to be made pursuant to
Section 5.5(d) as of such date) over (b) the fair market value of such property as of such date (as determined under
Section 5.5(d)).

�Unrecovered Initial Unit Price� means at any time, with respect to a Unit, the Initial Unit Price less the sum of all
distributions constituting Capital Surplus theretofore made in respect of an Initial Common Unit and any distributions
of cash (or the Net Agreed Value of any distributions in kind) in connection with the dissolution and liquidation of the
Partnership theretofore made in respect of an Initial Common Unit, adjusted as the General Partner determines to be
appropriate to give effect to any distribution, subdivision or combination of such Units.

�U.S. GAAP� means United States generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied.

�Withdrawal Opinion of Counsel� has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 11.1(b).

Section 1.2  Construction.

Unless the context requires otherwise: (a) any pronoun used in this Agreement shall include the corresponding
masculine, feminine or neuter forms, and the singular form of nouns, pronouns and verbs shall include the plural and
vice versa; (b) references to Articles and Sections refer to Articles and Sections of this Agreement; (c) the terms
�include�, �includes�, �including� or words of like import shall be deemed to be followed by the words �without limitation�;
and (d) the terms �hereof�, �herein� or �hereunder� refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of
this Agreement. The and headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only, and shall not affect in
any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

ARTICLE II
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Section 2.1  Formation.

The General Partner and the Organizational Limited Partner have previously formed the Partnership as a limited
partnership pursuant to the provisions of the Delaware Act and hereby amend and restate the original Agreement of
Limited Partnership of Spectra Energy Partners, LP in its entirety. This amendment and
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restatement shall become effective on the date of this Agreement. Except as expressly provided to the contrary in this
Agreement, the rights, duties (including fiduciary duties), liabilities and obligations of the Partners and the
administration, dissolution and termination of the Partnership shall be governed by the Delaware Act. All
Partnership Interests shall constitute personal property of the owner thereof for all purposes.

Section 2.2  Name.

The name of the Partnership shall be �Spectra Energy Partners, LP�. The Partnership�s business may be conducted under
any other name or names as determined by the General Partner, including the name of the General Partner. The words
�Limited Partnership,� �LP,� �Ltd.� or similar words or letters shall be included in the Partnership�s name where necessary
for the purpose of complying with the laws of any jurisdiction that so requires. The General Partner may change the
name of the Partnership at any time and from time to time and shall notify the Limited Partners of such change in the
next regular communication to the Limited Partners.

Section 2.3  Registered Office; Registered Agent; Principal Office; Other Offices

Unless and until changed by the General Partner, the registered office of the Partnership in the State of Delaware shall
be located at 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, New Castle County, Delaware 19801, and the registered agent for
service of process on the Partnership in the State of Delaware at such registered office shall be The Corporation Trust
Company. The principal office of the Partnership shall be located at 5400 Westheimer Court, Houston, Texas 77056,
or such other place as the General Partner may from time to time designate by notice to the Limited Partners. The
Partnership may maintain offices at such other place or places within or outside the State of Delaware as the General
Partner shall determine necessary or appropriate. The address of the General Partner shall be 5400 Westheimer Court,
Houston, Texas 77056, or such other place as the General Partner may from time to time designate by notice to the
Limited Partners.

Section 2.4  Purpose and Business.

The purpose and nature of the business to be conducted by the Partnership shall be to (a) engage directly in, or enter
into or form, hold and dispose of any corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company or other
arrangement to engage indirectly in, any business activity that is approved by the General Partner and that lawfully
may be conducted by a limited partnership organized pursuant to the Delaware Act and, in connection therewith, to
exercise all of the rights and powers conferred upon the Partnership pursuant to the agreements relating to such
business activity, and (b) do anything necessary or appropriate to the foregoing, including the making of capital
contributions or loans to a Group Member; provided, however, that the General Partner shall not cause the Partnership
to engage, directly or indirectly, in any business activity that the General Partner determines would cause the
Partnership to be treated as an association taxable as a corporation or otherwise taxable as an entity for federal income
tax purposes. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the General Partner shall have no duty or obligation to propose or
approve, and may decline to propose or approve, the conduct by the Partnership of any business free of any fiduciary
duty or obligation whatsoever to the Partnership, any Limited Partner or any Assignee and, in declining to so propose
or approve, shall not be required to act in good faith or pursuant to any other standard imposed by this Agreement, any
Group Member Agreement, any other agreement contemplated hereby or under the Delaware Act or any other law,
rule or regulation or at equity.

Section 2.5  Powers.

The Partnership shall be empowered to do any and all acts and things necessary or appropriate for the furtherance and
accomplishment of the purposes and business described in Section 2.4 and for the protection and benefit of the
Partnership.
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(a) Each Limited Partner and each Assignee hereby constitutes and appoints the General Partner and, if a Liquidator
shall have been selected pursuant to Section 12.3, the Liquidator (and any successor to the Liquidator by merger,
transfer, assignment, election or otherwise) and each of their authorized officers and
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attorneys-in-fact, as the case may be, with full power of substitution, as his true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact,
with full power and authority in his name, place and stead, to:

(i) execute, swear to, acknowledge, deliver, file and record in the appropriate public offices (A) all certificates,
documents and other instruments (including this Agreement and the Certificate of Limited Partnership and all
amendments or restatements hereof or thereof) that the General Partner or the Liquidator determines to be necessary
or appropriate to form, qualify or continue the existence or qualification of the Partnership as a limited partnership (or
a partnership in which the limited partners have limited liability) in the State of Delaware and in all other jurisdictions
in which the Partnership may conduct business or own property; (B) all certificates, documents and other instruments
that the General Partner or the Liquidator determines to be necessary or appropriate to reflect, in accordance with its
terms, any amendment, change, modification or restatement of this Agreement; (C) all certificates, documents and
other instruments (including conveyances and a certificate of cancellation) that the General Partner or the Liquidator
determines to be necessary or appropriate to reflect the dissolution and liquidation of the Partnership pursuant to the
terms of this Agreement; (D) all certificates, documents and other instruments relating to the admission, withdrawal,
removal or substitution of any Partner pursuant to, or other events described in, Article IV, Article X, Article XI or
Article XII; (E) all certificates, documents and other instruments relating to the determination of the rights,
preferences and privileges of any class or series of Partnership Securities issued pursuant to Section 5.6; and (F) all
certificates, documents and other instruments (including agreements and a certificate of merger or conversion) relating
to a merger, consolidation or conversion of the Partnership pursuant to Article XIV; and

(ii) execute, swear to, acknowledge, deliver, file and record all ballots, consents, approvals, waivers, certificates,
documents and other instruments that the General Partner or the Liquidator determines to be necessary or appropriate
to (A) make, evidence, give, confirm or ratify any vote, consent, approval, agreement or other action that is made or
given by the Partners hereunder or is consistent with the terms of this Agreement or (B) effectuate the terms or intent
of this Agreement; provided, that when required by Section 13.3 or any other provision of this Agreement that
establishes a percentage of the Limited Partners or of the Limited Partners of any class or series required to take any
action, the General Partner and the Liquidator may exercise the power of attorney made in this Section 2.6(a)(ii) only
after the necessary vote, consent or approval of the Limited Partners or of the Limited Partners of such class or series,
as applicable.

Nothing contained in this Section 2.6(a) shall be construed as authorizing the General Partner to amend this
Agreement except in accordance with Article XIII or as may be otherwise expressly provided for in this Agreement.

(b) The foregoing power of attorney is hereby declared to be irrevocable and a power coupled with an interest, and it
shall survive and, to the maximum extent permitted by law, not be affected by, the subsequent death, incompetency,
disability, incapacity, dissolution, bankruptcy or termination of any Limited Partner or Assignee and the transfer of all
or any portion of such Limited Partner�s or Assignee�s Partnership Interest and shall extend to such Limited Partner�s or
Assignee�s heirs, successors, assigns and personal representatives. Each such Limited Partner or Assignee hereby
agrees to be bound by any representation made by the General Partner or the Liquidator acting in good faith pursuant
to such power of attorney; and each such Limited Partner or Assignee, to the maximum extent permitted by law,
hereby waives any and all defenses that may be available to contest, negate or disaffirm the action of the General
Partner or the Liquidator taken in good faith under such power of attorney. Each Limited Partner or Assignee shall
execute and deliver to the General Partner or the Liquidator, within 15 days after receipt of the request therefor, such
further designation, powers of attorney and other instruments as the General Partner or the Liquidator may request in
order to effectuate this Agreement and the purposes of the Partnership.
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Section 2.7  Term.

The term of the Partnership commenced upon the filing of the Certificate of Limited Partnership in accordance with
the Delaware Act and shall continue in existence until the dissolution of the Partnership in accordance with the
provisions of Article XII. The existence of the Partnership as a separate legal entity shall continue until the
cancellation of the Certificate of Limited Partnership as provided in the Delaware Act.

Section 2.8  Title to Partnership Assets.

Title to Partnership assets, whether real, personal or mixed and whether tangible or intangible, shall be deemed to be
owned by the Partnership as an entity, and no Partner or Assignee, individually or collectively, shall have any
ownership interest in such Partnership assets or any portion thereof. Title to any or all of the Partnership assets may be
held in the name of the Partnership, the General Partner, one or more of its Affiliates or one or more nominees, as the
General Partner may determine. The General Partner hereby declares and warrants that any Partnership assets for
which record title is held in the name of the General Partner or one or more of its Affiliates or one or more nominees
shall be held by the General Partner or such Affiliate or nominee for the use and benefit of the Partnership in
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement; provided, however, that the General Partner shall use reasonable
efforts to cause record title to such assets (other than those assets in respect of which the General Partner determines
that the expense and difficulty of conveyancing makes transfer of record title to the Partnership impracticable) to be
vested in the Partnership as soon as reasonably practicable; provided, further, that, prior to the withdrawal or removal
of the General Partner or as soon thereafter as practicable, the General Partner shall use reasonable efforts to effect the
transfer of record title to the Partnership and, prior to any such transfer, will provide for the use of such assets in a
manner satisfactory to the General Partner. All Partnership assets shall be recorded as the property of the Partnership
in its books and records, irrespective of the name in which record title to such Partnership assets is held.

ARTICLE III

RIGHTS OF LIMITED PARTNERS

Section 3.1  Limitation of Liability.

The Limited Partners and the Assignees shall have no liability under this Agreement except as expressly provided in
this Agreement or the Delaware Act.

Section 3.2  Management of Business.

No Limited Partner or Assignee, in its capacity as such, shall participate in the operation, management or control
(within the meaning of the Delaware Act) of the Partnership�s business, transact any business in the Partnership�s name
or have the power to sign documents for or otherwise bind the Partnership. Any action taken by any Affiliate of the
General Partner or any officer, director, employee, manager, member, general partner, agent or trustee of the General
Partner or any of its Affiliates, or any officer, director, employee, manager, member, general partner, agent or trustee
of a Group Member, in its capacity as such, shall not be deemed to be participation in the control of the business of the
Partnership by a limited partner of the Partnership (within the meaning of Section 17-303(a) of the Delaware Act) and
shall not affect, impair or eliminate the limitations on the liability of the Limited Partners or Assignees under this
Agreement.

Section 3.3  Outside Activities of the Limited Partners.
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Subject to the provisions of Section 7.5, any Limited Partner or Assignee shall be entitled to and may have business
interests and engage in business activities in addition to those relating to the Partnership, including business interests
and activities in direct competition with the Partnership Group. Neither the Partnership nor any of the other Partners or
Assignees shall have any rights by virtue of this Agreement in any business ventures of any Limited Partner or
Assignee.
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Section 3.4  Rights of Limited Partners.

(a) In addition to other rights provided by this Agreement or by applicable law, and except as limited by
Section 3.4(b), each Limited Partner shall have the right, for a purpose reasonably related to such Limited Partner�s
interest as a Limited Partner in the Partnership, upon reasonable written demand stating the purpose of such demand,
and at such Limited Partner�s own expense:

(i) to obtain true and full information regarding the status of the business and financial condition of the Partnership;

(ii) promptly after its becoming available, to obtain a copy of the Partnership�s federal, state and local income tax
returns for each year;

(iii) to obtain a current list of the name and last known business, residence or mailing address of each Partner;

(iv) to obtain a copy of this Agreement and the Certificate of Limited Partnership and all amendments thereto,
together with copies of the executed copies of all powers of attorney pursuant to which this Agreement, the Certificate
of Limited Partnership and all amendments thereto have been executed;

(v) to obtain true and full information regarding the amount of cash and a description and statement of the Net Agreed
Value of any other Capital Contribution by each Partner and that each Partner has agreed to contribute in the future,
and the date on which each became a Partner; and

(vi) to obtain such other information regarding the affairs of the Partnership as is just and reasonable.

(b) The General Partner may keep confidential from the Limited Partners and Assignees, for such period of time as the
General Partner deems reasonable, (i) any information that the General Partner reasonably believes to be in the nature
of trade secrets or (ii) other information the disclosure of which the General Partner in good faith believes (A) is not in
the best interests of the Partnership Group, (B) could damage the Partnership Group or its business or (C) that any
Group Member is required by law or by agreement with any third party to keep confidential (other than agreements
with Affiliates of the Partnership the primary purpose of which is to circumvent the obligations set forth in this
Section 3.4).

ARTICLE IV

CERTIFICATES; RECORD HOLDERS; TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS;
REDEMPTION OF PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS

Section 4.1  Certificates.

Upon the Partnership�s issuance of Common Units, Subordinated Units or Class B Units to any Person, the Partnership
shall issue, upon the request of such Person, one or more Certificates in the name of such Person (or, if issued in
global form, in the name of the Depositary or its nominee) evidencing the number of such Units being so issued. In
addition, (a) upon the General Partner�s request, the Partnership shall issue to it one or more Certificates in the name of
the General Partner evidencing its General Partner Units and (b) upon the request of any Person owning Incentive
Distribution Rights or any other Partnership Securities other than Common Units, Subordinated Units or Class B
Units, the Partnership shall issue to such Person one or more certificates evidencing such Incentive Distribution Rights
or other Partnership Securities other than Common Units, Subordinated Units or Class B Units. Certificates shall be
executed on behalf of the Partnership by the Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief
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Financial Officer or any Vice President and the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, or other authorized officer or
director of the General Partner. No Common Unit Certificate shall be valid for any purpose until it has been
countersigned by the Transfer Agent; provided, however, the Units may be certificated or uncertificated as provided in
the Delaware Act; provided, further, that if the General Partner elects to issue Common Units in global form, the
Common Unit Certificates shall be valid upon receipt of a certificate from the Transfer Agent certifying that
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the Common Units have been duly registered in accordance with the directions of the Partnership. Subject to the
requirements of Section 6.7(b) and Section 6.7(c), the Partners holding Certificates evidencing Subordinated Units
may exchange such Certificates for Certificates evidencing Common Units on or after the date on which such
Subordinated Units are converted into Common Units pursuant to the terms of Section 5.7. Subject to the
requirements of Section 6.7(e), the Partners holding Certificates evidencing Class B Units may exchange such
Certificates for Certificates evidencing Common Units on or after the period set forth in Section 5.11(f) pursuant to
the terms of Section 5.11.

Section 4.2  Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost or Stolen Certificates.

(a) If any mutilated Certificate is surrendered to the Transfer Agent (for Common Units) or the General Partner (for
Partnership Securities other than Common Units), the appropriate officers of the General Partner on behalf of the
Partnership shall execute, and the Transfer Agent (for Common Units) or the General Partner (for Partnership
Securities other than Common Units) shall countersign and deliver in exchange therefor, a new Certificate evidencing
the same number and type of Partnership Securities as the Certificate so surrendered.

(b) The appropriate officers of the General Partner on behalf of the Partnership shall execute and deliver, and the
Transfer Agent (for Common Units) shall countersign, a new Certificate in place of any Certificate previously issued,
or issue uncertificated Common Units, if the Record Holder of the Certificate:

(i) makes proof by affidavit, in form and substance satisfactory to the General Partner, that a previously issued
Certificate has been lost, destroyed or stolen;

(ii) requests the issuance of a new Certificate or the issuance of uncertificated Units before the General Partner has
notice that the Certificate has been acquired by a purchaser for value in good faith and without notice of an adverse
claim;

(iii) if requested by the General Partner, delivers to the General Partner a bond, in form and substance satisfactory to
the General Partner, with surety or sureties and with fixed or open penalty as the General Partner may direct to
indemnify the Partnership, the Partners, the General Partner and the Transfer Agent against any claim that may be
made on account of the alleged loss, destruction or theft of the Certificate; and

(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the General Partner.

If a Limited Partner or Assignee fails to notify the General Partner within a reasonable period of time after he has
notice of the loss, destruction or theft of a Certificate, and a transfer of the Limited Partner Interests represented by the
Certificate is registered before the Partnership, the General Partner or the Transfer Agent receives such notification,
the Limited Partner or Assignee shall be precluded from making any claim against the Partnership, the General
Partner or the Transfer Agent for such transfer or for a new Certificate or uncertificated Units.

(c) As a condition to the issuance of any new Certificate or uncertificated Units under this Section 4.2, the General
Partner may require the payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be
imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses (including the fees and expenses of the Transfer Agent) reasonably
connected therewith.

Section 4.3  Record Holders.

The Partnership shall be entitled to recognize the Record Holder as the Partner or Assignee with respect to any
Partnership Interest and, accordingly, shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to, or interest in,
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other notice thereof, except as otherwise provided by law or any applicable rule, regulation, guideline or requirement
of any National Securities Exchange on which such Partnership Interests are listed or admitted to trading. Without
limiting the foregoing, when a Person (such as a broker, dealer, bank, trust company or clearing corporation or an
agent of any of the foregoing) is acting as nominee, agent or in some other representative capacity for another Person
in acquiring and/or holding
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Partnership Interests, as between the Partnership on the one hand, and such other Persons on the other, such
representative Person (a) shall be the Partner or Assignee (as the case may be) of record and beneficially, and (b) shall
be bound by this Agreement and shall have the rights and obligations of a Partner or Assignee (as the case may be)
hereunder and as, and to the extent, provided for herein.

Section 4.4  Transfer Generally.

(a) The term �transfer,� when used in this Agreement with respect to a Partnership Interest, shall be deemed to refer to a
transaction (i) by which the General Partner assigns its General Partner Units to another Person or by which a holder
of Incentive Distribution Rights assigns its Incentive Distribution Rights to another Person, and includes a sale,
assignment, gift, pledge, encumbrance, hypothecation, mortgage, exchange or any other disposition by law or
otherwise or (ii) by which the holder of a Limited Partner Interest (other than an Incentive Distribution Right) assigns
such Limited Partner Interest to another Person who is or becomes a Limited Partner or an Assignee, and includes a
sale, assignment, gift, exchange or any other disposition by law or otherwise, excluding a pledge, encumbrance,
hypothecation or mortgage but including any transfer upon foreclosure of any pledge, encumbrance, hypothecation or
mortgage.

(b) No Partnership Interest shall be transferred, in whole or in part, except in accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth in this Article IV. Any transfer or purported transfer of a Partnership Interest not made in accordance with
this Article IV shall be null and void.

(c) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent a disposition by any stockholder, member,
partner or other owner of the General Partner of any or all of the shares of stock, membership interests, partnership
interests or other ownership interests in the General Partner.

Section 4.5  Registration and Transfer of Limited Partner Interests.

(a) The General Partner shall keep or cause to be kept on behalf of the Partnership a register in which, subject to such
reasonable regulations as it may prescribe and subject to the provisions of Section 4.5(b), the Partnership will provide
for the registration and transfer of Limited Partner Interests. The Transfer Agent is hereby appointed registrar and
transfer agent for the purpose of registering Common Units and transfers of such Common Units as herein provided.
The Partnership shall not recognize transfers of Certificates evidencing Limited Partner Interests unless such transfers
are effected in the manner described in this Section 4.5. Upon surrender of a Certificate for registration of transfer of
any Limited Partner Interests evidenced by a Certificate, and subject to the provisions of Section 4.5(b), the
appropriate officers of the General Partner on behalf of the Partnership shall execute and deliver, and in the case of
Common Units, the Transfer Agent shall countersign and deliver, in the name of the holder or the designated
transferee or transferees, as required pursuant to the holder�s instructions, one or more new Certificates evidencing the
same aggregate number and type of Limited Partner Interests as was evidenced by the Certificate so surrendered.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.9, the General Partner shall not recognize any transfer of Limited
Partner Interests until the Certificates evidencing such Limited Partner Interests are surrendered for registration of
transfer and such Certificates are accompanied by a Transfer Application, properly completed and including a
Taxation Certification, duly executed by the transferee (or the transferee�s attorney-in-fact duly authorized in writing).
No charge shall be imposed by the General Partner for such transfer; provided, that as a condition to the issuance of
any new Certificate under this Section 4.5, the General Partner may require the payment of a sum sufficient to cover
any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed with respect thereto. No distributions or allocations will be
made in respect of the Limited Partner Interests until a properly completed Transfer Application has been delivered
with respect to such Limited Partner Interests.
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the books of the Partnership.
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(d) Limited Partner Interests may be transferred only in the manner described in this Section 4.5. The transfer of any
Limited Partner Interests and the admission of any new Limited Partner shall not constitute an amendment to this
Agreement.

(e) Until admitted as a Substituted Limited Partner pursuant to Section 10.2, the Record Holder of a Limited Partner
Interest shall be an Assignee in respect of such Limited Partner Interest. Limited Partners may include custodians,
nominees or any other individual or entity in its own or any representative capacity.

(f) A transferee of a Limited Partner Interest who has completed and delivered a Transfer Application shall be deemed
to have (i) requested admission as a Substituted Limited Partner, (ii) agreed to comply with and be bound by and to
have executed this Agreement, (iii) represented and warranted that such transferee has the right, power and authority
and, if an individual, the capacity to enter into this Agreement, (iv) granted the powers of attorney set forth in this
Agreement, and (v) given the consents and approvals and made the waivers contained in this Agreement.

(g) The General Partner and its Affiliates shall have the right at any time to transfer their Subordinated Units, Class B
Units and Common Units (whether issued upon conversion of the Subordinated Units or otherwise) to one or more
Persons.

Section 4.6  Transfer of the General Partner�s General Partner Interest.

(a) Subject to Section 4.6(c) below, prior to June 30, 2017, the General Partner shall not transfer all or any part of its
General Partner Interest (represented by General Partner Units) to a Person unless such transfer (i) has been approved
by the prior written consent or vote of the holders of at least a majority of the Outstanding Common Units (excluding
Common Units held by the General Partner and its Affiliates) or (ii) is of all, but not less than all, of its General
Partner Interest to (A) an Affiliate of the General Partner (other than an individual) or (B) another Person (other than
an individual) in connection with the merger or consolidation of the General Partner with or into such other Person or
the transfer by the General Partner of all or substantially all of its assets to such other Person.

(b) Subject to Section 4.6(c) below, on or after June 30, 2017, the General Partner may transfer all or any of its
General Partner Interest without Unitholder approval.

(c) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no transfer by the General Partner of all or any part of its General
Partner Interest to another Person shall be permitted unless (i) the transferee agrees to assume the rights and duties of
the General Partner under this Agreement and to be bound by the provisions of this Agreement, (ii) the Partnership
receives an Opinion of Counsel that such transfer would not result in the loss of limited liability of any Limited
Partner under the Delaware Act or cause the Partnership to be treated as an association taxable as a corporation or
otherwise to be taxed as an entity for federal income tax purposes (to the extent not already so treated or taxed) and
(iii) such transferee also agrees to purchase all (or the appropriate portion thereof, if applicable) of the partnership or
membership interest of the General Partner as the general partner or managing member, if any, of each other Group
Member. In the case of a transfer pursuant to and in compliance with this Section 4.6, the transferee or successor (as
the case may be) shall, subject to compliance with the terms of Section 10.3, be admitted to the Partnership as the
General Partner immediately prior to the transfer of the General Partner Interest, and the business of the Partnership
shall continue without dissolution.

Section 4.7  Transfer of Incentive Distribution Rights.

Prior to June 30, 2017, a holder of Incentive Distribution Rights may transfer any or all of the Incentive Distribution
Rights held by such holder without any consent of the Unitholders to (a) an Affiliate of such holder (other than an
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holder of Incentive Distribution Rights with or into such other Person, (ii) the transfer by such holder of all or
substantially all of its assets to such other Person or (iii) the sale of all the ownership interests in such holder. Any
other transfer of the Incentive Distribution Rights prior to June 30, 2017 shall require the prior approval of holders of
at least a majority of the Outstanding Common Units (excluding Common Units held by the General Partner and its
Affiliates). On
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or after June 30, 2017, the General Partner or any other holder of Incentive Distribution Rights may transfer any or all
of its Incentive Distribution Rights without Unitholder approval. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,
(i) the transfer of Class B Units issued pursuant to Section 5.11, or the transfer of Common Units issued upon
conversion of the Class B Units, shall not be treated as a transfer of all or any part of the Incentive Distribution Rights
and (ii) no transfer of Incentive Distribution Rights to another Person shall be permitted unless the transferee agrees to
be bound by the provisions of this Agreement.

Section 4.8  Restrictions on Transfers.

(a) Except as provided in Section 4.8(e) below, and notwithstanding the other provisions of this Article IV, no transfer
of any Partnership Interests shall be made if such transfer would (i) violate the then applicable federal or state
securities laws or rules and regulations of the Commission, any state securities commission or any other governmental
authority with jurisdiction over such transfer, (ii) terminate the existence or qualification of the Partnership under the
laws of the jurisdiction of its formation, or (iii) cause the Partnership to be treated as an association taxable as a
corporation or otherwise to be taxed as an entity for federal income tax purposes (to the extent not already so treated
or taxed).

(b) The General Partner may impose restrictions on the transfer of Partnership Interests if it receives an Opinion of
Counsel that such restrictions are necessary to avoid a significant risk of the Partnership becoming taxable as a
corporation or otherwise becoming taxable as an entity for federal income tax purposes. The General Partner may
impose such restrictions by amending this Agreement; provided, however, that any amendment that would result in
the delisting or suspension of trading of any class of Limited Partner Interests on the principal National Securities
Exchange on which such class of Limited Partner Interests is then listed or admitted to trading must be approved, prior
to such amendment being effected, by the holders of at least a majority of the Outstanding Limited Partner Interests of
such class.

(c) The transfer of a Subordinated Unit that has converted into a Common Unit shall be subject to the restrictions
imposed by Section 6.7(c).

(d) The transfer of a Class B Unit that has converted into a Common Unit shall be subject to the restrictions imposed
by Section 6.7(e).

(e) Nothing contained in this Article IV, or elsewhere in this Agreement, shall preclude the settlement of any
transactions involving Partnership Interests entered into through the facilities of any National Securities Exchange on
which such Partnership Interests are listed or admitted to trading.

(f) Each certificate evidencing Partnership Interests shall bear a conspicuous legend in substantially the following
form:

THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY ACKNOWLEDGES FOR THE BENEFIT OF SPECTRA ENERGY
PARTNERS, LP THAT THIS SECURITY MAY NOT BE SOLD, OFFERED, RESOLD, PLEDGED OR
OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED IF SUCH TRANSFER WOULD (A) VIOLATE THE THEN APPLICABLE
FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION, ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR ANY OTHER GOVERNMENTAL
AUTHORITY WITH JURISDICTION OVER SUCH TRANSFER, (B) TERMINATE THE EXISTENCE OR
QUALIFICATION OF SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS, LP UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, OR (C) CAUSE SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS, LP TO BE TREATED AS AN ASSOCIATION
TAXABLE AS A CORPORATION OR OTHERWISE TO BE TAXED AS AN ENTITY FOR FEDERAL INCOME
TAX PURPOSES (TO THE EXTENT NOT ALREADY SO TREATED OR TAXED). SPECTRA ENERGY
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ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS ON THE TRANSFER OF THIS SECURITY IF IT RECEIVES AN OPINION OF
COUNSEL THAT SUCH RESTRICTIONS ARE NECESSARY TO AVOID A SIGNIFICANT RISK OF SPECTRA
ENERGY PARTNERS, LP BECOMING TAXABLE AS A CORPORATION OR OTHERWISE BECOMING
TAXABLE AS AN ENTITY
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FOR FEDERAL INCOME TAX PURPOSES. THE RESTRICTIONS SET FORTH ABOVE SHALL NOT
PRECLUDE THE SETTLEMENT OF ANY TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING THIS SECURITY ENTERED INTO
THROUGH THE FACILITIES OF ANY NATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE ON WHICH THIS SECURITY
IS LISTED OR ADMITTED TO TRADING.

Section 4.9  Tax Certifications; Ineligible Holders; Citizenship Certificates; Non-citizen Assignees.

(a) If a transferee of a Limited Partner Interest fails to furnish a properly completed Taxation Certification in a
Transfer Application or if, upon receipt of such Taxation Certification or otherwise, the General Partner determines
that such transferee is not an Eligible Holder, the Limited Partner Interests owned by such transferee shall be subject
to redemption in accordance with the provisions of Section 4.10.

(b) The General Partner may request any Limited Partner or Assignee to furnish to the General Partner, within 30 days
after receipt of such request, an executed Taxation Certification or such other information concerning his federal
income tax status with respect to the income and loss generated by the Partnership (or, if the Limited Partner or
Assignee is a nominee holding for the account of another Person, the federal income tax status of such Person) as the
General Partner may request. If a Limited Partner or Assignee fails to furnish to the General Partner within the
aforementioned 30-day period such Taxation Certification or other requested information or if upon receipt of such
Taxation Certification or other requested information the General Partner determines that a Limited Partner or
Assignee is not an Eligible Holder, the Limited Partner Interests owned by such Limited Partner or Assignee shall be
subject to redemption in accordance with the provisions of Section 4.10. In addition, the General Partner may require
that the status of any such Limited Partner or Assignee be changed to that of an Ineligible Holder and, thereupon, such
Non-citizen Assignee shall cease to be a Partner and shall have no voting rights in respect of his Limited Partner
Interests. The General Partner shall be substituted for such Ineligible Holder as the Limited Partner or Assignee in
respect of the Ineligible Holder�s Limited Partner Interests and shall vote such Limited Partner Interests in accordance
with Section 4.9(b).

(c) If any Group Member is or becomes subject to any federal, state or local law or regulation that the General Partner
determines would create a substantial risk of cancellation or forfeiture of any property in which the Group Member
has an interest based on the nationality, citizenship or other related status of a Limited Partner or Assignee, the
General Partner may request any Limited Partner or Assignee to furnish to the General Partner, within 30 days after
receipt of such request, an executed Citizenship Certification or such other information concerning his nationality,
citizenship or other related status (or, if the Limited Partner or Assignee is a nominee holding for the account of
another Person, the nationality, citizenship or other related status of such Person) as the General Partner may request.
If a Limited Partner or Assignee fails to furnish to the General Partner within the aforementioned 30-day period such
Citizenship Certification or other requested information or if upon receipt of such Citizenship Certification or other
requested information the General Partner determines that a Limited Partner or Assignee is not an Eligible Citizen, the
Limited Partner Interests owned by such Limited Partner or Assignee shall be subject to redemption in accordance
with the provisions of Section 4.10. In addition, the General Partner may require that the status of any such Limited
Partner or Assignee be changed to that of a Non-citizen Assignee and, thereupon, the General Partner shall be
substituted for such Non-citizen Assignee as the Limited Partner in respect of the Non-citizen Assignee�s Limited
Partner Interests.

(d) The General Partner shall, in exercising voting rights in respect of Limited Partner Interests held by it on behalf of
Non-citizen Assignees or Ineligible Holders, distribute the votes in the same ratios as the votes of Partners (including
the General Partner) in respect of Limited Partner Interests other than those of Non-citizen Assignees or Ineligible
Holders are cast, either for, against or abstaining as to the matter.
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distribution in kind pursuant to Section 12.4 but shall be entitled to the cash equivalent thereof, and the Partnership
shall provide cash in exchange for an assignment of the Non-citizen Assignee�s or Ineligible Holder�s share of any
distribution in kind. Such payment and assignment shall be treated for
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Partnership purposes as a purchase by the Partnership from the Non-citizen Assignee or Ineligible Holder of his
Limited Partner Interest (representing his right to receive his share of such distribution in kind).

(f) At any time after an Ineligible Holder can and does certify that it has become an Eligible Holder, such Ineligible
Holder may, upon application to the General Partner, request admission as a Substituted Limited Partner with respect
to any Limited Partner Interests of such Ineligible Holder not redeemed pursuant to Section 4.10, and upon admission
of such Ineligible Holder pursuant to Section 10.2, the General Partner shall cease to be deemed to be the Limited
Partner in respect of such Ineligible Holder�s Limited Partner Interests.

(g) At any time after he can and does certify that he has become an Eligible Citizen, a Non-citizen Assignee may,
upon application to the General Partner, request admission as a Substituted Limited Partner with respect to any
Limited Partner Interests of such Non-citizen Assignee not redeemed pursuant to Section 4.10, and upon admission of
such Non-citizen Assignee pursuant to Section 10.2, the General Partner shall cease to be deemed to be the Limited
Partner in respect of the Non-citizen Assignee�s Limited Partner Interests.

Section 4.10  Redemption of Partnership Interests of Non-citizen and Ineligible Holders.

(a) If at any time a Limited Partner, Assignee or transferee fails to furnish a Citizenship Certification, Taxation
Certification or other information requested within the 30-day period specified in Section 4.9(b) or 4.9(c) or in a
Transfer Application, or if upon receipt of such Citizenship Certification, Taxation Certification, Transfer Application
or other information the General Partner determines, with the advice of counsel, that a Limited Partner, Assignee or
transferee is not an Eligible Citizen or Eligible Holder, as the case may be, the Partnership may, unless the Limited
Partner, Assignee or transferee establishes to the satisfaction of the General Partner that such Limited Partner,
Assignee or transferee is an Eligible Citizen or Eligible Holder, as the case may be, or has transferred his Partnership
Interests to a Person who is an Eligible Citizen or Eligible Holder, as the case may be, and who furnishes a Citizenship
Certification or Taxation Certificate, as the case may be, to the General Partner prior to the date fixed for redemption
as provided below, redeem the Limited Partner Interest of such Limited Partner, Assignee or transferee as follows:

(i) The General Partner shall, not later than the 30th day before the date fixed for redemption, give notice of
redemption to the Limited Partner, Assignee or transferee, at his last address designated on the records of the
Partnership or the Transfer Agent, by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid. The notice shall be deemed to have
been given when so mailed. The notice shall specify the Redeemable Interests or, if uncertificated, upon receipt of
evidence satisfactory to the General Partner of the ownership of the Redeemable Interests, the date fixed for
redemption, the place of payment, that payment of the redemption price will be made upon surrender of the Certificate
evidencing the Redeemable Interests and that on and after the date fixed for redemption no further allocations or
distributions to which such person would otherwise be entitled in respect of the Redeemable Interests will accrue or be
made.

(ii) The aggregate redemption price for Redeemable Interests shall be an amount equal to the lesser of (i) the Current
Market Price (the date of determination of which shall be the date fixed for redemption) of Limited Partner Interests of
the class to be so redeemed and (ii) the price paid for such Limited Partner Interests by the Limited Partner, Assignee
or transferee. The redemption price shall be paid, as determined by the General Partner, in cash or by delivery of a
promissory note of the Partnership in the principal amount of the redemption price, bearing interest at the rate of 5%
annually and payable in three equal annual installments of principal together with accrued interest, commencing one
year after the redemption date.

(iii) Upon surrender by or on behalf of the Limited Partner, Assignee or transferee, at the place specified in the notice
of redemption, of (x) if certificated, the Certificate evidencing the Redeemable Interests, duly endorsed in blank or
accompanied by an assignment duly executed in blank, or (y) if uncertificated, upon receipt of evidence satisfactory to
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Redeemable Interests, the Limited Partner, Assignee or transferee or his duly authorized representative shall be
entitled to receive the payment therefor.

(iv) After the redemption date, Redeemable Interests shall no longer constitute issued and Outstanding Limited
Partner Interests.

(b) The provisions of this Section 4.10 shall also be applicable to Limited Partner Interests held by a Limited Partner
or Assignee as nominee of a Person determined to be other than an Eligible Citizen or Eligible Holder, as the case
may be.

(c) Nothing in this Section 4.10 shall prevent the recipient of a notice of redemption from transferring his Limited
Partner Interest before the redemption date if such transfer is otherwise permitted under this Agreement. Upon receipt
of notice of such a transfer, the General Partner shall withdraw the notice of redemption, provided the transferee of
such Limited Partner Interest certifies to the satisfaction of the General Partner that he is an Eligible Citizen or
Eligible Holder, as the case may be. If the transferee fails to make such certification, such redemption shall be effected
from the transferee on the original redemption date.

ARTICLE V

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND ISSUANCE OF PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS

Section 5.1  Organizational Contributions.

In connection with the formation of the Partnership under the Delaware Act, the General Partner made an initial
Capital Contribution to the Partnership in the amount of $60.00, for a 2% General Partner Interest in the Partnership
and has been admitted as the General Partner of the Partnership, and the Organizational Limited Partner made an
initial Capital Contribution to the Partnership in the amount of $2,940.00 for a 98% Limited Partner Interest in the
Partnership and has been admitted as a Limited Partner of the Partnership. As of the Closing Date, the interest of the
Organizational Limited Partner, or its successor, shall be redeemed as provided in the Contribution Agreement; and
the initial Capital Contribution of the Organizational Limited Partner, or its successor, shall thereupon be refunded.
Ninety-eight percent of any interest or other profit that may have resulted from the investment or other use of such
initial Capital Contribution shall be allocated and distributed to the Organizational Limited Partner, or its successor,
and the balance thereof shall be allocated and distributed to the General Partner.

Section 5.2  Contributions by the General Partner and its Affiliates.

(a) On the Closing Date and pursuant to the Contribution Agreement: (i) the General Partner shall contribute to the
Partnership, as a Capital Contribution, all of its interest in Spectra GP MHP Holding, LLC and Gulfstream Natural
Gas System, L.L.C., in exchange for (A) 1,352,421 General Partner Units representing a continuation of its 2%
General Partner Interest, subject to all of the rights, privileges and duties of the General Partner under this Agreement,
(B) 1,500,000 Common Units, (C) the Incentive Distribution Rights, (D) the right to receive $288.1 million sourced to
new debt recourse to the General Partner, and (E) the right to receive $0.3 million to reimburse it for certain capital
expenditures; (ii) Spectra Energy Transmission, LLC shall contribute to the Partnership, as a Capital Contribution, all
of its interest in Spectra Energy Partners MHP Holdings, LLC, in exchange for (A) 7,873,950 Common Units,
(B) 5,142,858 Subordinated Units and (C) the right to receive $25.7 million to reimburse it for certain capital
expenditures; and (iii) Spectra Energy Southeast Pipeline Corp. shall contribute to the Partnership, as a Capital
Contribution, a portion of its interest in Gulfstream Natural Gas System, L.L.C., as set forth in the Contribution
Agreement, and all of its interest in East Tennessee Natural Gas, LLC, in exchange for (A) 25,255,930 Common Units
and (B) 16,495,872 Subordinated Units.
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issued in the Initial Offering, the Common Units issued pursuant to the Over-Allotment Option, the Common Units
and Subordinated Units issued pursuant to Section 5.2(a), any Class B Units issued pursuant to Section 5.11 and any
Common Units issued upon conversion of Class B Units), the
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General Partner may, in exchange for a proportionate number of General Partner Units, make additional Capital
Contributions in an amount equal to the product obtained by multiplying (i) the quotient determined by dividing
(A) the General Partner�s Percentage Interest immediately prior to the issuance of such additional Limited Partner
Interests by the Partnership by (B) 100 less the General Partner�s Percentage Interest immediately prior to the issuance
of such additional Limited Partner Interests by the Partnership times (ii) the amount contributed to the Partnership by
the Limited Partners in exchange for such additional Limited Partner Interests. Except as set forth in Article XII, the
General Partner shall not be obligated to make any additional Capital Contributions to the Partnership.

Section 5.3  Contributions by Initial Limited Partners.

(a) On the Closing Date and pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, each Underwriter shall contribute to the
Partnership cash in an amount equal to the Issue Price per Initial Common Unit, multiplied by the number of Common
Units specified in the Underwriting Agreement to be purchased by such Underwriter at the Closing Date. In exchange
for such Capital Contributions by the Underwriters, the Partnership shall issue Common Units to each Underwriter on
whose behalf such Capital Contribution is made in an amount equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (i) the cash
contribution to the Partnership by or on behalf of such Underwriter by (ii) the Issue Price per Initial Common Unit.

(b) Upon the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option, each Underwriter shall contribute to the Partnership cash in an
amount equal to the Issue Price per Initial Common Unit, multiplied by the number of Common Units to be purchased
by such Underwriter at the Option Closing Date. In exchange for such Capital Contributions by the Underwriters, the
Partnership shall issue Common Units to each Underwriter on whose behalf such Capital Contribution is made in an
amount equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (i) the cash contributions to the Partnership by or on behalf of such
Underwriter by (ii) the Issue Price per Initial Common Unit. Upon receipt by the Partnership of the Capital
Contributions from the Underwriters as provided in this Section 5.3(b), the Partnership shall use such cash to purchase
qualifying investment grade securities, which will be assigned as collateral to secure borrowings that are, in turn, used
to redeem from the General Partner or its Affiliates that number of Common Units held by the General Partner or its
Affiliates equal to the number of Common Units issued to the Underwriters as provided in this Section 5.3(b).

(c) No Limited Partner Interests will be issued or issuable as of or at the Closing Date other than (i) the Common
Units issuable pursuant to subparagraph (a) hereof in aggregate number equal to 10,000,000, (ii) the �Option Units� as
such term is used in the Underwriting Agreement in an aggregate number up to 1,500,000 issuable upon exercise of
the Over-Allotment Option pursuant to subparagraph (b) hereof, (iii) the 34,629,880 Common Units and 21,638,730
Subordinated Units issuable pursuant to Section 5.2(a) hereof and (iv) the Incentive Distribution Rights.

Section 5.4  Interest and Withdrawal of Capital Contributions.

No interest shall be paid by the Partnership on Capital Contributions. No Partner or Assignee shall be entitled to the
withdrawal or return of its Capital Contribution, except to the extent, if any, that distributions made pursuant to this
Agreement or upon dissolution of the Partnership may be considered as such by law and then only to the extent
provided for in this Agreement. Except to the extent expressly provided in this Agreement, no Partner or Assignee
shall have priority over any other Partner or Assignee either as to the return of Capital Contributions or as to profits,
losses or distributions. Any such return shall be a compromise to which all Partners or Assignees agree within the
meaning of Section 17-502(b) of the Delaware Act.

Section 5.5  Capital Accounts.

(a) The Partnership shall maintain for each Partner (or a beneficial owner of Partnership Interests held by a nominee in
any case in which the nominee has furnished the identity of such owner to the Partnership in accordance with
Section 6031(c) of the Code or any other method acceptable to the General Partner) owning a Partnership Interest a
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shall be increased by (i) the amount of all Capital Contributions made to the Partnership with respect to such
Partnership Interest and (ii) all items of Partnership income and gain (including income and gain exempt from tax)
computed in accordance with Section 5.5(b) and allocated with respect to such Partnership Interest pursuant to
Section 6.1, and decreased by (x) the amount of cash or Net Agreed Value of all actual and deemed distributions of
cash or property made with respect to such Partnership Interest and (y) all items of Partnership deduction and loss
computed in accordance with Section 5.5(b) and allocated with respect to such Partnership Interest pursuant to
Section 6.1.

(b) For purposes of computing the amount of any item of income, gain, loss or deduction which is to be allocated
pursuant to Article VI and is to be reflected in the Partners� Capital Accounts, the determination, recognition and
classification of any such item shall be the same as its determination, recognition and classification for federal income
tax purposes (including any method of depreciation, cost recovery or amortization used for that purpose), provided,
that:

(i) Solely for purposes of this Section 5.5, the Partnership shall be treated as owning directly its proportionate share
(as determined by the General Partner based upon the provisions of the applicable Group Member Agreement or
governing, organizational or similar documents) of all property owned by any other Group Member that is classified
as a partnership for federal income tax purposes and (y) any other partnership, limited liability company,
unincorporated business or other entity classified as a partnership for federal income tax purposes of which a Group
Member is, directly or indirectly, a partner.

(ii) All fees and other expenses incurred by the Partnership to promote the sale of (or to sell) a Partnership Interest that
can neither be deducted nor amortized under Section 709 of the Code, if any, shall, for purposes of Capital Account
maintenance, be treated as an item of deduction at the time such fees and other expenses are incurred and shall be
allocated among the Partners pursuant to Section 6.1.

(iii) Except as otherwise provided in Treasury Regulation Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(m), the computation of all items
of income, gain, loss and deduction shall be made without regard to any election under Section 754 of the Code which
may be made by the Partnership and, as to those items described in Section 705(a)(1)(B) or 705(a)(2)(B) of the Code,
without regard to the fact that such items are not includable in gross income or are neither currently deductible nor
capitalized for federal income tax purposes. To the extent an adjustment to the adjusted tax basis of any Partnership
asset pursuant to Section 734(b) or 743(b) of the Code is required, pursuant to Treasury Regulation
Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(m), to be taken into account in determining Capital Accounts, the amount of such
adjustment in the Capital Accounts shall be treated as an item of gain or loss.

(iv) Any income, gain or loss attributable to the taxable disposition of any Partnership property shall be determined as
if the adjusted basis of such property as of such date of disposition were equal in amount to the Partnership�s Carrying
Value with respect to such property as of such date.

(v) In accordance with the requirements of Section 704(b) of the Code, any deductions for depreciation, cost recovery
or amortization attributable to any Contributed Property shall be determined as if the adjusted basis of such property
on the date it was acquired by the Partnership were equal to the Agreed Value of such property. Upon an adjustment
pursuant to Section 5.5(d) to the Carrying Value of any Partnership property subject to depreciation, cost recovery or
amortization, any further deductions for such depreciation, cost recovery or amortization attributable to such property
shall be determined as if the adjusted basis of such property were equal to the Carrying Value of such property
immediately following such adjustment.

(vi) If the Partnership�s adjusted basis in a depreciable or cost recovery property is reduced for federal income tax
purposes pursuant to Section 48(q)(1) or 48(q)(3) of the Code, the amount of such reduction shall, solely for purposes
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Code shall, to the extent possible, be allocated in the same manner to the Partners to whom such deemed deduction
was allocated.

(c) (i) A transferee of a Partnership Interest shall succeed to a Pro Rata portion of the Capital Account of the transferor
relating to the Partnership Interest so transferred.

(ii) Subject to Section 6.7(c), immediately prior to the transfer of a Subordinated Unit or of a Subordinated Unit that
has converted into a Common Unit pursuant to Section 5.7 by a holder thereof (other than a transfer to an Affiliate
unless the General Partner elects to have this subparagraph 5.5(c)(ii) apply), the Capital Account maintained for such
Person with respect to its Subordinated Units or converted Subordinated Units will (A) first, be allocated to the
Subordinated Units or converted Subordinated Units to be transferred in an amount equal to the product of (x) the
number of such Subordinated Units or converted Subordinated Units to be transferred and (y) the Per Unit Capital
Amount for a Common Unit, and (B) second, any remaining balance in such Capital Account will be retained by the
transferor, regardless of whether it has retained any Subordinated Units or converted Subordinated Units (�Retained
Converted Subordinated Units�). Following any such allocation, the transferor�s Capital Account, if any, maintained
with respect to the retained Subordinated Units or Retained Converted Subordinated Units, if any, will have a balance
equal to the amount allocated under clause (B) hereinabove, and the transferee�s Capital Account established with
respect to the transferred Subordinated Units or converted Subordinated Units will have a balance equal to the amount
allocated under clause (A) hereinabove.

(d) (i) In accordance with Treasury Regulation Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(f), on an issuance of additional
Partnership Interests for cash or Contributed Property, the issuance of Partnership Interests as consideration for the
provision of services or the conversion of the General Partner�s Combined Interest to Common Units pursuant to
Section 11.3(b), the Capital Account of each Partner and the Carrying Value of each Partnership property immediately
prior to such issuance shall be adjusted upward or downward to reflect any Unrealized Gain or Unrealized Loss
attributable to such Partnership property, as if such Unrealized Gain or Unrealized Loss had been recognized on an
actual sale of each such property immediately prior to such issuance and had been allocated to the Partners at such
time pursuant to Section 6.1 in the same manner as any item of gain or loss actually recognized during such period
would have been allocated. In determining such Unrealized Gain or Unrealized Loss, the aggregate cash amount and
fair market value of all Partnership assets (including cash or cash equivalents) immediately prior to the issuance of
additional Partnership Interests shall be determined by the General Partner using such method of valuation as it may
adopt; provided, however, that the General Partner, in arriving at such valuation, must take fully into account the fair
market value of the Partnership Interests of all Partners at such time. The General Partner shall allocate such aggregate
value among the assets of the Partnership (in such manner as it determines) to arrive at a fair market value for
individual properties.

(ii) In accordance with Treasury Regulation Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(f), immediately prior to any actual or deemed
distribution to a Partner of any Partnership property (other than a distribution of cash that is not in redemption or
retirement of a Partnership Interest), the Capital Accounts of all Partners and the Carrying Value of all Partnership
property shall be adjusted upward or downward to reflect any Unrealized Gain or Unrealized Loss attributable to such
Partnership property, as if such Unrealized Gain or Unrealized Loss had been recognized in a sale of such property
immediately prior to such distribution for an amount equal to its fair market value, and had been allocated to the
Partners, at such time, pursuant to Section 6.1 in the same manner as any item of gain or loss actually recognized
during such period would have been allocated. In determining such Unrealized Gain or Unrealized Loss the aggregate
cash amount and fair market value of all Partnership assets (including cash or cash equivalents) immediately prior to a
distribution shall (A) in the case of an actual distribution that is not made pursuant to Section 12.4 or in the case of a
deemed distribution, be determined and allocated in the same manner as that provided in Section 5.5(d)(i) or (B) in the
case of a liquidating distribution pursuant to Section 12.4, be determined and allocated by the Liquidator using such
method of valuation as it may adopt.
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Section 5.6  Issuances of Additional Partnership Securities.

(a) The Partnership may issue additional Partnership Securities and options, rights, warrants and appreciation rights
relating to the Partnership Securities for any Partnership purpose at any time and from time to time to such Persons for
such consideration and on such terms and conditions as the General Partner shall determine, all without the approval
of any Limited Partners.

(b) Each additional Partnership Security authorized to be issued by the Partnership pursuant to Section 5.6(a) may be
issued in one or more classes, or one or more series of any such classes, with such designations, preferences, rights,
powers and duties (which may be senior to existing classes and series of Partnership Securities), as shall be fixed by
the General Partner, including (i) the right to share in Partnership profits and losses or items thereof; (ii) the right to
share in Partnership distributions; (iii) the rights upon dissolution and liquidation of the Partnership; (iv) whether, and
the terms and conditions upon which, the Partnership may or shall be required to redeem the Partnership Security;
(v) whether such Partnership Security is issued with the privilege of conversion or exchange and, if so, the terms and
conditions of such conversion or exchange; (vi) the terms and conditions upon which each Partnership Security will be
issued, evidenced by certificates and assigned or transferred; (vii) the method for determining the Percentage Interest
as to such Partnership Security; and (viii) the right, if any, of each such Partnership Security to vote on Partnership
matters, including matters relating to the relative rights, preferences and privileges of such Partnership Security.

(c) The General Partner shall take all actions that it determines to be necessary or appropriate in connection with
(i) each issuance of Partnership Securities and options, rights, warrants and appreciation rights relating to Partnership
Securities pursuant to this Section 5.6, (ii) the conversion of the General Partner Interest (represented by General
Partner Units) or any Incentive Distribution Rights into Units pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, (iii) the
issuance of Class B Units pursuant to Section 5.11 and the conversion of Class B Units into Common Units pursuant
to the terms of this Agreement, (iv) the admission of Additional Limited Partners and (v) all additional issuances of
Partnership Securities. The General Partner shall determine the relative rights, powers and duties of the holders of the
Units or other Partnership Securities being so issued. The General Partner shall do all things necessary to comply with
the Delaware Act and is authorized and directed to do all things that it determines to be necessary or appropriate in
connection with any future issuance of Partnership Securities or in connection with the conversion of the General
Partner Interest or any Incentive Distribution Rights into Units pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, including
compliance with any statute, rule, regulation or guideline of any federal, state or other governmental agency or any
National Securities Exchange on which the Units or other Partnership Securities are listed or admitted to trading.

(d) No fractional Units shall be issued by the Partnership.

Section 5.7  Conversion of Subordinated Units.

(a) All of the Subordinated Units shall convert into Common Units on a one-for-one basis on the first Business Day of
any Quarter beginning after June 30, 2010 in respect of which:

(i) distributions of Available Cash from Operating Surplus on each of the Outstanding Common Units, Subordinated
Units and General Partner Units and any other Outstanding Units that are senior or equal in right of distribution to the
Subordinated Units with respect to each of the three consecutive, non-overlapping four-Quarter periods immediately
preceding such date equaled or exceeded the sum of the Minimum Quarterly Distribution on all Outstanding Common
Units, Subordinated Units and General Partner Units and any other Outstanding Units that are senior or equal in right
of distribution to the Subordinated Units during such periods;
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(ii) the Adjusted Operating Surplus generated during each of the three consecutive, non-overlapping four-Quarter
periods immediately preceding such date equaled or exceeded the sum of the Minimum Quarterly Distribution on all
of the Common Units, Subordinated Units and General Partner Units and any other Units that are senior or equal in
right of distribution to the Subordinated Units that were Outstanding during such periods on a Fully Diluted Basis; and
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(iii) there are no Cumulative Common Unit Arrearages.

(b) Notwithstanding Section 5.7(a), the Subordination Period shall terminate and all Outstanding Subordinated Units
shall convert into Common Units on a one-for-one basis on the first Business Day following the distribution of
Available Cash to Partners pursuant to Section 6.3(a) in respect of any Quarter ending on or after June 30, 2008 in
respect of which:

(i) distributions of Available Cash from Operating Surplus under Section 6.4(a) on each of the Outstanding Common
Units, Subordinated Units and General Partner Units and any other Outstanding Units that are senior or equal in right
of distribution to the Subordinated Units with respect to the four-Quarter period immediately preceding such date
equaled or exceeded the sum of the Third Target Distribution on all of the Outstanding Common Units, Subordinated
Units and General Partner Units and any other Outstanding Units that are senior or equal in right of distribution to the
Subordinated Units during such period;

(ii) the Adjusted Operating Surplus generated during the four-Quarter period immediately preceding such date equaled
or exceeded the sum of the Third Target Distribution on all of the Common Units, Subordinated Units and General
Partner Units and any other Outstanding Units that are senior or equal in right of distribution to the Subordinated
Units that were Outstanding during such period on a Fully Diluted Basis; and

(iii) there are no Cumulative Common Unit Arrearages.

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, all the then Outstanding Subordinated Units will
automatically convert into Common Units on a one-for-one basis as set forth in, and pursuant to the terms of,
Section 11.4.

(d) A Subordinated Unit that has converted into a Common Unit shall be subject to the provisions of Section 6.7(b)
and Section 6.7(c).

Section 5.8  Limited Preemptive Right.

Except as provided in this Section 5.8 and in Section 5.2, no Person shall have any preemptive, preferential or other
similar right with respect to the issuance of any Partnership Security, whether unissued, held in the treasury or
hereafter created. The General Partner shall have the right, which it may from time to time assign in whole or in part
to any of its Affiliates, to purchase Partnership Securities from the Partnership whenever, and on the same terms that,
the Partnership issues Partnership Securities to Persons other than the General Partner and its Affiliates, to the extent
necessary to maintain the Percentage Interests of the General Partner and its Affiliates equal to any or all of those
Percentage Interests that existed immediately prior to the issuance of such Partnership Securities.

Section 5.9  Splits and Combinations.

(a) Subject to Section 5.9(d), Section 6.6 and Section 6.9 (dealing with adjustments of distribution levels), the
Partnership may make a Pro Rata distribution of Partnership Securities to all Record Holders or may effect a
subdivision or combination of Partnership Securities so long as, after any such event, each Partner shall have the same
Percentage Interest in the Partnership as before such event, and any amounts calculated on a per Unit basis (including
any Common Unit Arrearage or Cumulative Common Unit Arrearage) or stated as a number of Units are
proportionately adjusted.
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(b) Whenever such a Pro Rata distribution or subdivision or combination of Partnership Securities is declared, the
General Partner shall select a Record Date as of which the distribution, subdivision or combination shall be effective
and shall send notice thereof at least 20 days prior to such Record Date to each Record Holder as of a date not less
than 10 days prior to the date of such notice. The General Partner also may cause a firm of independent public
accountants selected by it to calculate the number of Partnership Securities to be held by each Record Holder after
giving effect to such distribution, subdivision or combination. The General Partner shall be entitled to rely on any
certificate provided by such firm as conclusive evidence of the accuracy of such calculation.
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(c) Promptly following any such distribution, subdivision or combination, the Partnership may issue Certificates or
uncertificated Partnership Securities to the Record Holders of Partnership Securities as of the applicable Record Date
representing the new number of Partnership Securities held by such Record Holders, or the General Partner may adopt
such other procedures that it determines to be necessary or appropriate to reflect such changes. If any such
combination results in a smaller total number of Partnership Securities Outstanding, the Partnership shall require, as a
condition to the delivery to a Record Holder of such new Certificate or uncertificated Partnership Securities, the
surrender of any Certificate held by such Record Holder immediately prior to such Record Date.

(d) The Partnership shall not issue fractional Units upon any distribution, subdivision or combination of Units. If a
distribution, subdivision or combination of Units would result in the issuance of fractional Units but for the provisions
of this Section 5.9(d), each fractional Unit shall be rounded to the nearest whole Unit (and a 0.5 Unit shall be rounded
to the next higher Unit).

Section 5.10  Fully Paid and Non-Assessable Nature of Limited Partner Interests.

All Limited Partner Interests issued pursuant to, and in accordance with the requirements of, this Article V shall be
fully paid and non-assessable Limited Partner Interests in the Partnership, except as such non-assessability may be
affected by Sections 17-607 and 17-804 of the Delaware Act.

Section 5.11  Issuance of Class B Units in Connection with Reset of Incentive Distribution Rights.

(a) Subject to the provisions of this Section 5.11, the holder of the Incentive Distribution Rights (or, if there is more
than one holder of the Incentive Distribution Rights, the holders of a majority in interest of the Incentive Distribution
Rights) shall have the right, at any time when there are no Subordinated Units outstanding and the Partnership has
made a distribution pursuant to Section 6.4(b)(v) for each of the four most recently completed Quarters and the
amount of each such distribution did not exceed Adjusted Operating Surplus for such Quarter, to make an election (the
�IDR Reset Election�) to cause the Minimum Quarterly Distribution and the Target Distributions to be reset in
accordance with the provisions of Section 5.11(e) and, in connection therewith, the holder or holders of the Incentive
Distribution Rights will become entitled to receive their respective proportionate share of a number of Class B Units
derived by dividing (i) the average amount of cash distributions made by the Partnership for the two full Quarters
immediately preceding the giving of the Reset Notice (as defined in Section 5.11(b)) in respect of the Incentive
Distribution Rights by (ii) the average of the cash distributions made by the Partnership in respect of each Common
Unit for the two full Quarters immediately preceding the giving of the Reset Notice (the number of Class B Units
determined by such quotient is referred to herein as the �Aggregate Quantity of Class B Units�). Upon the issuance of
such Class B Units, the Partnership will issue to the General Partner that number of additional General Partner Units
equal to the product of (x) the quotient obtained by dividing (A) the Percentage Interest of the General Partner
immediately prior to such issuance by (B) a percentage equal to 100% less such Percentage Interest by (y) the number
of such Class B Units, and the General Partner shall not be obligated to make any additional Capital Contribution to
the Partnership in exchange for such issuance. The making of the IDR Reset Election in the manner specified in
Section 5.11(b) shall cause the Minimum Quarterly Distribution and the Target Distributions to be reset in accordance
with the provisions of Section 5.11(e) and, in connection therewith, the holder or holders of the Incentive Distribution
Rights will become entitled to receive Class B Units and General Partner Units on the basis specified above, without
any further approval required by the General Partner or the Unitholders, at the time specified in Section 5.11(c) unless
the IDR Reset Election is rescinded pursuant to Section 5.11(d).

(b) To exercise the right specified in Section 5.11(a), the holder of the Incentive Distribution Rights (or, if there is
more than one holder of the Incentive Distribution Rights, the holders of a majority in interest of the Incentive
Distribution Rights) shall deliver a written notice (the �Reset Notice�) to the Partnership. Within 10 Business Days after
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(c) The holder or holders of the Incentive Distribution Rights will be entitled to receive the Aggregate Quantity of
Class B Units and related additional General Partner Units on the fifteenth Business Day after receipt by the
Partnership of the Reset Notice, and the Partnership shall issue Certificates for the Class B Units to the holder or
holders of the Incentive Distribution Rights; provided, however, that the issuance of Class B Units to the holder or
holders of the Incentive Distribution Rights shall not occur prior to the approval of the listing or admission for trading
of the Common Units into which the Class B Units are convertible pursuant to Section 5.11(f) by the principal
National Securities Exchange upon which the Common Units are then listed or admitted for trading if any such
approval is required pursuant to the rules and regulations of such National Securities Exchange.

(d) If the principal National Securities Exchange upon which the Common Units are then traded have not approved
the listing or admission for trading of the Common Units into which the Class B Units are convertible pursuant to
Section 5.11(f) on or before the 30th calendar day following the Partnership�s receipt of the Reset Notice and such
approval is required by the rules and regulations of such National Securities Exchange, then the holder of the
Incentive Distribution Rights (or, if there is more than one holder of the Incentive Distribution Rights, the holders of a
majority in interest of the Incentive Distribution Rights) shall have the right to either rescind the IDR Reset Election
or elect to receive other Partnership Securities having such terms as the General Partner may approve, with the
approval of the Conflicts Committee, that will provide (i) the same economic value, in the aggregate, as the Aggregate
Quantity of Class B Units would have had at the time of the Partnership�s receipt of the Reset Notice, as determined by
the General Partner, and (ii) for the subsequent conversion (on terms acceptable to the National Securities Exchange
upon which the Common Units are then traded) of such Partnership Securities into Common Units within not more
than 12 months following the Partnership�s receipt of the Reset Notice upon the satisfaction of one or more conditions
that are reasonably acceptable to the holder of the Incentive Distribution Rights (or, if there is more than one holder of
the Incentive Distribution Rights, the holders of a majority in interest of the Incentive Distribution Rights).

(e) The Minimum Quarterly Distribution, First Target Distribution, Second Target Distribution and Third Target
Distribution shall be adjusted at the time of the issuance of Common Units or other Partnership Securities pursuant to
this Section 5.11 such that (i) the Minimum Quarterly Distribution shall be reset to equal to the average cash
distribution amount per Common Unit for the two Quarters immediately prior to the Partnership�s receipt of the Reset
Notice (the �Reset MQD�), (ii) the First Target Distribution shall be reset to equal 115% of the Reset MQD, (iii) the
Second Target Distribution shall be reset to equal to 125% of the Reset MQD and (iv) the Third Target Distribution
shall be reset to equal 150% of the Reset MQD.

(f) Any holder of Class B Units shall have the right to elect, by giving written notice to the General Partner, to convert
all or a portion of the Class B Units held by such holder, at any time following the first anniversary of the issuance of
such Class B Units, into Common Units on a one-for-one basis, such conversion to be effective on the second
Business Day following the General Partner�s receipt of such written notice.

ARTICLE VI

ALLOCATIONS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

Section 6.1  Allocations for Capital Account Purposes.

For purposes of maintaining the Capital Accounts and in determining the rights of the Partners among themselves, the
Partnership�s items of income, gain, loss and deduction (computed in accordance with Section 5.5(b)) shall be
allocated among the Partners in each taxable year (or portion thereof) as provided herein below.
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(i) First, 100% to the General Partner, in an amount equal to the aggregate Net Losses allocated to the General Partner
pursuant to Section 6.1(b)(iii) for all previous taxable years until the aggregate Net Income allocated to the General
Partner pursuant to this Section 6.1(a)(i) for the current taxable year and all previous taxable years is equal to the
aggregate Net Losses allocated to the General Partner pursuant to Section 6.1(b)(iii) for all previous taxable years;

(ii) Second, 100% to the General Partner and the Unitholders, in accordance with their respective Percentage Interests,
until the aggregate Net Income allocated to such Partners pursuant to this Section 6.1(a)(ii) for the current taxable year
and all previous taxable years is equal to the aggregate Net Losses allocated to such Partners pursuant to
Section 6.1(b)(ii) for all previous taxable years; and

(iii) Third, the balance, if any, 100% to the General Partner and the Unitholders, in accordance with their respective
Percentage Interests.

(b) Net Losses.  After giving effect to the special allocations set forth in Section 6.1(d), Net Losses for each taxable
period and all items of income, gain, loss and deduction taken into account in computing Net Losses for such taxable
period shall be allocated as follows:

(i) First, 100% to the General Partner and the Unitholders, in accordance with their respective Percentage Interests,
until the aggregate Net Losses allocated pursuant to this Section 6.1(b)(i) for the current taxable year and all previous
taxable years is equal to the aggregate Net Income allocated to such Partners pursuant to Section 6.1(a)(iii) for all
previous taxable years, provided that the Net Losses shall not be allocated pursuant to this Section 6.1(b)(i) to the
extent that such allocation would cause any Unitholder to have a deficit balance in its Adjusted Capital Account at the
end of such taxable year (or increase any existing deficit balance in its Adjusted Capital Account);

(ii) Second, 100% to the General Partner and the Unitholders, in accordance with their respective Percentage Interests;
provided, that Net Losses shall not be allocated pursuant to this Section 6.1(b)(ii) to the extent that such allocation
would cause any Unitholder to have a deficit balance in its Adjusted Capital Account at the end of such taxable year
(or increase any existing deficit balance in its Adjusted Capital Account); and

(iii) Third, the balance, if any, 100% to the General Partner.

(c) Net Termination Gains and Losses.  After giving effect to the special allocations set forth in Section 6.1(d), all
items of income, gain, loss and deduction taken into account in computing Net Termination Gain or Net Termination
Loss for such taxable period shall be allocated in the same manner as such Net Termination Gain or Net Termination
Loss is allocated hereunder. All allocations under this Section 6.1(c) shall be made after Capital Account balances
have been adjusted by all other allocations provided under this Section 6.1 and after all distributions of Available Cash
provided under Section 6.4 and Section 6.5 have been made; provided, however, that solely for purposes of this
Section 6.1(c), Capital Accounts shall not be adjusted for distributions made pursuant to Section 12.4.

(i) If a Net Termination Gain is recognized (or deemed recognized pursuant to Section 5.5(d)), such Net Termination
Gain shall be allocated among the Partners in the following manner (and the Capital Accounts of the Partners shall be
increased by the amount so allocated in each of the following subclauses, in the order listed, before an allocation is
made pursuant to the next succeeding subclause):

(A) First, to each Partner having a deficit balance in its Capital Account, in the proportion that such deficit balance
bears to the total deficit balances in the Capital Accounts of all Partners, until each such Partner has been allocated
Net Termination Gain equal to any such deficit balance in its Capital Account;
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Common Units, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the percentage applicable to subclause (x) of this
clause (B), until the Capital Account in respect of each Common Unit then Outstanding is equal to the sum of (1) its
Unrecovered Initial Unit Price, (2) the Minimum Quarterly Distribution for the Quarter during which the Liquidation
Date occurs, reduced by any
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distribution pursuant to Section 6.4(a)(i) or Section 6.4(b)(i) with respect to such Common Unit for such Quarter (the
amount determined pursuant to this clause (2) is hereinafter defined as the �Unpaid MQD�) and (3) any then existing
Cumulative Common Unit Arrearage;

(C) Third, if such Net Termination Gain is recognized (or is deemed to be recognized) prior to the conversion of the
last Outstanding Class B Unit, (x) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest and (y) to all
Unitholders holding Class B Units, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the percentage applicable to
subclause (x) of this clause (C), until the Capital Account in respect of each Class B Unit then Outstanding equals the
sum of (1) its Unrecovered Initial Unit Price, and (2) the Minimum Quarterly Distribution for the Quarter during
which the Liquidation Date occurs, reduced by any distribution pursuant to Section 6.4(b)(i) with respect to such
Class B Unit for such Quarter;

(D) Fourth, if such Net Termination Gain is recognized (or is deemed to be recognized) prior to the conversion of the
last Outstanding Subordinated Unit, (x) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest and (y) to all
Unitholders holding Subordinated Units, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the percentage applicable to
subclause (x) of this clause (D), until the Capital Account in respect of each Subordinated Unit then Outstanding
equals the sum of (1) its Unrecovered Initial Unit Price, determined for the taxable year (or portion thereof) to which
this allocation of gain relates, and (2) the Minimum Quarterly Distribution for the Quarter during which the
Liquidation Date occurs, reduced by any distribution pursuant to Section 6.4(a)(iii) with respect to such Subordinated
Unit for such Quarter;

(E) Fifth, 100% to the General Partner and all Unitholders in accordance with their respective Percentage Interests,
until the Capital Account in respect of each Common Unit then Outstanding is equal to the sum of (1) its Unrecovered
Initial Unit Price, (2) the Unpaid MQD, (3) any then existing Cumulative Common Unit Arrearage, and (4) the excess
of (aa) the First Target Distribution less the Minimum Quarterly Distribution for each Quarter of the Partnership�s
existence over (bb) the cumulative per Unit amount of any distributions of Available Cash that is deemed to be
Operating Surplus made pursuant to Section 6.4(a)(iv) and Section 6.4(b)(ii) (the sum of (1), (2), (3) and (4) is
hereinafter defined as the �First Liquidation Target Amount�);

(F) Sixth, (x) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest, (y) 13% to the holders of the Incentive
Distribution Rights, Pro Rata, and (z) to all Unitholders, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the sum of the
percentages applicable to subclause (x) and (y) of this clause (F), until the Capital Account in respect of each
Common Unit then Outstanding is equal to the sum of (1) the First Liquidation Target Amount, and (2) the excess of
(aa) the Second Target Distribution less the First Target Distribution for each Quarter of the Partnership�s existence
over (bb) the cumulative per Unit amount of any distributions of Available Cash that is deemed to be Operating
Surplus made pursuant to Section 6.4(a)(v) and Section 6.4(b)(iii) (the sum of (1) and (2) is hereinafter defined as the
�Second Liquidation Target Amount�);

(G) Seventh, (x) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest, (y) 23% to the holders of the
Incentive Distribution Rights, Pro Rata, and (z) to all Unitholders, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the sum
of the percentages applicable to subclause (x) and (y) of this clause (G), until the Capital Account in respect of each
Common Unit then Outstanding is equal to the sum of (1) the Second Liquidation Target Amount, and (2) the excess
of (aa) the Third Target Distribution less the Second Target Distribution for each Quarter of the Partnership�s existence
over (bb) the cumulative per Unit amount of any distributions of Available Cash that is deemed to be Operating
Surplus made pursuant to Section 6.4(a)(vi) and Section 6.4(b)(iv) (the sum of (1) and (2) is hereinafter defined as the
�Third Liquidation Target Amount�); and

(H) Finally, (x) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest, (y) 48% to the holders of the
Incentive Distribution Rights, Pro Rata, and (z) to all Unitholders, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the sum
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(ii) If a Net Termination Loss is recognized (or deemed recognized pursuant to Section 5.5(d)), such Net Termination
Loss shall be allocated among the Partners in the following manner:

(A) First, if such Net Termination Loss is recognized (or is deemed to be recognized) prior to the conversion of the
last Outstanding Subordinated Unit, (x) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest and (y) to all
Unitholders holding Subordinated Units, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the percentage applicable to
subclause (x) of this clause (A), until the Capital Account in respect of each Subordinated Unit then Outstanding has
been reduced to zero;

(B) Second, (x) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest and (y) to the Class B Unitholders,
Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the percentage applicable to subclause (x) of this clause (B) until the
Capital Account in respect of each Class B Unit then Outstanding has been reduced to zero;

(C) Third, (x) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest and (y) to all Unitholders, Pro Rata, a
percentage equal to 100% less the percentage applicable to subclause (x) of this clause (B) until the Capital Account
in respect of each Unit then Outstanding has been reduced to zero; and

(D) Fourth, the balance, if any, 100% to the General Partner.

(d) Special Allocations.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 6.1, the following special allocations
shall be made for such taxable period:

(i) Partnership Minimum Gain Chargeback.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 6.1, if there is a net
decrease in Partnership Minimum Gain during any Partnership taxable period, each Partner shall be allocated items of
Partnership income and gain for such period (and, if necessary, subsequent periods) in the manner and amounts
provided in Treasury Regulation Sections 1.704-2(f)(6), 1.704-2(g)(2) and 1.704-2(j)(2)(i), or any successor
provision. For purposes of this Section 6.1(d), each Partner�s Adjusted Capital Account balance shall be determined,
and the allocation of income or gain required hereunder shall be effected, prior to the application of any other
allocations pursuant to this Section 6.1(d) with respect to such taxable period (other than an allocation pursuant to
Section 6.1(d)(vi) and Section 6.1(d)(vii)). This Section 6.1(d)(i) is intended to comply with the Partnership Minimum
Gain chargeback requirement in Treasury Regulation Section 1.704-2(f) and shall be interpreted consistently
therewith.

(ii) Chargeback of Partner Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain.  Notwithstanding the other provisions of this
Section 6.1 (other than Section 6.1(d)(i)), except as provided in Treasury Regulation Section 1.704-2(i)(4), if there is a
net decrease in Partner Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain during any Partnership taxable period, any Partner with a
share of Partner Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain at the beginning of such taxable period shall be allocated items of
Partnership income and gain for such period (and, if necessary, subsequent periods) in the manner and amounts
provided in Treasury Regulation Sections 1.704-2(i)(4) and 1.704-2(j)(2)(ii), or any successor provisions. For
purposes of this Section 6.1(d), each Partner�s Adjusted Capital Account balance shall be determined, and the
allocation of income or gain required hereunder shall be effected, prior to the application of any other allocations
pursuant to this Section 6.1(d), other than Section 6.1(d)(i) and other than an allocation pursuant to Section 6.1(d)(vi)
and Section 6.1(d)(vii), with respect to such taxable period. This Section 6.1(d)(ii) is intended to comply with the
chargeback of items of income and gain requirement in Treasury Regulation Section 1.704-2(i)(4) and shall be
interpreted consistently therewith.

(iii) Priority Allocations.

Edgar Filing: OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORP - Form 4

Table of Contents 180



(A) If the amount of cash or the Net Agreed Value of any property distributed (except cash or property distributed
pursuant to Section 12.4) to any Unitholder with respect to its Units for a taxable year is greater (on a per Unit basis)
than the amount of cash or the Net Agreed Value of property distributed to the other Unitholders with respect to their
Units (on a per Unit basis), then (1) there shall be allocated income and gain to each Unitholder receiving such greater
cash
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or property distribution until the aggregate amount of such items allocated pursuant to this Section 6.1(d)(iii)(A) for
the current taxable year and all previous taxable years is equal to the product of (aa) the amount by which the
distribution (on a per Unit basis) to such Unitholder exceeds the distribution (on a per Unit basis) to the Unitholders
receiving the smallest distribution and (bb) the number of Units owned by the Unitholder receiving the greater
distribution; and (2) the General Partner shall be allocated income and gain in an aggregate amount equal to the
product obtained by multiplying (aa) the quotient determined by dividing (x) the General Partner�s Percentage Interest
at the time in which the greater cash or property distribution occurs by (y) the sum of 100 less the General Partner�s
Percentage Interest at the time in which the greater cash or property distribution occurs times (bb) the sum of the
amounts allocated in clause (1) above.

(B) After the application of Section 6.1(d)(iii)(A), all or any portion of the remaining items of Partnership income or
gain for the taxable period, if any, shall be allocated (1) to the holders of Incentive Distribution Rights, Pro Rata, until
the aggregate amount of such items allocated to the holders of Incentive Distribution Rights pursuant to this
Section 6.1(d)(iii)(B) for the current taxable year and all previous taxable years is equal to the cumulative amount of
all Incentive Distributions made to the holders of Incentive Distribution Rights from the Closing Date to a date
45 days after the end of the current taxable year; and (2) to the General Partner an amount equal to the product of (aa)
an amount equal to the quotient determined by dividing (x) the General Partner�s Percentage Interest by (y) the sum of
100 less the General Partner�s Percentage Interest times (bb) the sum of the amounts allocated in clause (1) above.

(iv) Qualified Income Offset.  In the event any Partner unexpectedly receives any adjustments, allocations or
distributions described in Treasury Regulation Sections 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d)(4), 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d)(5), or
1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d)(6), items of Partnership income and gain shall be specially allocated to such Partner in an amount
and manner sufficient to eliminate, to the extent required by the Treasury Regulations promulgated under
Section 704(b) of the Code, the deficit balance, if any, in its Adjusted Capital Account created by such adjustments,
allocations or distributions as quickly as possible unless such deficit balance is otherwise eliminated pursuant to
Section 6.1(d)(i) or Section 6.1(d)(ii).

(v) Gross Income Allocations.  In the event any Partner has a deficit balance in its Capital Account at the end of any
Partnership taxable period in excess of the sum of (A) the amount such Partner is required to restore pursuant to the
provisions of this Agreement and (B) the amount such Partner is deemed obligated to restore pursuant to Treasury
Regulation Sections 1.704-2(g) and 1.704-2(i)(5), such Partner shall be specially allocated items of Partnership
income and gain in the amount of such excess as quickly as possible; provided, that an allocation pursuant to this
Section 6.1(d)(v) shall be made only if and to the extent that such Partner would have a deficit balance in its Capital
Account as adjusted after all other allocations provided for in this Section 6.1 have been tentatively made as if this
Section 6.1(d)(v) were not in this Agreement.

(vi) Nonrecourse Deductions.  Nonrecourse Deductions for any taxable period shall be allocated to the Partners in
accordance with their respective Percentage Interests. If the General Partner determines that the Partnership�s
Nonrecourse Deductions should be allocated in a different ratio to satisfy the safe harbor requirements of the Treasury
Regulations promulgated under Section 704(b) of the Code, the General Partner is authorized, upon notice to the other
Partners, to revise the prescribed ratio to the numerically closest ratio that does satisfy such requirements.

(vii) Partner Nonrecourse Deductions.  Partner Nonrecourse Deductions for any taxable period shall be allocated
100% to the Partner that bears the Economic Risk of Loss with respect to the Partner Nonrecourse Debt to which such
Partner Nonrecourse Deductions are attributable in accordance with Treasury Regulation Section 1.704-2(i). If more
than one Partner bears the Economic Risk of Loss with respect to a Partner Nonrecourse Debt, such Partner
Nonrecourse Deductions
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attributable thereto shall be allocated between or among such Partners in accordance with the ratios in which they
share such Economic Risk of Loss.

(viii) Nonrecourse Liabilities.  For purposes of Treasury Regulation Section 1.752-3(a)(3), the Partners agree that
Nonrecourse Liabilities of the Partnership in excess of the sum of (A) the amount of Partnership Minimum Gain and
(B) the total amount of Nonrecourse Built-in Gain shall be allocated among the Partners in accordance with their
respective Percentage Interests.

(ix) Code Section 754 Adjustments.  To the extent an adjustment to the adjusted tax basis of any Partnership asset
pursuant to Section 734(b) or 743(b) of the Code is required, pursuant to Treasury
Regulation Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(m), to be taken into account in determining Capital Accounts, the amount of
such adjustment to the Capital Accounts shall be treated as an item of gain (if the adjustment increases the basis of the
asset) or loss (if the adjustment decreases such basis), and such item of gain or loss shall be specially allocated to the
Partners in a manner consistent with the manner in which their Capital Accounts are required to be adjusted pursuant
to such Section of the Treasury Regulations.

(x) Economic Uniformity.

(A) At the election of the General Partner with respect to any taxable period ending upon, or after, the termination of
the Subordination Period, all or a portion of the remaining items of Partnership income or gain for such taxable period,
after taking into account allocations pursuant to Section 6.1(d)(iii), shall be allocated 100% to each Partner holding
Subordinated Units that are Outstanding as of the termination of the Subordination Period (�Final Subordinated Units�)
in the proportion of the number of Final Subordinated Units held by such Partner to the total number of Final
Subordinated Units then Outstanding, until each such Partner has been allocated an amount of income or gain that
increases the Capital Account maintained with respect to such Final Subordinated Units to an amount equal to the
product of (A) the number of Final Subordinated Units held by such Partner and (B) the Per Unit Capital Amount for a
Common Unit. The purpose of this allocation is to establish uniformity between the Capital Accounts underlying Final
Subordinated Units and the Capital Accounts underlying Common Units held by Persons other than the General
Partner and its Affiliates immediately prior to the conversion of such Final Subordinated Units into Common Units.
This allocation method for establishing such economic uniformity will be available to the General Partner only if the
method for allocating the Capital Account maintained with respect to the Subordinated Units between the transferred
and retained Subordinated Units pursuant to Section 5.5(c)(ii) does not otherwise provide such economic uniformity
to the Final Subordinated Units.

(B) At the election of the General Partner with respect to any taxable period ending upon, or after, the conversion of
the Class B Units pursuant to Section 5.11(f), all or a portion of the remaining items of Partnership income or gain for
such taxable period, after taking into account allocations pursuant to Section 6.1(d)(iii) and Section 6.1(d)(x)(A), shall
be allocated 100% to the holder or holders of the Common Units resulting from the conversion pursuant to
Section 5.11(f) (�Converted Common Units�) in the proportion of the number of the Converted Common Units held by
such holder or holders to the total number of Converted Common Units then Outstanding, until each such holder has
been allocated an amount of income or gain that increases the Capital Account maintained with respect to such
Converted Common Units to an amount equal to the product of (A) the number of Converted Common Units held by
such holder and (B) the Per Unit Capital Amount for a Common Unit. The purpose of this allocation is to establish
uniformity between the Capital Accounts underlying Converted Common Units and the Capital Accounts underlying
Common Units held by Persons other than the General Partner and its Affiliates immediately prior to the receipt of
Common Units pursuant to Section 5.11(f).

(xi) Curative Allocation.
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Allocations so that, to the extent possible, the net amount of items of income, gain, loss and deduction allocated to
each Partner pursuant to the Required Allocations and the Agreed Allocations, together, shall be equal to the net
amount of such items that would have been allocated to each such Partner under the Agreed Allocations had the
Required Allocations and the related Curative Allocation not otherwise been provided in this Section 6.1.
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, Required Allocations relating to (1) Nonrecourse Deductions shall not be
taken into account except to the extent that there has been a decrease in Partnership Minimum Gain and (2) Partner
Nonrecourse Deductions shall not be taken into account except to the extent that there has been a decrease in Partner
Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain. Allocations pursuant to this Section 6.1(d)(xi)(A) shall only be made with respect
to Required Allocations to the extent the General Partner determines that such allocations will otherwise be
inconsistent with the economic agreement among the Partners. Further, allocations pursuant to this
Section 6.1(d)(xi)(A) shall be deferred with respect to allocations pursuant to clauses (1) and (2) hereof to the extent
the General Partner determines that such allocations are likely to be offset by subsequent Required Allocations.

(B) The General Partner shall, with respect to each taxable period, (1) apply the provisions of Section 6.1(d)(xi)(A) in
whatever order is most likely to minimize the economic distortions that might otherwise result from the Required
Allocations, and (2) divide all allocations pursuant to Section 6.1(d)(xi)(A) among the Partners in a manner that is
likely to minimize such economic distortions.

(xii) Corrective Allocations.  In the event of any allocation of Additional Book Basis Derivative Items or any
Book-Down Event or any recognition of a Net Termination Loss, the following rules shall apply:

(A) In the case of any allocation of Additional Book Basis Derivative Items (other than an allocation of Unrealized
Gain or Unrealized Loss under Section 5.5(d) hereof), the General Partner shall allocate additional items of income
and gain away from the holders of Incentive Distribution Rights to the Unitholders and the General Partner, or
additional items of deduction and loss away from the Unitholders and the General Partner to the holders of Incentive
Distribution Rights, to the extent that the Additional Book Basis Derivative Items allocated to the Unitholders or the
General Partner exceed their Share of Additional Book Basis Derivative Items. For this purpose, the Unitholders and
the General Partner shall be treated as being allocated Additional Book Basis Derivative Items to the extent that such
Additional Book Basis Derivative Items have reduced the amount of income that would otherwise have been allocated
to the Unitholders or the General Partner under the Partnership Agreement (e.g., Additional Book Basis Derivative
Items taken into account in computing cost of goods sold would reduce the amount of book income otherwise
available for allocation among the Partners). Any allocation made pursuant to this Section 6.1(d)(xii)(A) shall be
made after all of the other Agreed Allocations have been made as if this Section 6.1(d)(xii) were not in this Agreement
and, to the extent necessary, shall require the reallocation of items that have been allocated pursuant to such other
Agreed Allocations.

(B) In the case of any negative adjustments to the Capital Accounts of the Partners resulting from a Book-Down Event
or from the recognition of a Net Termination Loss, such negative adjustment (1) shall first be allocated, to the extent
of the Aggregate Remaining Net Positive Adjustments, in such a manner, as determined by the General Partner, that to
the extent possible the aggregate Capital Accounts of the Partners will equal the amount that would have been the
Capital Account balance of the Partners if no prior Book-Up Events had occurred, and (2) any negative adjustment in
excess of the Aggregate Remaining Net Positive Adjustments shall be allocated pursuant to Section 6.1(c) hereof.
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(C) In making the allocations required under this Section 6.1(d)(xii), the General Partner may apply whatever
conventions or other methodology it determines will satisfy the purpose of this Section 6.1(d)(xii).

Section 6.2  Allocations for Tax Purposes.

(a) Except as otherwise provided herein, for federal income tax purposes, each item of income, gain, loss and
deduction shall be allocated among the Partners in the same manner as its correlative item of �book� income, gain, loss
or deduction is allocated pursuant to Section 6.1.

(b) In an attempt to eliminate Book-Tax Disparities attributable to a Contributed Property or Adjusted Property, items
of income, gain, loss, depreciation, amortization and cost recovery deductions shall be allocated for federal income tax
purposes among the Partners as follows:

(i) (A) In the case of a Contributed Property, such items attributable thereto shall be allocated among the Partners in
the manner provided under Section 704(c) of the Code that takes into account the variation between the Agreed Value
of such property and its adjusted basis at the time of contribution; and (B) any item of Residual Gain or Residual Loss
attributable to a Contributed Property shall be allocated among the Partners in the same manner as its correlative item
of �book� gain or loss is allocated pursuant to Section 6.1.

(ii) (A) In the case of an Adjusted Property, such items shall (1) first, be allocated among the Partners in a manner
consistent with the principles of Section 704(c) of the Code to take into account the Unrealized Gain or Unrealized
Loss attributable to such property and the allocations thereof pursuant to Section 5.5(d)(i) or Section 5.5(d)(ii), and
(2) second, in the event such property was originally a Contributed Property, be allocated among the Partners in a
manner consistent with Section 6.2(b)(i)(A); and (B) any item of Residual Gain or Residual Loss attributable to an
Adjusted Property shall be allocated among the Partners in the same manner as its correlative item of �book� gain or
loss is allocated pursuant to Section 6.1.

(iii) The General Partner shall apply the principles of Treasury Regulation Section 1.704-3(d) to eliminate Book-Tax
Disparities.

(c) For the proper administration of the Partnership and for the preservation of uniformity of the Limited Partner
Interests (or any class or classes thereof), the General Partner shall (i) adopt such conventions as it deems appropriate
in determining the amount of depreciation, amortization and cost recovery deductions; (ii) make special allocations for
federal income tax purposes of income (including gross income) or deductions; and (iii) amend the provisions of this
Agreement as appropriate (x) to reflect the proposal or promulgation of Treasury Regulations under Section 704(b) or
Section 704(c) of the Code or (y) otherwise to preserve or achieve uniformity of the Limited Partner Interests (or any
class or classes thereof). The General Partner may adopt such conventions, make such allocations and make such
amendments to this Agreement as provided in this Section 6.2(c) only if such conventions, allocations or amendments
would not have a material adverse effect on the Partners, the holders of any class or classes of Limited Partner
Interests issued and Outstanding or the Partnership, and if such allocations are consistent with the principles of
Section 704 of the Code.

(d) The General Partner may determine to depreciate or amortize the portion of an adjustment under Section 743(b) of
the Code attributable to unrealized appreciation in any Adjusted Property (to the extent of the unamortized Book-Tax
Disparity) using a predetermined rate derived from the depreciation or amortization method and useful life applied to
the Partnership�s common basis of such property, despite any inconsistency of such approach with Treasury
Regulation Section 1.167(c)-l(a)(6), Treasury Regulation Section 1.197-2(g)(3), the legislative history to Section 743
or any successor regulations thereto. If the General Partner determines that such reporting position cannot reasonably
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and amortization conventions to preserve the uniformity of the intrinsic tax characteristics of any Limited Partner
Interests, so long as such conventions would not have a material adverse effect on the Limited Partners or the Record
Holders of any class or classes of Limited Partner Interests.

(e) In accordance with Treasury Regulation Section 1.1245-1(e), any gain allocated to the Partners upon the sale or
other taxable disposition of any Partnership asset shall, to the extent possible, after taking into account other required
allocations of gain pursuant to this Section 6.2, be characterized as Recapture Income in the same proportions and to
the same extent as such Partners (or their predecessors in interest) have been allocated any deductions directly or
indirectly giving rise to the treatment of such gains as Recapture Income.

(f) All items of income, gain, loss, deduction and credit recognized by the Partnership for federal income tax purposes
and allocated to the Partners in accordance with the provisions hereof shall be determined without regard to any
election under Section 754 of the Code that may be made by the Partnership; provided, however, that such allocations,
once made, shall be adjusted (in the manner determined by the General Partner) to take into account those adjustments
permitted or required by Sections 734 and 743 of the Code.

(g) Each item of Partnership income, gain, loss and deduction, for federal income tax purposes, shall be determined on
an annual basis and prorated on a monthly basis and shall be allocated to the Partners as of the opening of the National
Securities Exchange on which the Common Units may then be listed or admitted to trading on the first Business Day
of each month; provided, however, such items for the period beginning on the Closing Date and ending on the last day
of the month in which the Option Closing Date or the expiration of the Over-Allotment Option occurs shall be
allocated to the Partners as of the opening of the National Securities Exchange on which the Common Units may then
be listed or admitted to trading on the first Business Day of the next succeeding month; and provided, further, that
gain or loss on a sale or other disposition of any assets of the Partnership or any other extraordinary item of income or
loss realized and recognized other than in the ordinary course of business, as determined by the General Partner, shall
be allocated to the Partners as of the opening of the National Securities Exchange on which the Common Units may
then be listed or admitted to trading on the first Business Day of the month in which such gain or loss is recognized
for federal income tax purposes. The General Partner may revise, alter or otherwise modify such methods of allocation
to the extent permitted or required by Section 706 of the Code and the regulations or rulings promulgated thereunder.

(h) Allocations that would otherwise be made to a Limited Partner under the provisions of this Article VI shall instead
be made to the beneficial owner of Limited Partner Interests held by a nominee in any case in which the nominee has
furnished the identity of such owner to the Partnership in accordance with Section 6031(c) of the Code or any other
method determined by the General Partner.

Section 6.3  Requirement and Characterization of Distributions; Distributions to Record Holders.

(a) Within 45 days following the end of each Quarter commencing with the Quarter ending on September 30, 2007, an
amount equal to 100% of Available Cash with respect to such Quarter shall, subject to Section 17-607 of the Delaware
Act, be distributed in accordance with this Article VI by the Partnership to the Partners as of the Record Date selected
by the General Partner. All amounts of Available Cash distributed by the Partnership on any date from any source
shall be deemed to be Operating Surplus until the sum of all amounts of Available Cash theretofore distributed by the
Partnership to the Partners pursuant to Section 6.4 equals the Operating Surplus from the Closing Date through the
close of the immediately preceding Quarter. Any remaining amounts of Available Cash distributed by the Partnership
on such date shall, except as otherwise provided in Section 6.5, be deemed to be �Capital Surplus.� Notwithstanding any
provision to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the Partnership shall not make a distribution to any Partner on
account of its interest in the Partnership if such distribution would violate the Delaware Act or any other applicable
law.
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(b) Notwithstanding Section 6.3(a), in the event of the dissolution and liquidation of the Partnership, all receipts
received during or after the Quarter in which the Liquidation Date occurs shall be applied and distributed solely in
accordance with, and subject to the terms and conditions of, Section 12.4.

(c) The General Partner may treat taxes paid by the Partnership on behalf of, or amounts withheld with respect to, all
or less than all of the Partners, as a distribution of Available Cash to such Partners.

(d) Each distribution in respect of a Partnership Interest shall be paid by the Partnership, directly or through the
Transfer Agent or through any other Person or agent, only to the Record Holder of such Partnership Interest as of the
Record Date set for such distribution. Such payment shall constitute full payment and satisfaction of the Partnership�s
liability in respect of such payment, regardless of any claim of any Person who may have an interest in such payment
by reason of an assignment or otherwise.

Section 6.4  Distributions of Available Cash from Operating Surplus.

(a) During Subordination Period.  Available Cash with respect to any Quarter within the Subordination Period that is
deemed to be Operating Surplus pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.3 or 6.5 shall, subject to Section 17-607 of the
Delaware Act, be distributed as follows, except as otherwise contemplated by Section 5.6 in respect of other
Partnership Securities issued pursuant thereto:

(i) First, (x) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest and (y) to the Unitholders holding
Common Units, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the General Partner�s Percentage Interest until there has
been distributed in respect of each Common Unit then Outstanding an amount equal to the Minimum Quarterly
Distribution for such Quarter;

(ii) Second, (x) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest and (y) to the Unitholders holding
Common Units, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the General Partner�s Percentage Interest until there has
been distributed in respect of each Common Unit then Outstanding an amount equal to the Cumulative Common Unit
Arrearage existing with respect to such Quarter;

(iii) Third, (x) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest and (y) to the Unitholders holding
Subordinated Units, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the General Partner�s Percentage Interest until there has
been distributed in respect of each Subordinated Unit then Outstanding an amount equal to the Minimum Quarterly
Distribution for such Quarter;

(iv) Fourth, to the General Partner and all Unitholders, in accordance with their respective Percentage Interests, until
there has been distributed in respect of each Unit then Outstanding an amount equal to the excess of the First Target
Distribution over the Minimum Quarterly Distribution for such Quarter;

(v) Fifth, (A) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest; (B) 13% to the holders of the Incentive
Distribution Rights, Pro Rata; and (C) to all Unitholders, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the sum of the
percentages applicable to subclauses (A) and (B) of this clause (v) until there has been distributed in respect of each
Unit then Outstanding an amount equal to the excess of the Second Target Distribution over the First Target
Distribution for such Quarter;

(vi) Sixth, (A) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest, (B) 23% to the holders of the
Incentive Distribution Rights, Pro Rata; and (C) to all Unitholders, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the sum
of the percentages applicable to subclauses (A) and (B) of this subclause (vi), until there has been distributed in

Edgar Filing: OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORP - Form 4

Table of Contents 191



respect of each Unit then Outstanding an amount equal to the excess of the Third Target Distribution over the Second
Target Distribution for such Quarter; and

(vii) Thereafter, (A) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest; (B) 48% to the holders of the
Incentive Distribution Rights, Pro Rata; and (C) to all Unitholders, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the sum
of the percentages applicable to subclauses (A) and (B) of this clause (vii);
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provided, however, if the Minimum Quarterly Distribution, the First Target Distribution, the Second Target
Distribution and the Third Target Distribution have been reduced to zero pursuant to the second sentence of
Section 6.6(a), the distribution of Available Cash that is deemed to be Operating Surplus with respect to any Quarter
will be made solely in accordance with Section 6.4(a)(vii).

(b) After Subordination Period.  Available Cash with respect to any Quarter after the Subordination Period that is
deemed to be Operating Surplus pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.3 or Section 6.5, subject to Section 17-607 of
the Delaware Act, shall be distributed as follows, except as otherwise required by Section 5.6(b) in respect of
additional Partnership Securities issued pursuant thereto:

(i) First, 100% to the General Partner and the Unitholders in accordance with their respective Percentage Interests,
until there has been distributed in respect of each Unit then Outstanding an amount equal to the Minimum Quarterly
Distribution for such Quarter;

(ii) Second, 100% to the General Partner and the Unitholders in accordance with their respective Percentage Interests,
until there has been distributed in respect of each Unit then Outstanding an amount equal to the excess of the First
Target Distribution over the Minimum Quarterly Distribution for such Quarter;

(iii) Third, (A) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest; (B) 13% to the holders of the
Incentive Distribution Rights, Pro Rata; and (C) to all Unitholders, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the sum
of the percentages applicable to subclauses (A) and (B) of this clause (iii), until there has been distributed in respect of
each Unit then Outstanding an amount equal to the excess of the Second Target Distribution over the First Target
Distribution for such Quarter;

(iv) Fourth, (A) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest; (B) 23% to the holders of the
Incentive Distribution Rights, Pro Rata; and (C) to all Unitholders, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the sum
of the percentages applicable to subclause (A) and (B) of this clause (iv), until there has been distributed in respect of
each Unit then Outstanding an amount equal to the excess of the Third Target Distribution over the Second Target
Distribution for such Quarter; and

(v) Thereafter, (A) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest; (B) 48% to the holders of the
Incentive Distribution Rights, Pro Rata; and (C) to all Unitholders, Pro Rata, a percentage equal to 100% less the sum
of the percentages applicable to subclauses (A) and (B) of this clause (v);

provided, however, if the Minimum Quarterly Distribution, the First Target Distribution, the Second Target
Distribution and the Third Target Distribution have been reduced to zero pursuant to the second sentence of
Section 6.6(a), the distribution of Available Cash that is deemed to be Operating Surplus with respect to any Quarter
will be made solely in accordance with Section 6.4(b)(v).

Section 6.5  Distributions of Available Cash from Capital Surplus.

Available Cash that is deemed to be Capital Surplus pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.3(a) shall, subject to
Section 17-607 of the Delaware Act, be distributed, unless the provisions of Section 6.3 require otherwise, 100% to
the General Partner and the Unitholders in accordance with their respective Percentage Interests, until a hypothetical
holder of a Common Unit acquired in the Initial Offering has received with respect to such Common Unit, during the
period since the Closing Date through such date, distributions of Available Cash that are deemed to be Capital Surplus
in an aggregate amount equal to the Initial Unit Price. Available Cash that is deemed to be Capital Surplus shall then
be distributed (A) to the General Partner in accordance with its Percentage Interest and (B) to all Unitholders holding
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been distributed in respect of each Common Unit then Outstanding an amount equal to the Cumulative Common Unit
Arrearage. Thereafter, all Available Cash shall be distributed as if it were Operating Surplus and shall be distributed in
accordance with Section 6.4.
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Section 6.6  Adjustment of Minimum Quarterly Distribution and Target Distribution Levels.

(a) The Minimum Quarterly Distribution, First Target Distribution, Second Target Distribution, Third Target
Distribution, Common Unit Arrearages and Cumulative Common Unit Arrearages shall be proportionately adjusted in
the event of any distribution, combination or subdivision (whether effected by a distribution payable in Units or
otherwise) of Units or other Partnership Securities in accordance with Section 5.9. In the event of a distribution of
Available Cash that is deemed to be from Capital Surplus, the then applicable Minimum Quarterly Distribution, First
Target Distribution, Second Target Distribution and Third Target Distribution, shall be adjusted proportionately
downward to equal the product obtained by multiplying the otherwise applicable Minimum Quarterly Distribution,
First Target Distribution, Second Target Distribution and Third Target Distribution, as the case may be, by a fraction
of which the numerator is the Unrecovered Initial Unit Price of the Common Units immediately after giving effect to
such distribution and of which the denominator is the Unrecovered Initial Unit Price of the Common Units
immediately prior to giving effect to such distribution.

(b) The Minimum Quarterly Distribution, First Target Distribution, Second Target Distribution and Third Target
Distribution, shall also be subject to adjustment pursuant to Section 5.11 and Section 6.9.

Section 6.7  Special Provisions Relating to the Holders of Subordinated Units and Class B Units.

(a) Except with respect to the right to vote on or approve matters requiring the vote or approval of a percentage of the
holders of Outstanding Common Units and the right to participate in allocations of income, gain, loss and deduction
and distributions made with respect to Common Units, the holder of a Subordinated Unit shall have all of the rights
and obligations of a Unitholder holding Common Units hereunder; provided, however, that immediately upon the
conversion of Subordinated Units into Common Units pursuant to Section 5.7, the Unitholder holding a Subordinated
Unit shall possess all of the rights and obligations of a Unitholder holding Common Units hereunder, including the
right to vote as a Common Unitholder and the right to participate in allocations of income, gain, loss and deduction
and distributions made with respect to Common Units; provided, however, that such converted Subordinated Units
shall remain subject to the provisions of Sections 5.5(c)(ii), 6.1(d)(x)(A), 6.7(b) and 6.7(c).

(b) A Unitholder shall not be permitted to transfer a Subordinated Unit or a Subordinated Unit that has converted into
a Common Unit pursuant to Section 5.7 (other than a transfer to an Affiliate) if the remaining balance in the
transferring Unitholder�s Capital Account with respect to the retained Subordinated Units or Retained Converted
Subordinated Units would be negative after giving effect to the allocation under Section 5.5(c)(ii)(B).

(c) The Unitholder holding a Common Unit that has resulted from the conversion of a Subordinated Unit pursuant to
Section 5.7 shall not be issued a Common Unit Certificate pursuant to Section 4.1, and shall not be permitted to
transfer such Common Unit to a Person that is not an Affiliate of the holder until such time as the General Partner
determines, based on advice of counsel, that each such Common Unit should have, as a substantive matter, like
intrinsic economic and federal income tax characteristics, in all material respects, to the intrinsic economic and federal
income tax characteristics of an Initial Common Unit. In connection with the condition imposed by this Section 6.7(c),
the General Partner may take whatever steps are required to provide economic uniformity to such Common Units in
preparation for a transfer of such Common Units, including the application of Sections 5.5(c)(ii), 6.1(d)(x) and 6.7(b);
provided, however, that no such steps may be taken that would have a material adverse effect on the Unitholders
holding Common Units represented by Common Unit Certificates.

(d) Except with respect to the right to vote on or approve matters requiring the vote or approval of a percentage of the
holders of Outstanding Common Units and the right to participate in allocations of income, gain, loss and deduction
and distributions made with respect to Common Units, the holders of Class B Units shall have all the rights and

Edgar Filing: OLD POINT FINANCIAL CORP - Form 4

Table of Contents 195



obligations of a Unitholder holding Common Units; provided, however, that immediately upon the conversion of
Class B Units into Common Units pursuant to Section 5.11, the Unitholders holding a Class B Unit shall possess all
the rights and obligations of a Unitholder holding Common Units hereunder, including the right to vote as a Common
Unitholder and the
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right to participate in allocations of income, gain, loss and deduction and distributions made with respect to Common
Units; provided, however, that such converted Class B Units shall remain subject to the provisions of
Sections 6.1(d)(x)(B) and 6.7(e).

(e) The holder or holders of Common Units resulting from the conversion pursuant to Section 5.11(f) of any Class B
Units pursuant to Section 5.11 shall not be issued a Common Unit Certificate pursuant to Section 4.1, and shall not be
permitted to transfer such Common Units until such time as the General Partner determines, based on advice of
counsel, that each such Common Unit should have, as a substantive matter, like intrinsic economic and federal income
tax characteristics, in all material respects, to the intrinsic economic and federal income tax characteristics of an Initial
Common Unit. In connection with the condition imposed by this Section 6.7(d), the General Partner may take
whatever steps are required to provide economic uniformity to such Common Units, including the application of
Section 6.1(d)(x)(B); provided, however, that no such steps may be taken that would have a material adverse effect on
the Unitholders holding Common Units represented by Common Unit Certificates.

Section 6.8  Special Provisions Relating to the Holders of Incentive Distribution Rights.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Agreement, the holders of the Incentive Distribution Rights
(a) shall (i) possess the rights and obligations provided in this Agreement with respect to a Limited Partner pursuant to
Article III and Article VII and (ii) have a Capital Account as a Partner pursuant to Section 5.5 and all other provisions
related thereto and (b) shall not (i) be entitled to vote on any matters requiring the approval or vote of the holders of
Outstanding Units, except as provided by law, (ii) be entitled to any distributions other than as provided in
Sections 6.4(a)(v), (vi) and (vii), Section 6.4(b)(iii), (iv) and (v), and Section 12.4 or (iii) be allocated items of income,
gain, loss or deduction other than as specified in this Article VI.

Section 6.9  Entity-Level Taxation.

If legislation is enacted or the interpretation of existing language is modified by a governmental authority so that a
Group Member is treated as an association taxable as a corporation or is otherwise subject to an entity-level tax for
federal, state or local income tax purposes, then the General Partner may reduce the Minimum Quarterly Distribution,
the First Target Distribution, the Second Target Distribution and the Third Target Distribution by the amount of
income taxes that are payable by reason of any such new legislation or interpretation (the �Incremental Income Taxes�),
or any portion thereof selected by the General Partner, in the manner provided in this Section 6.9. If the General
Partner elects to reduce the Minimum Quarterly Distribution, the First Target Distribution, the Second Target
Distribution and the Third Target Distribution for any Quarter with respect to all or a portion of any Incremental
Income Taxes, the General Partner shall estimate for such Quarter the Partnership Group�s aggregate liability (the
�Estimated Incremental Quarterly Tax Amount�) for all (or the relevant portion of) such Incremental Income Taxes;
provided that any difference between such estimate and the actual tax liability for Incremental Income Taxes (or the
relevant portion thereof) for such Quarter may, to the extent determined by the General Partner be taken into account
in determining the Estimated Incremental Quarterly Tax Amount with respect to each Quarter in which any such
difference can be determined. For each such Quarter, the Minimum Quarterly Distribution, First Target Distribution,
Second Target Distribution and Third Target Distribution, shall be the product obtained by multiplying (a) the
amounts therefor that are set out herein prior to the application of this Section 6.9 times (b) the quotient obtained by
dividing (i) Available Cash with respect to such Quarter by (ii) the sum of Available Cash with respect to such
Quarter and the Estimated Incremental Quarterly Tax Amount for such Quarter, as determined by the General Partner.
For purposes of the foregoing, Available Cash with respect to a Quarter will be deemed reduced by the Estimated
Incremental Quarterly Tax Amount for that Quarter.
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ARTICLE VII

MANAGEMENT AND OPERATION OF BUSINESS

Section 7.1  Management.

(a) The General Partner shall conduct, direct and manage all activities of the Partnership. Except as otherwise
expressly provided in this Agreement, all management powers over the business and affairs of the Partnership shall be
exclusively vested in the General Partner, and no Limited Partner or Assignee shall have any management power over
the business and affairs of the Partnership. In addition to the powers now or hereafter granted a general partner of a
limited partnership under applicable law or that are granted to the General Partner under any other provision of this
Agreement, the General Partner, subject to Section 7.3, shall have full power and authority to do all things and on
such terms as it determines to be necessary or appropriate to conduct the business of the Partnership, to exercise all
powers set forth in Section 2.5 and to effectuate the purposes set forth in Section 2.4, including the following:

(i) the making of any expenditures, the lending or borrowing of money, the assumption or guarantee of, or other
contracting for, indebtedness and other liabilities, the issuance of evidences of indebtedness, including indebtedness
that is convertible into Partnership Securities, and the incurring of any other obligations;

(ii) the making of tax, regulatory and other filings, or rendering of periodic or other reports to governmental or other
agencies having jurisdiction over the business or assets of the Partnership;

(iii) the acquisition, disposition, mortgage, pledge, encumbrance, hypothecation or exchange of any or all of the assets
of the Partnership or the merger or other combination of the Partnership with or into another Person (the matters
described in this clause (iii) being subject, however, to any prior approval that may be required by Section 7.3 and
Article XIV);

(iv) the use of the assets of the Partnership (including cash on hand) for any purpose consistent with the terms of this
Agreement, including the financing of the conduct of the operations of the Partnership Group; subject to
Section 7.6(a), the lending of funds to other Persons (including other Group Members); the repayment or guarantee of
obligations of any Group Member; and the making of capital contributions to any Group Member;

(v) the negotiation, execution and performance of any contracts, conveyances or other instruments (including
instruments that limit the liability of the Partnership under contractual arrangements to all or particular assets of the
Partnership, with the other party to the contract to have no recourse against the General Partner or its assets other than
its interest in the Partnership, even if same results in the terms of the transaction being less favorable to the
Partnership than would otherwise be the case);

(vi) the distribution of Partnership cash;

(vii) the selection and dismissal of employees (including employees having titles such as �president,� �vice president,�
�secretary� and �treasurer�) and agents, outside attorneys, accountants, consultants and contractors and the determination
of their compensation and other terms of employment or hiring;

(viii) the maintenance of insurance for the benefit of the Partnership Group, the Partners and Indemnitees;

(ix) the formation of, or acquisition of an interest in, and the contribution of property and the making of loans to, any
further limited or general partnerships, joint ventures, corporations, limited liability companies or other relationships
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(x) the control of any matters affecting the rights and obligations of the Partnership, including the bringing and
defending of actions at law or in equity and otherwise engaging in the conduct of litigation, arbitration or mediation
and the incurring of legal expense and the settlement of claims and litigation;

(xi) the indemnification of any Person against liabilities and contingencies to the extent permitted by law;

(xii) the entering into of listing agreements with any National Securities Exchange and the delisting of some or all of
the Limited Partner Interests from, or requesting that trading be suspended on, any such exchange (subject to any prior
approval that may be required under Section 4.8);

(xiii) the purchase, sale or other acquisition or disposition of Partnership Securities, or the issuance of options, rights,
warrants, appreciation rights and tracking and phantom interests relating to Partnership Securities;

(xiv) the undertaking of any action in connection with the Partnership�s participation in any Group Member; and

(xv) the entering into of agreements with any of its Affiliates to render services to a Group Member or to itself in the
discharge of its duties as General Partner of the Partnership.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any Group Member Agreement, the Delaware Act or any
applicable law, rule or regulation, each of the Partners and the Assignees and each other Person who may acquire an
interest in Partnership Securities hereby (i) approves, ratifies and confirms the execution, delivery and performance by
the parties thereto of this Agreement and the Group Member Agreement of each other Group Member, the
Underwriting Agreement, the Omnibus Agreement, the Contribution Agreement and the other agreements described
in or filed as exhibits to the Registration Statement that are related to the transactions contemplated by the
Registration Statement; (ii) agrees that the General Partner (on its own or through any officer of the Partnership) is
authorized to execute, deliver and perform the agreements referred to in clause (i) of this sentence and the other
agreements, acts, transactions and matters described in or contemplated by the Registration Statement on behalf of the
Partnership without any further act, approval or vote of the Partners or the Assignees or the other Persons who may
acquire an interest in Partnership Securities; and (iii) agrees that the execution, delivery or performance by the General
Partner, any Group Member or any Affiliate of any of them of this Agreement or any agreement authorized or
permitted under this Agreement (including the exercise by the General Partner or any Affiliate of the General Partner
of the rights accorded pursuant to Article XV) shall not constitute a breach by the General Partner of any duty that the
General Partner may owe the Partnership or the Limited Partners or any other Persons under this Agreement (or any
other agreements) or of any duty stated or implied by law or equity.

Section 7.2  Certificate of Limited Partnership.

The General Partner has caused the Certificate of Limited Partnership to be filed with the Secretary of State of the
State of Delaware as required by the Delaware Act. The General Partner shall use all reasonable efforts to cause to be
filed such other certificates or documents that the General Partner determines to be necessary or appropriate for the
formation, continuation, qualification and operation of a limited partnership (or a partnership in which the limited
partners have limited liability) in the State of Delaware or any other state in which the Partnership may elect to do
business or own property. To the extent the General Partner determines such action to be necessary or appropriate, the
General Partner shall file amendments to and restatements of the Certificate of Limited Partnership and do all things
to maintain the Partnership as a limited partnership (or a partnership or other entity in which the limited partners have
limited liability) under the laws of the State of Delaware or of any other state in which the Partnership may elect to do
business or own property. Subject to the terms of Section 3.4(a), the General Partner shall not be required, before or
after filing, to deliver or mail a copy of the Certificate of Limited Partnership, any qualification document or any
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Section 7.3  Restrictions on the General Partner�s Authority.

Except as provided in Article XII and Article XIV, the General Partner may not sell, exchange or otherwise dispose of
all or substantially all of the assets of the Partnership Group, taken as a whole, in a single transaction or a series of
related transactions (including by way of merger, consolidation, other combination or sale of ownership interests of
the Partnership�s Subsidiaries) without the approval of holders of a Unit Majority; provided, however, that this
provision shall not preclude or limit the General Partner�s ability to mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or grant a security
interest in all or substantially all of the assets of the Partnership Group and shall not apply to any forced sale of any or
all of the assets of the Partnership Group pursuant to the foreclosure of, or other realization upon, any such
encumbrance. Without the approval of holders of a Unit Majority, the General Partner shall not, on behalf of the
Partnership, except as permitted under Section 4.6, 11.1 and Section 11.2, elect or cause the Partnership to elect a
successor general partner of the Partnership.

Section 7.4  Reimbursement of the General Partner.

(a) Except as provided in this Section 7.4 and elsewhere in this Agreement, the General Partner shall not be
compensated for its services as a general partner or managing member of any Group Member.

(b) Subject to the provisions of the Omnibus Agreement, the General Partner shall be reimbursed on a monthly basis,
or such other basis as the General Partner may determine, for (i) all direct and indirect expenses it incurs or payments
it makes on behalf of the Partnership Group (including salary, bonus, incentive compensation and other amounts paid
to any Person, including Affiliates of the General Partner to perform services for the Partnership Group or for the
General Partner in the discharge of its duties to the Partnership Group and including certain expenses allocated to the
Partnership by Affiliates of the General Partner), and (ii) all other expenses allocable to the Partnership Group or
otherwise incurred by the General Partner in connection with operating the Partnership Group�s business (including
expenses allocated to the General Partner by its Affiliates). The General Partner shall determine the expenses that are
allocable to the Partnership Group. Reimbursements pursuant to this Section 7.4 shall be in addition to any
reimbursement to the General Partner as a result of indemnification pursuant to Section 7.7. Any allocation of
expenses to the Partnership by Affiliates of the General Partner in a manner consistent with then-applicable
accounting and allocation methodologies generally permitted by FERC for rate-making purposes (or in the absence of
then-applicable methodologies permitted by FERC, consistent with the most-recently applicable methodologies) and
past business practices shall be deemed to be fair and reasonable to the Partnership.

(c) The General Partner, without the approval of the Limited Partners (who shall have no right to vote in respect
thereof), may propose and adopt on behalf of the Partnership employee benefit plans, employee programs and
employee practices (including plans, programs and practices involving the issuance of Partnership Securities or
options to purchase or rights, warrants or appreciation rights or phantom or tracking interests relating to Partnership
Securities), or cause the Partnership to issue Partnership Securities in connection with, or pursuant to, any employee
benefit plan, employee program or employee practice maintained or sponsored by the General Partner, Group Member
or any Affiliates in each case for the benefit of employees and directors of the General Partner or any of its Affiliates,
in respect of services performed, directly or indirectly, for the benefit of the Partnership Group. The Partnership agrees
to issue and sell to the General Partner or any of its Affiliates any Partnership Securities that the General Partner or
such Affiliates are obligated to provide to any employees and directors pursuant to any such employee benefit plans,
employee programs or employee practices. Expenses incurred by the General Partner in connection with any such
plans, programs and practices (including the net cost to the General Partner or such Affiliates of Partnership Securities
purchased by the General Partner or such Affiliates from the Partnership to fulfill options or awards under such plans,
programs and practices) shall be reimbursed in accordance with Section 7.4(b). Any and all obligations of the General
Partner under any employee benefit plans, employee programs or employee practices adopted by the General Partner
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successor to all of the General Partner�s General Partner Interest (represented by General Partner Units) pursuant to
Section 4.6.

Section 7.5  Outside Activities.

(a) After the Closing Date, the General Partner, for so long as it is the General Partner of the Partnership (i) agrees that
its sole business will be to act as a general partner or managing member, as the case may be, of the Partnership and
any other partnership or limited liability company of which the Partnership is, directly or indirectly, a partner or
member and to undertake activities that are ancillary or related thereto (including being a limited partner in the
Partnership) and (ii) shall not engage in any business or activity or incur any debts or liabilities except in connection
with or incidental to (A) its performance as general partner or managing member, if any, of one or more Group
Members or as described in or contemplated by the Registration Statement or (B) the acquiring, owning or disposing
of debt or equity securities in any Group Member.

(b) Each Indemnitee (other than the General Partner) shall have the right to engage in businesses of every type and
description and other activities for profit and to engage in and possess an interest in other business ventures of any and
every type or description, whether in businesses engaged in or anticipated to be engaged in by any Group Member,
independently or with others, including business interests and activities in direct competition with the business and
activities of any Group Member, and none of the same shall constitute a breach of this Agreement or any duty
expressed or implied by law or equity to any Group Member or any Partner or Assignee. None of any Group Member,
any Limited Partner or any other Person shall have any rights by virtue of this Agreement, any Group Member
Agreement, or the partnership relationship established hereby in any business ventures of any Indemnitee.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement or any duty existing at law, in equity or otherwise, but
subject to the proviso set forth in the last sentence of this Section 7.5(b), (i) the engaging in competitive activities by
any Indemnitees (other than the General Partner) in accordance with the provisions of this Section 7.5 is hereby
approved by the Partnership and all Partners, (ii) it shall be deemed not to be a breach of any fiduciary duty or any
other obligation of any type whatsoever of any Indemnitee for the Indemnitees (other than the General Partner) to
engage in such business interests and activities in preference to or to the exclusion of the Partnership and (iii) the
Indemnitees shall have no obligation hereunder or as a result of any duty expressed or implied by law to present
business opportunities to the Partnership. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the doctrine of
corporate opportunity, or any analogous doctrine, shall not apply to any Indemnitee (including the General Partner).
No Indemnitee (including the General Partner) who acquires knowledge of a potential transaction, agreement,
arrangement or other matter that may be an opportunity for the Partnership, shall have any duty to communicate or
offer such opportunity to the Partnership, and such Indemnitee (including the General Partner) shall not be liable to
the Partnership, to any Limited Partner or any other Person for breach of any fiduciary or other duty by reason of the
fact that such Indemnitee (including the General Partner) pursues or acquires for itself, directs such opportunity to
another Person or does not communicate such opportunity or information to the Partnership; provided such
Indemnitee does not engage in such business or activity as a result of or using confidential or proprietary information
provided by or on behalf of the Partnership to such Indemnitee.

(c) The General Partner and each of its Affiliates may acquire Units or other Partnership Securities in addition to those
acquired on the Closing Date and, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, shall be entitled to exercise, at
their option, all rights relating to all Units or other Partnership Securities acquired by them. The term �Affiliates� when
used in this Section 7.5(c) with respect to the General Partner shall not include any Group Member.

Section 7.6  Loans from the General Partner; Loans or Contributions from the Partnership or Group Members.

(a) The General Partner or any of its Affiliates may lend to any Group Member, and any Group Member may borrow
from the General Partner or any of its Affiliates, funds needed or desired by the Group Member for such periods of
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rate greater than the rate that would be charged the borrowing party or impose terms less favorable to the borrowing
party than would be charged or imposed on the borrowing party by unrelated lenders on comparable loans made on an
arm�s-length basis (without reference to the lending party�s financial abilities or guarantees), all as determined by the
General Partner. The borrowing party shall reimburse the lending party for any costs (other than any additional
interest costs) incurred by the lending party in connection with the borrowing of such funds. For purposes of this
Section 7.6(a) and Section 7.6(b), the term �Group Member� shall include any Affiliate of a Group Member that is
controlled by the Group Member.

(b) The Partnership may lend or contribute to any Group Member, and any Group Member may borrow from the
Partnership, funds on terms and conditions determined by the General Partner. No Group Member may lend funds to
the General Partner or any of its Affiliates (other than another Group Member).

(c) No borrowing by any Group Member or the approval thereof by the General Partner shall be deemed to constitute
a breach of any duty, expressed or implied, of the General Partner or its Affiliates to the Partnership or the Limited
Partners existing hereunder, or existing at law, in equity or otherwise by reason of the fact that the purpose or effect of
such borrowing is directly or indirectly to (i) enable distributions to the General Partner or its Affiliates (including in
their capacities as Limited Partners) to exceed the General Partner�s Percentage Interest of the total amount distributed
to all partners or (ii) hasten the expiration of the Subordination Period or the conversion of any Subordinated Units
into Common Units.

Section 7.7  Indemnification.

(a) To the fullest extent permitted by law but subject to the limitations expressly provided in this Agreement, all
Indemnitees shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Partnership from and against any and all losses, claims,
damages, liabilities, joint or several, expenses (including legal fees and expenses), judgments, fines, penalties, interest,
settlements or other amounts arising from any and all claims, demands, actions, suits or proceedings, whether civil,
criminal, administrative or investigative, in which any Indemnitee may be involved, or is threatened to be involved, as
a party or otherwise, by reason of its status as an Indemnitee; provided, that the Indemnitee shall not be indemnified
and held harmless if there has been a final and non-appealable judgment entered by a court of competent jurisdiction
determining that, in respect of the matter for which the Indemnitee is seeking indemnification pursuant to this
Section 7.7, the Indemnitee acted in bad faith or engaged in fraud, willful misconduct or, in the case of a criminal
matter, acted with knowledge that the Indemnitee�s conduct was unlawful; provided, further, no indemnification
pursuant to this Section 7.7 shall be available to the General Partner or its Affiliates (other than a Group Member)
with respect to its or their obligations incurred pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, the Omnibus Agreement or
the Contribution Agreement (other than obligations incurred by the General Partner on behalf of the Partnership). Any
indemnification pursuant to this Section 7.7 shall be made only out of the assets of the Partnership, it being agreed that
the General Partner shall not be personally liable for such indemnification and shall have no obligation to contribute
or loan any monies or property to the Partnership to enable it to effectuate such indemnification.

(b) To the fullest extent permitted by law, expenses (including legal fees and expenses) incurred by an Indemnitee
who is indemnified pursuant to Section 7.7(a) in defending any claim, demand, action, suit or proceeding shall, from
time to time, be advanced by the Partnership prior to a determination that the Indemnitee is not entitled to be
indemnified upon receipt by the Partnership of any undertaking by or on behalf of the Indemnitee to repay such
amount if it shall be determined that the Indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified as authorized in this Section 7.7.

(c) The indemnification provided by this Section 7.7 shall be in addition to any other rights to which an Indemnitee
may be entitled under any agreement, pursuant to any vote of the holders of Outstanding Limited Partner Interests, as
a matter of law or otherwise, both as to actions in the Indemnitee�s capacity as an Indemnitee and as to actions in any
other capacity (including any capacity under the Underwriting Agreement), and shall continue as to an Indemnitee
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(d) The Partnership may purchase and maintain (or reimburse the General Partner or its Affiliates for the cost of)
insurance, on behalf of the General Partner, its Affiliates and such other Persons as the General Partner shall
determine, against any liability that may be asserted against, or expense that may be incurred by, such Person in
connection with the Partnership�s activities or such Person�s activities on behalf of the Partnership, regardless of
whether the Partnership would have the power to indemnify such Person against such liability under the provisions of
this Agreement.

(e) For purposes of this Section 7.7, the Partnership shall be deemed to have requested an Indemnitee to serve as
fiduciary of an employee benefit plan whenever the performance by it of its duties to the Partnership also imposes
duties on, or otherwise involves services by, it to the plan or participants or beneficiaries of the plan; excise taxes
assessed on an Indemnitee with respect to an employee benefit plan pursuant to applicable law shall constitute �fines�
within the meaning of Section 7.7(a); and action taken or omitted by it with respect to any employee benefit plan in
the performance of its duties for a purpose reasonably believed by it to be in the best interest of the participants and
beneficiaries of the plan shall be deemed to be for a purpose that is in the best interests of the Partnership.

(f) In no event may an Indemnitee subject the Limited Partners to personal liability by reason of the indemnification
provisions set forth in this Agreement.

(g) An Indemnitee shall not be denied indemnification in whole or in part under this Section 7.7 because the
Indemnitee had an interest in the transaction with respect to which the indemnification applies if the transaction was
otherwise permitted by the terms of this Agreement.

(h) The provisions of this Section 7.7 are for the benefit of the Indemnitees, their heirs, successors, assigns and
administrators and shall not be deemed to create any rights for the benefit of any other Persons.

(i) No amendment, modification or repeal of this Section 7.7 or any provision hereof shall in any manner terminate,
reduce or impair the right of any past, present or future Indemnitee to be indemnified by the Partnership, nor the
obligations of the Partnership to indemnify any such Indemnitee under and in accordance with the provisions of this
Section 7.7 as in effect immediately prior to such amendment, modification or repeal with respect to claims arising
from or relating to matters occurring, in whole or in part, prior to such amendment, modification or repeal, regardless
of when such claims may arise or be asserted.

Section 7.8  Liability of Indemnitees.

(a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Agreement, no Indemnitee shall be liable for monetary
damages to the Partnership, the Limited Partners, the Assignees or any other Persons who have acquired interests in
the Partnership Securities, for losses sustained or liabilities incurred as a result of any act or omission of an
Indemnitee unless there has been a final and non-appealable judgment entered by a court of competent jurisdiction
determining that, in respect of the matter in question, the Indemnitee acted in bad faith or engaged in fraud, willful
misconduct or, in the case of a criminal matter, acted with knowledge that the Indemnitee�s conduct was criminal.

(b) Subject to its obligations and duties as General Partner set forth in Section 7.1(a), the General Partner may exercise
any of the powers granted to it by this Agreement and perform any of the duties imposed upon it hereunder either
directly or by or through its agents, and the General Partner shall not be responsible for any misconduct or negligence
on the part of any such agent appointed by the General Partner in good faith.

(c) To the extent that, at law or in equity, an Indemnitee has duties (including fiduciary duties) and liabilities relating
thereto to the Partnership or to the Partners, the General Partner and any other Indemnitee acting in connection with
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(d) Any amendment, modification or repeal of this Section 7.8 or any provision hereof shall be prospective only and
shall not in any way affect the limitations on the liability of the Indemnitees under this Section 7.8 as in effect
immediately prior to such amendment, modification or repeal with respect to claims arising from or relating to matters
occurring, in whole or in part, prior to such amendment, modification or repeal, regardless of when such claims may
arise or be asserted.

Section 7.9  Resolution of Conflicts of Interest; Standards of Conduct and Modification of Duties.

(a) Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement or any Group Member Agreement, whenever a potential
conflict of interest exists or arises between the General Partner or any of its Affiliates, on the one hand, and the
Partnership, any Group Member, any Partner or any Assignee, on the other, any resolution or course of action by the
General Partner or its Affiliates in respect of such conflict of interest shall be permitted and deemed approved by all
Partners, and shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement, of any Group Member Agreement, of any agreement
contemplated herein or therein, or of any duty stated or implied by law or equity, if the resolution or course of action
in respect of such conflict of interest is (i) approved by Special Approval, (ii) approved by the vote of a majority of the
Outstanding Common Units (excluding Common Units owned by the General Partner and its Affiliates), (iii) on terms
no less favorable to the Partnership than those generally being provided to or available from unrelated third parties or
(iv) fair and reasonable to the Partnership, taking into account the totality of the relationships between the parties
involved (including other transactions that may be particularly favorable or advantageous to the Partnership). The
General Partner shall be authorized but not required in connection with its resolution of such conflict of interest to
seek Special Approval of such resolution, and the General Partner may also adopt a resolution or course of action that
has not received Special Approval. If Special Approval is sought, then it shall be presumed that, in making its
decision, the Conflicts Committee acted in good faith, and if Special Approval is not sought and the Board of
Directors of the General Partner determines that the resolution or course of action taken with respect to a conflict of
interest satisfies either of the standards set forth in clauses (iii) or (iv) above, then it shall be presumed that, in making
its decision, the Board of Directors of the General Partner acted in good faith, and in either case, in any proceeding
brought by any Limited Partner or Assignee or by or on behalf of such Limited Partner or Assignee or any other
Limited Partner or Assignee or the Partnership challenging such approval, the Person bringing or prosecuting such
proceeding shall have the burden of overcoming such presumption. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this
Agreement or any duty otherwise existing at law or equity, the existence of the conflicts of interest described in the
Registration Statement are hereby approved by all Partners and shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement.

(b) Whenever the General Partner makes a determination or takes or declines to take any other action, or any of its
Affiliates causes it to do so, in its capacity as the general partner of the Partnership as opposed to in its individual
capacity, whether under this Agreement, any Group Member Agreement or any other agreement contemplated hereby
or otherwise, then, unless another express standard is provided for in this Agreement, the General Partner, or such
Affiliates causing it to do so, shall make such determination or take or decline to take such other action in good faith
and shall not be subject to any other or different standards imposed by this Agreement, any Group Member
Agreement, any other agreement contemplated hereby or under the Delaware Act or any other law, rule or regulation
or at equity. Whenever the Conflicts Committee makes a determination or takes or declines to take any other action, it
shall make such determination or take or decline to take such other action in good faith and shall not be subject to any
other or different standards imposed by this Agreement, any Group Member Agreement, any other agreement
contemplated hereby or under the Delaware Act or any other law, rule or regulation or at equity. In order for a
determination or other action to be in �good faith� for purposes of this Agreement, the Person or Persons making such
determination or taking or declining to take such other action must believe that the determination or other action is in
the best interests of the Partnership.
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it to do so, are entitled to make such determination or to take or decline to take such other action free of any fiduciary
duty or obligation whatsoever to the Partnership, any Limited Partner or Assignee, and the General Partner, or such
Affiliates causing it to do so, shall not be required to act in good faith or pursuant to any other standard imposed by
this Agreement, any Group Member Agreement, any other agreement contemplated hereby or under the Delaware Act
or any other law, rule or regulation or at equity. By way of illustration and not of limitation, whenever the phrase, �at
the option of the General Partner,� or some variation of that phrase, is used in this Agreement, it indicates that the
General Partner is acting in its individual capacity. For the avoidance of doubt, but subject to Sections 4.6 and 4.7,
whenever the General Partner votes or transfers its Partnership Interests, or refrains from voting or transferring its
Partnership Interests, it shall be acting in its individual capacity. The General Partner�s organizational documents may
provide that determinations to take or decline to take any action in its individual, rather than representative, capacity
may or shall be determined by its members, if the General Partner is a limited liability company, stockholders, if the
General Partner is a corporation, or the members or stockholders of the General Partner�s general partner, if the
General Partner is a partnership.

(d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the General Partner and its Affiliates shall have no
duty or obligation, express or implied, to (i) sell or otherwise dispose of any asset of the Partnership Group other than
in the ordinary course of business or (ii) permit any Group Member to use any facilities or assets of the General
Partner and its Affiliates, except as may be provided in contracts entered into from time to time specifically dealing
with such use. Any determination by the General Partner or any of its Affiliates to enter into such contracts shall be at
its option.

(e) Except as expressly set forth in this Agreement, neither the General Partner nor any other Indemnitee shall have
any duties or liabilities, including fiduciary duties, to the Partnership or any Limited Partner or Assignee and the
provisions of this Agreement, to the extent that they restrict, eliminate or otherwise modify the duties and liabilities,
including fiduciary duties, of the General Partner or any other Indemnitee otherwise existing at law or in equity, are
agreed by the Partners to replace such other duties and liabilities of the General Partner or such other Indemnitee.

(f) The Unitholders hereby authorize the General Partner, on behalf of the Partnership as a partner or member of a
Group Member, to approve of actions by the general partner or managing member of such Group Member similar to
those actions permitted to be taken by the General Partner pursuant to this Section 7.9.

Section 7.10  Other Matters Concerning the General Partner.

(a) The General Partner may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon any resolution,
certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, consent, order, bond, debenture or other paper or
document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper party or parties.

(b) The General Partner may consult with legal counsel, accountants, appraisers, management consultants, investment
bankers and other consultants and advisers selected by it, and any act taken or omitted to be taken in reliance upon the
opinion (including an Opinion of Counsel) of such Persons as to matters that the General Partner reasonably believes
to be within such Person�s professional or expert competence shall be conclusively presumed to have been done or
omitted in good faith and in accordance with such opinion.

(c) The General Partner shall have the right, in respect of any of its powers or obligations hereunder, to act through
any of its duly authorized officers, a duly appointed attorney or attorneys-in-fact or the duly authorized officers of the
Partnership or any Group Member.

Section 7.11  Purchase or Sale of Partnership Securities.
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Securities shall be held by the Partnership as treasury securities unless they are expressly cancelled by action of an
appropriate officer of the General Partner. As long as Partnership Securities are held by any Group Member, such
Partnership Securities shall not be considered Outstanding for any purpose, except as otherwise provided herein. The
General Partner or any Affiliate of the General Partner may also purchase or otherwise acquire and sell or otherwise
dispose of Partnership Securities for its own account, subject to the provisions of Articles IV and X.

Section 7.12  Registration Rights of the General Partner and its Affiliates.

(a) If (i) the General Partner or any Affiliate of the General Partner (including for purposes of this Section 7.12, any
Person that is an Affiliate of the General Partner at the date hereof notwithstanding that it may later cease to be an
Affiliate of the General Partner) holds Partnership Securities that it desires to sell and (ii) Rule 144 of the Securities
Act (or any successor rule or regulation to Rule 144) or another exemption from registration is not available to enable
such holder of Partnership Securities (the �Holder�) to dispose of the number of Partnership Securities it desires to sell
at the time it desires to do so without registration under the Securities Act, then at the option and upon the request of
the Holder, the Partnership shall file with the Commission as promptly as practicable after receiving such request, and
use commercially reasonable efforts to cause to become effective and remain effective for a period of not less than six
months following its effective date or such shorter period as shall terminate when all Partnership Securities covered by
such registration statement have been sold, a registration statement under the Securities Act registering the offering
and sale of the number of Partnership Securities specified by the Holder; provided, however, that the Partnership shall
not be required to effect more than three registrations pursuant to this Section 7.12(a) and Section 7.12(b); and
provided further, however, that if the Conflicts Committee determines in good faith that the requested registration
would be materially detrimental to the Partnership and its Partners because such registration would (x) materially
interfere with a significant acquisition, reorganization or other similar transaction involving the Partnership,
(y) require premature disclosure of material information that the Partnership has a bona fide business purpose for
preserving as confidential or (z) render the Partnership unable to comply with requirements under applicable securities
laws, then the Partnership shall have the right to postpone such requested registration for a period of not more than six
months after receipt of the Holder�s request, such right pursuant to this Section 7.12(a) or Section 7.12(b) not to be
utilized more than once in any twelve-month period. In connection with any registration pursuant to the first sentence
of this Section 7.12(a), the Partnership shall (i) promptly prepare and file (A) such documents as may be necessary to
register or qualify the securities subject to such registration under the securities laws of such states as the Holder shall
reasonably request; provided, however, that no such qualification shall be required in any jurisdiction where, as a
result thereof, the Partnership would become subject to general service of process or to taxation or qualification to do
business as a foreign corporation or partnership doing business in such jurisdiction solely as a result of such
registration, and (B) such documents as may be necessary to apply for listing or to list the Partnership Securities
subject to such registration on such National Securities Exchange as the Holder shall reasonably request, and (ii) do
any and all other acts and things that may be necessary or appropriate to enable the Holder to consummate a public
sale of such Partnership Securities in such states. Except as set forth in Section 7.12(d), all costs and expenses of any
such registration and offering (other than the underwriting discounts and commissions) shall be paid by the
Partnership, without reimbursement by the Holder.

(b) If any Holder holds Partnership Securities that it desires to sell and Rule 144 of the Securities Act (or any
successor rule or regulation to Rule 144) or another exemption from registration is not available to enable such Holder
to dispose of the number of Partnership Securities it desires to sell at the time it desires to do so without registration
under the Securities Act, then at the option and upon the request of the Holder, the Partnership shall file with the
Commission as promptly as practicable after receiving such request, and use commercially reasonable efforts to cause
to become effective and remain effective for a period of not less than six months following its effective date or such
shorter period as shall terminate when all Partnership Securities covered by such shelf registration statement have
been sold, a �shelf� registration statement covering the Partnership Securities specified by the Holder on an appropriate
form under Rule 415 under the Securities Act, or any similar rule that may be adopted by the Commission;
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provided, however, that the Partnership shall not be required to effect more than three registrations pursuant to
Section 7.12(a) and this Section 7.12(b); and provided further, however, that if the Conflicts Committee determines in
good faith that any offering under, or the use of any prospectus forming a part of, the shelf registration statement
would be materially detrimental to the Partnership and its Partners because such offering or use would (x) materially
interfere with a significant acquisition, reorganization or other similar transaction involving the Partnership,
(y) require premature disclosure of material information that the Partnership has a bona fide business purpose for
preserving as confidential or (z) render the Partnership unable to comply with requirements under applicable securities
laws, then the Partnership shall have the right to suspend such offering or use for a period of not more than six months
after receipt of the Holder�s request, such right pursuant to Section 7.12(a) or this Section 7.12(b) not to be utilized
more than once in any twelve-month period. In connection with any shelf registration pursuant to this Section 7.12(b),
the Partnership shall (i) promptly prepare and file (A) such documents as may be necessary to register or qualify the
securities subject to such shelf registration under the securities laws of such states as the Holder shall reasonably
request; provided, however, that no such qualification shall be required in any jurisdiction where, as a result thereof,
the Partnership would become subject to general service of process or to taxation or qualification to do business as a
foreign corporation or partnership doing business in such jurisdiction solely as a result of such shelf registration, and
(B) such documents as may be necessary to apply for listing or to list the Partnership Securities subject to such shelf
registration on such National Securities Exchange as the Holder shall reasonably request, and (ii) do any and all other
acts and things that may be necessary or appropriate to enable the Holder to consummate a public sale of such
Partnership Securities in such states. Except as set forth in Section 7.12(d), all costs and expenses of any such shelf
registration and offering (other than the underwriting discounts and commissions) shall be paid by the Partnership,
without reimbursement by the Holder.

(c) If the Partnership shall at any time propose to file a registration statement under the Securities Act for an offering
of equity securities of the Partnership for cash (other than an offering relating solely to an employee benefit plan), the
Partnership shall notify all Holders of such proposal and use all reasonable efforts to include such number or amount
of securities held by the Holder in such registration statement as the Holder shall request; provided, that the
Partnership is not required to make any effort or take any action to so include the securities of the Holder once the
registration statement is declared effective by the Commission or otherwise becomes effective, including any
registration statement providing for the offering from time to time of securities pursuant to Rule 415 of the Securities
Act. If the proposed offering pursuant to this Section 7.12(c) shall be an underwritten offering, then, in the event that
the managing underwriter or managing underwriters of such offering advise the Partnership and the Holder in writing
that in their opinion the inclusion of all or some of the Holder�s Partnership Securities would adversely and materially
affect the success of the offering, the Partnership shall include in such offering only that number or amount, if any, of
securities held by the Holder that, in the opinion of the managing underwriter or managing underwriters, will not so
adversely and materially affect the offering. Except as set forth in Section 7.12(d), all costs and expenses of any such
registration and offering (other than the underwriting discounts and commissions) shall be paid by the Partnership,
without reimbursement by the Holder.

(d) If underwriters are engaged in connection with any registration referred to in this Section 7.12, the Partnership
shall provide indemnification, representations, covenants, opinions and other assurance to the underwriters in form
and substance reasonably satisfactory to such underwriters. Further, in addition to and not in limitation of the
Partnership�s obligation under Section 7.7, the Partnership shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify and
hold harmless the Holder, its officers, directors and each Person who controls the Holder (within the meaning of the
Securities Act) and any agent thereof (collectively, �Indemnified Persons�) from and against any and all losses, claims,
damages, liabilities, joint or several, expenses (including legal fees and expenses), judgments, fines, penalties, interest,
settlements or other amounts arising from any and all claims, demands, actions, suits or proceedings, whether civil,
criminal, administrative or investigative, in which any Indemnified Person may be involved, or is threatened to be
involved, as a party or otherwise, under the Securities Act or otherwise (hereinafter referred to in this Section 7.12(d)
as a �claim� and in the plural as �claims�) based upon, arising out of or resulting from any untrue statement or alleged
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under which any Partnership Securities were registered under the Securities Act or any state securities or Blue Sky
laws, in any preliminary prospectus (if used prior to the effective date of such registration statement), or in any
summary or final prospectus or any free writing prospectus or in any amendment or supplement thereto (if used during
the period the Partnership is required to keep the registration statement current), or arising out of, based upon or
resulting from the omission or alleged omission to state therein a material fact required to be stated therein or
necessary to make the statements made therein not misleading; provided, however, that the Partnership shall not be
liable to any Indemnified Person to the extent that any such claim arises out of, is based upon or results from an untrue
statement or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission made in such registration statement, such
preliminary, summary or final prospectus or any free writing prospectus or such amendment or supplement, in
reliance upon and in conformity with written information furnished to the Partnership by or on behalf of such
Indemnified Person specifically for use in the preparation thereof.

(e) The provisions of Section 7.12(a), Section 7.12(b) and Section 7.12(c) shall continue to be applicable with respect
to the General Partner (and any of the General Partner�s Affiliates) after it ceases to be a general partner of the
Partnership, during a period of two years subsequent to the effective date of such cessation and for so long thereafter
as is required for the Holder to sell all of the Partnership Securities with respect to which it has requested during such
two-year period inclusion in a registration statement otherwise filed or that a registration statement be filed; provided,
however, that the Partnership shall not be required to file successive registration statements covering the same
Partnership Securities for which registration was demanded during such two-year period. The provisions of
Section 7.12(d) shall continue in effect thereafter.

(f) The rights to cause the Partnership to register Partnership Securities pursuant to this Section 7.12 may be assigned
(but only with all related obligations) by a Holder to a transferee or assignee of such Partnership Securities, provided
(i) the Partnership is, within a reasonable time after such transfer, furnished with written notice of the name and
address of such transferee or assignee and the Partnership Securities with respect to which such registration rights are
being assigned; and (ii) such transferee or assignee agrees in writing to be bound by and subject to the terms set forth
in this Section 7.12.

(g) Any request to register Partnership Securities pursuant to this Section 7.12 shall (i) specify the Partnership
Securities intended to be offered and sold by the Person making the request, (ii) express such Person�s present intent to
offer such Partnership Securities for distribution, (iii) describe the nature or method of the proposed offer and sale of
Partnership Securities, and (iv) contain the undertaking of such Person to provide all such information and materials
and take all action as may be required in order to permit the Partnership to comply with all applicable requirements in
connection with the registration of such Partnership Securities.

Section 7.13  Reliance by Third Parties.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, any Person dealing with the Partnership shall be entitled
to assume that the General Partner and any officer of the General Partner authorized by the General Partner to act on
behalf of and in the name of the Partnership has full power and authority to encumber, sell or otherwise use in any
manner any and all assets of the Partnership and to enter into any authorized contracts on behalf of the Partnership,
and such Person shall be entitled to deal with the General Partner or any such officer as if it were the Partnership�s sole
party in interest, both legally and beneficially. Each Limited Partner hereby waives, to the fullest extent permitted by
law, any and all defenses or other remedies that may be available against such Person to contest, negate or disaffirm
any action of the General Partner or any such officer in connection with any such dealing. In no event shall any Person
dealing with the General Partner or any such officer or its representatives be obligated to ascertain that the terms of
this Agreement have been complied with or to inquire into the necessity or expedience of any act or action of the
General Partner or any such officer or its representatives. Each and every certificate, document or other instrument
executed on behalf of the Partnership by the General Partner or its representatives shall be conclusive evidence in
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force and effect, (b) the Person executing and delivering such certificate, document or instrument was duly authorized
and empowered to do so for and on behalf of the Partnership and (c) such certificate, document or instrument was duly
executed and delivered in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement and is binding upon the
Partnership.

ARTICLE VIII

BOOKS, RECORDS, ACCOUNTING AND REPORTS

Section 8.1  Records and Accounting.

The General Partner shall keep or cause to be kept at the principal office of the Partnership appropriate books and
records with respect to the Partnership�s business, including all books and records necessary to provide to the Limited
Partners any information required to be provided pursuant to Section 3.4(a). Any books and records maintained by or
on behalf of the Partnership in the regular course of its business, including the record of the Record Holders and
Assignees of Units or other Partnership Securities, books of account and records of Partnership proceedings, may be
kept on, or be in the form of, computer disks, hard drives, punch cards, magnetic tape, photographs, micrographics or
any other information storage device; provided, that the books and records so maintained are convertible into clearly
legible written form within a reasonable period of time. The books of the Partnership shall be maintained, for financial
reporting purposes, on an accrual basis in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Section 8.2  Fiscal Year.

The fiscal year of the Partnership shall be a fiscal year ending December 31.

Section 8.3  Reports.

(a) As soon as practicable, but in no event later than 120 days after the close of each fiscal year of the Partnership, the
General Partner shall cause to be mailed or made available, by any reasonable means (including posting on or
accessible through the Partnership�s or the SEC�s website) to each Record Holder of a Unit as of a date selected by the
General Partner, an annual report containing financial statements of the Partnership for such fiscal year of the
Partnership, presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP, including a balance sheet and statements of operations,
Partnership equity and cash flows, such statements to be audited by a firm of independent public accountants selected
by the General Partner.

(b) As soon as practicable, but in no event later than 90 days after the close of each Quarter except the last Quarter of
each fiscal year, the General Partner shall cause to be mailed or made available, by any reasonable means (including
posting on or accessible through the Partnership�s or the SEC�s website) to each Record Holder of a Unit, as of a date
selected by the General Partner, a report containing unaudited financial statements of the Partnership and such other
information as may be required by applicable law, regulation or rule of any National Securities Exchange on which
the Units are listed or admitted to trading, or as the General Partner determines to be necessary or appropriate.

ARTICLE IX

TAX MATTERS

Section 9.1  Tax Returns and Information.
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calendar year in which the Partnership�s taxable year ends. The classification, realization and recognition of income,
gain, losses and deductions and other items shall be on the accrual method of accounting for federal income tax
purposes.

Section 9.2  Tax Elections.

(a) The Partnership shall make the election under Section 754 of the Code in accordance with applicable regulations
thereunder, subject to the reservation of the right to seek to revoke any such election upon the General Partner�s
determination that such revocation is in the best interests of the Limited Partners. Notwithstanding any other provision
herein contained, for the purposes of computing the adjustments under Section 743(b) of the Code, the General
Partner shall be authorized (but not required) to adopt a convention whereby the price paid by a transferee of a
Limited Partner Interest will be deemed to be the lowest quoted closing price of the Limited Partner Interests on any
National Securities Exchange on which such Limited Partner Interests are listed or admitted to trading during the
calendar month in which such transfer is deemed to occur pursuant to Section 6.2(g) without regard to the actual price
paid by such transferee.

(b) Except as otherwise provided herein, the General Partner shall determine whether the Partnership should make any
other elections permitted by the Code.

Section 9.3  Tax Controversies.

Subject to the provisions hereof, the General Partner is designated as the Tax Matters Partner (as defined in the Code)
and is authorized and required to represent the Partnership (at the Partnership�s expense) in connection with all
examinations of the Partnership�s affairs by tax authorities, including resulting administrative and judicial proceedings,
and to expend Partnership funds for professional services and costs associated therewith. Each Partner agrees to
cooperate with the General Partner and to do or refrain from doing any or all things reasonably required by the
General Partner to conduct such proceedings.

Section 9.4  Withholding.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the General Partner is authorized to take any action that may
be required to cause the Partnership and other Group Members to comply with any withholding requirements
established under the Code or any other federal, state or local law including pursuant to Sections 1441, 1442, 1445
and 1446 of the Code. To the extent that the Partnership is required or elects to withhold and pay over to any taxing
authority any amount resulting from the allocation or distribution of income to any Partner or Assignee (including by
reason of Section 1446 of the Code), the General Partner may treat the amount withheld as a distribution of cash
pursuant to Section 6.3 in the amount of such withholding from such Partner.

ARTICLE X

ADMISSION OF PARTNERS

Section 10.1  Admission of Initial Limited Partners.

Upon the issuance by the Partnership of Common Units, Subordinated Units and Incentive Distribution Rights to the
General Partner, Spectra Energy Transmission LLC, Spectra Energy Southeast Pipeline Corp. and the Underwriters as
described in Article V in connection with the Initial Offering, the General Partner shall admit such parties to the
Partnership as Initial Limited Partners in respect of the Common Units, Subordinated Units or Incentive Distribution
Rights issued to them.
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however, only have the authority to convey to a purchaser or other
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transferee who does not execute and deliver a Transfer Application (a) the right to negotiate such Certificate to a
purchaser or other transferee and (b) the right to transfer the right to request admission as a Substituted Limited
Partner to such purchaser or other transferee in respect of the transferred Limited Partner Interests. No transferor of a
Limited Partner Interest or other Person shall have any obligation or responsibility to provide a Transfer Application
or Taxation Certification to a transferee or assist or participate in any way with respect to the completion or delivery
thereof. Each transferee of a Limited Partner Interest (including any nominee holder or an agent acquiring such
Limited Partner Interest for the account of another Person) who executes and delivers a properly completed Transfer
Application, containing a Taxation Certification, shall, by virtue of such execution and delivery, be an Assignee. Such
Assignee shall automatically be admitted to the Partnership as a Substituted Limited Partner with respect to the
Limited Partner Interests so transferred to such Person at such time as such transfer is recorded in the books and
records of the Partnership, and until so recorded, such transferee shall be an Assignee. The General Partner shall
periodically, but no less frequently than on the first Business Day of each calendar quarter, cause any unrecorded
transfers of Limited Partner Interests with respect to which a properly completed, duly executed Transfer Application
has been received to be recorded in the books and records of the Partnership. An Assignee shall have an interest in the
Partnership equivalent to that of a Limited Partner with respect to allocations and distributions, including liquidating
distributions, of the Partnership. With respect to voting rights attributable to Limited Partner Interests that are held by
Assignees, the General Partner shall be deemed to be the Limited Partner with respect thereto and shall, in exercising
the voting rights in respect of such Limited Partner Interests on any matter, vote such Limited Partner Interests at the
written direction of the Assignee who is the Record Holder of such Limited Partner Interests. If no such written
direction is received, such Limited Partner Interests will not be voted. An Assignee shall have no other rights of a
Limited Partner.

Section 10.3  Admission of Successor General Partner.

A successor General Partner approved pursuant to Section 11.1 or Section 11.2 or the transferee of or successor to all
of the General Partner Interest (represented by General Partner Units) pursuant to Section 4.6 who is proposed to be
admitted as a successor General Partner shall be admitted to the Partnership as the General Partner, effective
immediately prior to the withdrawal or removal of the predecessor or transferring General Partner, pursuant to
Section 11.1 or 11.2 or the transfer of the General Partner Interest (represented by General Partner Units) pursuant to
Section 4.6, provided, however, that no such successor shall be admitted to the Partnership until compliance with the
terms of Section 4.6 has occurred and such successor has executed and delivered such other documents or instruments
as may be required to effect such admission. Any such successor shall, subject to the terms hereof, carry on the
business of the members of the Partnership Group without dissolution.

Section 10.4  Admission of Additional Limited Partners.

(a) A Person (other than the General Partner, an Initial Limited Partner or a Substituted Limited Partner) who makes a
Capital Contribution to the Partnership in accordance with this Agreement shall be admitted to the Partnership as an
Additional Limited Partner only upon furnishing to the General Partner:

(i) evidence of acceptance in form satisfactory to the General Partner of all of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, including the power of attorney granted in Section 2.6,

(ii) a properly completed Taxation Certification; and

(iii) such other documents or instruments as may be required by the General Partner to effect such Person�s admission
as an Additional Limited Partner.
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(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 10.4, no Person shall be admitted as an Additional
Limited Partner without the consent of the General Partner. The admission of any Person as an Additional Limited
Partner shall become effective on the date upon which the name of such Person is recorded as such in the books and
records of the Partnership, following the consent of the General Partner to such admission.

Section 10.5  Amendment of Agreement and Certificate of Limited Partnership.
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To effect the admission to the Partnership of any Partner, the General Partner shall take all steps necessary or
appropriate under the Delaware Act to amend the records of the Partnership to reflect such admission and, if
necessary, to prepare as soon as practicable an amendment to this Agreement and, if required by law, the General
Partner shall prepare and file an amendment to the Certificate of Limited Partnership, and the General Partner may for
this purpose, among others, exercise the power of attorney granted pursuant to Section 2.6.

ARTICLE XI

WITHDRAWAL OR REMOVAL OF PARTNERS

Section 11.1  Withdrawal of the General Partner.

(a) The General Partner shall be deemed to have withdrawn from the Partnership upon the occurrence of any one of
the following events (each such event herein referred to as an �Event of Withdrawal�);

(i) The General Partner voluntarily withdraws from the Partnership by giving written notice to the other Partners;

(ii) The General Partner transfers all of its rights as General Partner pursuant to Section 4.6;

(iii) The General Partner is removed pursuant to Section 11.2;

(iv) The General Partner (A) makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; (B) files a voluntary bankruptcy
petition for relief under Chapter 7 of the United States Bankruptcy Code; (C) files a petition or answer seeking for
itself a liquidation, dissolution or similar relief (but not a reorganization) under any law; (D) files an answer or other
pleading admitting or failing to contest the material allegations of a petition filed against the General Partner in a
proceeding of the type described in clauses (A)-(C) of this Section 11.1(a)(iv); or (E) seeks, consents to or acquiesces
in the appointment of a trustee (but not a debtor-in-possession), receiver or liquidator of the General Partner or of all
or any substantial part of its properties;

(v) A final and non-appealable order of relief under Chapter 7 of the United States Bankruptcy Code is entered by a
court with appropriate jurisdiction pursuant to a voluntary or involuntary petition by or against the General Partner; or

(vi) (A) in the event the General Partner is a corporation, a certificate of dissolution or its equivalent is filed for the
General Partner, or 90 days expire after the date of notice to the General Partner of revocation of its charter without a
reinstatement of its charter, under the laws of its state of incorporation; (B) in the event the General Partner is a
partnership or a limited liability company, the dissolution and commencement of winding up of the General Partner;
(C) in the event the General Partner is acting in such capacity by virtue of being a trustee of a trust, the termination of
the trust; (D) in the event the General Partner is a natural person, his death or adjudication of incompetency; and
(E) otherwise in the event of the termination of the General Partner.

If an Event of Withdrawal specified in Section 11.1(a)(iv), (v) or (vi)(A), (B), (C) or (E) occurs, the withdrawing
General Partner shall give notice to the Limited Partners within 30 days after such occurrence. The Partners hereby
agree that only the Events of Withdrawal described in this Section 11.1 shall result in the withdrawal of the General
Partner from the Partnership.

(b) Withdrawal of the General Partner from the Partnership upon the occurrence of an Event of Withdrawal shall not
constitute a breach of this Agreement under the following circumstances: (i) at any time during the period beginning
on the Closing Date and ending at 12:00 midnight, Central Time, on June 30, 2017, the General Partner voluntarily
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the Outstanding Common Units (excluding Common Units held by the General Partner and its Affiliates) and the
General Partner delivers to the Partnership an Opinion of Counsel (�Withdrawal Opinion of Counsel�) that such
withdrawal
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(following the selection of the successor General Partner) would not result in the loss of the limited liability of any
Limited Partner or any Group Member or cause any Group Member to be treated as an association taxable as a
corporation or otherwise to be taxed as an entity for federal income tax purposes (to the extent not already so treated
or taxed); (ii) at any time after 12:00 midnight, Central Time, on June 30, 2017, the General Partner voluntarily
withdraws by giving at least 90 days� advance notice to the Unitholders, such withdrawal to take effect on the date
specified in such notice; (iii) at any time that the General Partner ceases to be the General Partner pursuant to
Section 11.1(a)(ii) or is removed pursuant to Section 11.2; or (iv) notwithstanding clause (i) of this sentence, at any
time that the General Partner voluntarily withdraws by giving at least 90 days� advance notice of its intention to
withdraw to the Limited Partners, such withdrawal to take effect on the date specified in the notice, if at the time such
notice is given one Person and its Affiliates (other than the General Partner and its Affiliates) own beneficially or of
record or control at least 50% of the Outstanding Units. The withdrawal of the General Partner from the Partnership
upon the occurrence of an Event of Withdrawal shall also constitute the withdrawal of the General Partner as general
partner or managing member, if any, to the extent applicable, of the other Group Members. If the General Partner
gives a notice of withdrawal pursuant to Section 11.1(a)(i), the holders of a Unit Majority, may, prior to the effective
date of such withdrawal, elect a successor General Partner. The Person so elected as successor General Partner shall
automatically become the successor general partner or managing member, to the extent applicable, of the other Group
Members of which the General Partner is a general partner or a managing member. If, prior to the effective date of the
General Partner�s withdrawal, a successor is not selected by the Unitholders as provided herein or the Partnership does
not receive a Withdrawal Opinion of Counsel, the Partnership shall be dissolved in accordance with Section 12.1. Any
successor General Partner elected in accordance with the terms of this Section 11.1 shall be subject to the provisions
of Section 10.3.

Section 11.2  Removal of the General Partner.

The General Partner may be removed if such removal is approved by the Unitholders holding at least 662/3% of the
Outstanding Units (including Units held by the General Partner and its Affiliates) voting as a single class. Any such
action by such holders for removal of the General Partner must also provide for the election of a successor General
Partner by the Unitholders holding a majority of the outstanding Common Units and Class B Units, if any, voting as a
single class and a majority of the outstanding Subordinated Units (if any Subordinated Units are then Outstanding)
voting as a class (including, in each case, Units held by the General Partner and its Affiliates). Such removal shall be
effective immediately following the admission of a successor General Partner pursuant to Section 10.3. The removal
of the General Partner shall also automatically constitute the removal of the General Partner as general partner or
managing member, to the extent applicable, of the other Group Members of which the General Partner is a general
partner or a managing member. If a Person is elected as a successor General Partner in accordance with the terms of
this Section 11.2, such Person shall, upon admission pursuant to Section 10.3, automatically become a successor
general partner or managing member, to the extent applicable, of the other Group Members of which the General
Partner is a general partner or a managing member. The right of the holders of Outstanding Units to remove the
General Partner shall not exist or be exercised unless the Partnership has received an opinion opining as to the matters
covered by a Withdrawal Opinion of Counsel. Any successor General Partner elected in accordance with the terms of
this Section 11.2 shall be subject to the provisions of Section 10.3.

Section 11.3  Interest of Departing General Partner and Successor General Partner.

(a) In the event of (i) withdrawal of the General Partner under circumstances where such withdrawal does not violate
this Agreement or (ii) removal of the General Partner by the holders of Outstanding Units under circumstances where
Cause does not exist, if the successor General Partner is elected in accordance with the terms of Section 11.1 or
Section 11.2, the Departing General Partner shall have the option, exercisable prior to the effective date of the
departure of such Departing General Partner, to require its successor to purchase its General Partner Interest
(represented by General Partner Units) and its general partner interest (or equivalent interest), if any, in the other
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fair market value of such Combined Interest, such amount to be determined and payable as of the effective date of its
departure. If the General Partner is removed by the Unitholders under circumstances where Cause exists or if the
General Partner withdraws under circumstances where such withdrawal violates this Agreement, and if a successor
General Partner is elected in accordance with the terms of Section 11.1 or Section 11.2 (or if the business of the
Partnership is continued pursuant to Section 12.2 and the successor General Partner is not the former General Partner),
such successor shall have the option, exercisable prior to the effective date of the departure of such Departing General
Partner (or, in the event the business of the Partnership is continued, prior to the date the business of the Partnership is
continued), to purchase the Combined Interest for such fair market value of such Combined Interest of the Departing
General Partner. In either event, the Departing General Partner shall be entitled to receive all reimbursements due such
Departing General Partner pursuant to Section 7.4, including any employee-related liabilities (including severance
liabilities), incurred in connection with the termination of any employees employed by the Departing General Partner
or its Affiliates (other than any Group Member) for the benefit of the Partnership or the other Group Members.

For purposes of this Section 11.3(a), the fair market value of the Departing General Partner�s Combined Interest shall
be determined by agreement between the Departing General Partner and its successor or, failing agreement within
30 days after the effective date of such Departing General Partner�s departure, by an independent investment banking
firm or other independent expert selected by the Departing General Partner and its successor, which, in turn, may rely
on other experts, and the determination of which shall be conclusive as to such matter. If such parties cannot agree
upon one independent investment banking firm or other independent expert within 45 days after the effective date of
such departure, then the Departing General Partner shall designate an independent investment banking firm or other
independent expert, the Departing General Partner�s successor shall designate an independent investment banking firm
or other independent expert, and such firms or experts shall mutually select a third independent investment banking
firm or independent expert, which third independent investment banking firm or other independent expert shall
determine the fair market value of the Combined Interest of the Departing General Partner. In making its
determination, such third independent investment banking firm or other independent expert may consider the then
current trading price of Units on any National Securities Exchange on which Units are then listed or admitted to
trading, the value of the Partnership�s assets, the rights and obligations of the Departing General Partner and other
factors it may deem relevant.

(b) If the Combined Interest is not purchased in the manner set forth in Section 11.3(a), the Departing General Partner
(or its transferee) shall become a Limited Partner and its Combined Interest shall be converted into Common Units
pursuant to a valuation made by an investment banking firm or other independent expert selected pursuant to
Section 11.3(a), without reduction in such Partnership Interest (but subject to proportionate dilution by reason of the
admission of its successor). Any successor General Partner shall indemnify the Departing General Partner (or its
transferee) as to all debts and liabilities of the Partnership arising on or after the date on which the Departing General
Partner (or its transferee) becomes a Limited Partner. For purposes of this Agreement, conversion of the Combined
Interest of the Departing General Partner to Common Units will be characterized as if the Departing General Partner
(or its transferee) contributed its Combined Interest to the Partnership in exchange for the newly issued Common
Units.

(c) If a successor General Partner is elected in accordance with the terms of Section 11.1 or Section 11.2 (or if the
business of the Partnership is continued pursuant to Section 12.2 and the successor General Partner is not the former
General Partner) and the option described in Section 11.3(a) is not exercised by the party entitled to do so, the
successor General Partner shall, at the effective date of its admission to the Partnership, contribute to the Partnership
cash in the amount equal to the product of the (x) quotient obtained by dividing (A) the Percentage Interest of the
General Partner Interest of the Departing General Partner by (B) a percentage equal to 100% less the Percentage
Interest of the General Partner Interest of the Departing General Partner and (y) the Net Agreed Value of the
Partnership�s assets on such date. In such event, such successor General Partner shall, subject to the following
sentence, be entitled to its Percentage Interest of all Partnership allocations and distributions to which the Departing
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General Partner was entitled in respect of its General Partner Interest. In addition, the successor General Partner shall
cause this Agreement to be amended to reflect that, from and after the date of such successor General Partner�s
admission, the successor General Partner�s interest in all Partnership distributions and allocations shall be its
Percentage Interest.

Section 11.4  Termination of Subordination Period, Conversion of Subordinated Units and Extinguishment of
Cumulative Common Unit Arrearages.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, if the General Partner is removed as general partner of the
Partnership under circumstances where Cause does not exist and Units held by the General Partner and its Affiliates
are not voted in favor of such removal, (i) the Subordination Period will end and all Outstanding Subordinated Units
will immediately and automatically convert into Common Units on a one-for-one basis (provided, however, that such
converted Subordinated Units shall remain subject to the provisions of Sections 5.5(c)(ii), 6.1(d)(x) and 6.7(c)), (ii) all
Cumulative Common Unit Arrearages on the Common Units will be extinguished and (iii) the General Partner will
have the right to convert its General Partner Interest (represented by General Partner Units) and its Incentive
Distribution Rights into Common Units or to receive cash in exchange therefor in accordance with Section 11.3.

Section 11.5  Withdrawal of Limited Partners.

No Limited Partner shall have any right to withdraw from the Partnership; provided, however, that when a transferee
of a Limited Partner�s Limited Partner Interest becomes a Record Holder of the Limited Partner Interest so transferred,
such transferring Limited Partner shall cease to be a Limited Partner with respect to the Limited Partner Interest so
transferred.

ARTICLE XII

DISSOLUTION AND LIQUIDATION

Section 12.1  Dissolution.

The Partnership shall not be dissolved by the admission of Substituted Limited Partners or Additional Limited
Partners or by the admission of a successor General Partner in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Upon the
removal or other event of withdrawal of the General Partner, if a successor General Partner is elected pursuant to
Section 11.1, Section 11.2 or Section 12.2, the Partnership shall not be dissolved and such successor General Partner
shall continue the business of the Partnership. The Partnership shall dissolve, and (subject to Section 12.2) its affairs
shall be wound up, upon:

(a) an Event of Withdrawal of the General Partner as provided in Section 11.1(a) (other than Section 11.1(a)(ii)),
unless a successor is elected and an Opinion of Counsel is received as provided in Section 11.1(b) or 11.2 and such
successor is admitted to the Partnership pursuant to Section 10.3;

(b) an election to dissolve the Partnership by the General Partner that is approved by the holders of a Unit Majority;

(c) the entry of a decree of judicial dissolution of the Partnership pursuant to the provisions of the Delaware Act; or

(d) at any time there are no Limited Partners, unless the Partnership is continued without dissolution in accordance
with the Delaware Act.

Section 12.2  Continuation of the Business of the Partnership After Dissolution.
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General Partner as provided in Section 11.1(a)(i) or (iii) and the failure of the Partners to select a successor to such
Departing General Partner pursuant to Section 11.1 or Section 11.2, then within 90 days thereafter, or (b) dissolution
of the Partnership upon an event constituting an Event of Withdrawal as defined in Section 11.1(a)(iv), (v) or (vi),
then, to the maximum extent permitted by law, within 180 days thereafter, the holders of a Unit Majority may elect to
continue the business of the Partnership on
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the same terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement by appointing as a successor General Partner a Person
approved by the holders of a Unit Majority. Unless such an election is made within the applicable time period as set
forth above, the Partnership shall dissolve and conduct only activities necessary to wind up its affairs. If such an
election is so made, then:

(i) the Partnership shall continue without dissolution unless earlier dissolved in accordance with this Article XII;

(ii) if the successor General Partner is not the former General Partner, then the interest of the former General Partner
shall be treated in the manner provided in Section 11.3; and

(iii) the successor General Partner shall be admitted to the Partnership as General Partner, effective as of the Event of
Withdrawal, by agreeing in writing to be bound by this Agreement;

provided, that the right of the holders of a Unit Majority to approve a successor General Partner and to continue the
business of the Partnership shall not exist and may not be exercised unless the Partnership has received an Opinion of
Counsel that (x) the exercise of the right would not result in the loss of limited liability of any Limited Partner and
(y) neither the Partnership nor any Group Member would be treated as an association taxable as a corporation or
otherwise be taxable as an entity for federal income tax purposes upon the exercise of such right to continue (to the
extent not already so treated or taxed).

Section 12.3  Liquidator.

Upon dissolution of the Partnership, the General Partner shall select one or more Persons to act as Liquidator. The
Liquidator (if other than the General Partner) shall be entitled to receive such compensation for its services as may be
approved by holders of at least a majority of the Outstanding Common Units and Subordinated Units voting as a
single class. The Liquidator (if other than the General Partner) shall agree not to resign at any time without 15 days�
prior notice and may be removed at any time, with or without cause, by notice of removal approved by holders of at
least a majority of the Outstanding Common Units, Class B Units (if any), and Subordinated Units voting as a single
class. Upon dissolution, removal or resignation of the Liquidator, a successor and substitute Liquidator (who shall
have and succeed to all rights, powers and duties of the original Liquidator) shall within 30 days thereafter be
approved by holders of at least a majority of the Outstanding Common Units, Class B Units (if any), and Subordinated
Units voting as a single class. The right to approve a successor or substitute Liquidator in the manner provided herein
shall be deemed to refer also to any such successor or substitute Liquidator approved in the manner herein provided.
Except as expressly provided in this Article XII, the Liquidator approved in the manner provided herein shall have and
may exercise, without further authorization or consent of any of the parties hereto, all of the powers conferred upon
the General Partner under the terms of this Agreement (but subject to all of the applicable limitations, contractual and
otherwise, upon the exercise of such powers, other than the limitation on sale set forth in Section 7.3) necessary or
appropriate to carry out the duties and functions of the Liquidator hereunder for and during the period of time required
to complete the winding up and liquidation of the Partnership as provided for herein.

Section 12.4  Liquidation.

The Liquidator shall proceed to dispose of the assets of the Partnership, discharge its liabilities, and otherwise wind up
its affairs in such manner and over such period as determined by the Liquidator, subject to Section 17-804 of the
Delaware Act and the following:

(a) The assets may be disposed of by public or private sale or by distribution in kind to one or more Partners on such
terms as the Liquidator and such Partner or Partners may agree. If any property is distributed in kind, the Partner
receiving the property shall be deemed for purposes of Section 12.4(c) to have received cash equal to its fair market
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loss to the Partners. The Liquidator may distribute the Partnership�s assets, in whole or in
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part, in kind if it determines that a sale would be impractical or would cause undue loss to the Partners.

(b) Liabilities of the Partnership include amounts owed to the Liquidator as compensation for serving in such capacity
(subject to the terms of Section 12.3) and amounts to Partners otherwise than in respect of their distribution rights
under Article VI. With respect to any liability that is contingent, conditional or unmatured or is otherwise not yet due
and payable, the Liquidator shall either settle such claim for such amount as it thinks appropriate or establish a reserve
of cash or other assets to provide for its payment. When paid, any unused portion of the reserve shall be distributed as
additional liquidation proceeds.

(c) All property and all cash in excess of that required to discharge liabilities as provided in Section 12.4(b) shall be
distributed to the Partners in accordance with, and to the extent of, the positive balances in their respective Capital
Accounts, as determined after taking into account all Capital Account adjustments (other than those made by reason of
distributions pursuant to this Section 12.4(c)) for the taxable year of the Partnership during which the liquidation of
the Partnership occurs (with such date of occurrence being determined pursuant to Treasury Regulation
Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(g)), and such distribution shall be made by the end of such taxable year (or, if later, within
90 days after said date of such occurrence).

Section 12.5  Cancellation of Certificate of Limited Partnership.

Upon the completion of the distribution of Partnership cash and property as provided in Section 12.4 in connection
with the liquidation of the Partnership, the Certificate of Limited Partnership and all qualifications of the Partnership
as a foreign limited partnership in jurisdictions other than the State of Delaware shall be canceled and such other
actions as may be necessary to terminate the Partnership shall be taken.

Section 12.6  Return of Contributions.

The General Partner shall not be personally liable for, and shall have no obligation to contribute or loan any monies or
property to the Partnership to enable it to effectuate, the return of the Capital Contributions of the Limited Partners or
Unitholders, or any portion thereof, it being expressly understood that any such return shall be made solely from
Partnership assets.

Section 12.7  Waiver of Partition.

To the maximum extent permitted by law, each Partner hereby waives any right to partition of the Partnership
property.

Section 12.8  Capital Account Restoration.

No Limited Partner shall have any obligation to restore any negative balance in its Capital Account upon liquidation
of the Partnership. The General Partner shall be obligated to restore any negative balance in its Capital Account upon
liquidation of its interest in the Partnership by the end of the taxable year of the Partnership during which such
liquidation occurs, or, if later, within 90 days after the date of such liquidation.

ARTICLE XIII

AMENDMENT OF PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT; MEETINGS; RECORD DATE

Section 13.1  Amendments to be Adopted Solely by the General Partner.
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provision of this Agreement and execute, swear to, acknowledge, deliver, file and record whatever documents may be
required in connection therewith, to reflect:

(a) a change in the name of the Partnership, the location of the principal place of business of the Partnership, the
registered agent of the Partnership or the registered office of the Partnership;
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(b) admission, substitution, withdrawal or removal of Partners in accordance with this Agreement;

(c) a change that the General Partner determines to be necessary or appropriate to qualify or continue the qualification
of the Partnership as a limited partnership or a partnership in which the Limited Partners have limited liability under
the laws of any state or to ensure that the Group Members will not be treated as associations taxable as corporations or
otherwise taxed as entities for federal income tax purposes;

(d) a change that the General Partner determines, (i) does not adversely affect in any material respect the Limited
Partners considered as a whole or any particular class of Partnership Interests as compared to other classes of
Partnership Interests, (ii) to be necessary or appropriate to (A) satisfy any requirements, conditions or guidelines
contained in any opinion, directive, order, ruling or regulation of any federal or state agency or judicial authority or
contained in any federal or state statute (including the Delaware Act) or (B) facilitate the trading of the Units
(including the division of any class or classes of Outstanding Units into different classes to facilitate uniformity of tax
consequences within such classes of Units) or comply with any rule, regulation, guideline or requirement of any
National Securities Exchange on which the Units are or will be listed or admitted to trading, (iii) to be necessary or
appropriate in connection with action taken by the General Partner pursuant to Section 5.9 or (iv) is required to effect
the intent expressed in the Registration Statement or the intent of the provisions of this Agreement or is otherwise
contemplated by this Agreement;

(e) a change in the fiscal year or taxable year of the Partnership and any other changes that the General Partner
determines to be necessary or appropriate as a result of a change in the fiscal year or taxable year of the Partnership
including, if the General Partner shall so determine, a change in the definition of �Quarter� and the dates on which
distributions are to be made by the Partnership;

(f) an amendment that is necessary, in the Opinion of Counsel, to prevent the Partnership, or the General Partner or its
directors, officers, trustees or agents from in any manner being subjected to the provisions of the Investment Company
Act of 1940, as amended, the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended, or �plan asset� regulations adopted under
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, regardless of whether such are substantially
similar to plan asset regulations currently applied or proposed by the United States Department of Labor;

(g) an amendment that the General Partner determines to be necessary or appropriate in connection with the
authorization of issuance of any class or series of Partnership Securities pursuant to Section 5.6, including any
amendment that the General Partner determines is necessary or appropriate in connection with (i) the adjustments of
the Minimum Quarterly Distribution, First Target Distribution, Second Target Distribution and Third Target
Distribution pursuant to the provisions of Section 5.11, (ii) the implementation of the provisions of Section 5.11 or
(iii) any modifications to the Incentive Distribution Rights made in connection with the issuance of Partnership
Securities pursuant to Section 5.6, provided that, with respect to this clause (iii), the modifications to the Incentive
Distribution Rights and the related issuance of Partnership Securities have received Special Approval;

(h) any amendment expressly permitted in this Agreement to be made by the General Partner acting alone;

(i) an amendment effected, necessitated or contemplated by a Merger Agreement approved in accordance with
Section 14.3;

(j) an amendment that the General Partner determines to be necessary or appropriate to reflect and account for the
formation by the Partnership of, or investment by the Partnership in, any corporation, partnership, joint venture,
limited liability company or other entity, in connection with the conduct by the Partnership of activities permitted by
the terms of Section 2.4;
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Section 13.2  Amendment Procedures.

Except as provided in Section 13.1 and Section 13.3, all amendments to this Agreement shall be made in accordance
with the requirements contained in this Section 13.2. Amendments to this Agreement may be proposed only by the
General Partner; provided, however, to the full extent permitted by law, that the General Partner shall have no duty or
obligation to propose any amendment to this Agreement and may decline to do so free of any fiduciary duty or
obligation whatsoever to the Partnership, any Limited Partner or Assignee and, in declining to propose an amendment,
to the fullest extent permitted by law shall not be required to act in good faith or pursuant to any other standard
imposed by this Agreement, any Group Member Agreement, any other agreement contemplated hereby or under the
Delaware Act or any other law, rule or regulation or at equity. A proposed amendment shall be effective upon its
approval by the General Partner and the holders of a Unit Majority, unless a greater or different percentage is required
under this Agreement or by Delaware law. Each proposed amendment that requires the approval of the holders of a
specified percentage of Outstanding Units shall be set forth in a writing that contains the text of the proposed
amendment. If such an amendment is proposed, the General Partner shall seek the written approval of the requisite
percentage of Outstanding Units or call a meeting of the Unitholders to consider and vote on such proposed
amendment. The General Partner shall notify all Record Holders upon final adoption of any such proposed
amendments.

Section 13.3  Amendment Requirements.

(a) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 13.1 and Section 13.2, no provision of this Agreement that establishes a
percentage of Outstanding Units (including Units deemed owned by the General Partner) required to take any action
shall be amended, altered, changed, repealed or rescinded in any respect that would have the effect of reducing such
voting percentage unless such amendment is approved by the written consent or the affirmative vote of holders of
Outstanding Units whose aggregate Outstanding Units constitute not less than the voting requirement sought to be
reduced.

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 13.1 and Section 13.2, no amendment to this Agreement may (i) enlarge
the obligations of any Limited Partner without its consent, unless such shall be deemed to have occurred as a result of
an amendment approved pursuant to Section 13.3(c), or (ii) enlarge the obligations of, restrict in any way any action
by or rights of, or reduce in any way the amounts distributable, reimbursable or otherwise payable to, the General
Partner or any of its Affiliates without its consent, which consent may be given or withheld at its option.

(c) Except as provided in Section 14.3, and without limitation of the General Partner�s authority to adopt amendments
to this Agreement without the approval of any Partners or Assignees as contemplated in Section 13.1, any amendment
that would have a material adverse effect on the rights or preferences of any class of Partnership Interests in relation to
other classes of Partnership Interests must be approved by the holders of not less than a majority of the Outstanding
Partnership Interests of the class affected.

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, except for amendments pursuant to Section 13.1 and
except as otherwise provided by Section 14.3(b), no amendments shall become effective without the approval of the
holders of at least 90% of the Outstanding Units voting as a single class unless the Partnership obtains an Opinion of
Counsel to the effect that such amendment will not affect the limited liability of any Limited Partner under applicable
law.

(e) Except as provided in Section 13.1, this Section 13.3 shall only be amended with the approval of the holders of at
least 90% of the Outstanding Units.
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Section 13.4  Special Meetings.

All acts of Limited Partners to be taken pursuant to this Agreement shall be taken in the manner provided in this
Article XIII. Special meetings of the Limited Partners may be called by the General Partner or by Limited Partners
owning 20% or more of the Outstanding Units of the class or classes for which a meeting is proposed. Limited
Partners shall call a special meeting by delivering to the General Partner one or more requests in writing stating that
the signing Limited Partners wish to call a special meeting and indicating the
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general or specific purposes for which the special meeting is to be called. Within 60 days after receipt of such a call
from Limited Partners or within such greater time as may be reasonably necessary for the Partnership to comply with
any statutes, rules, regulations, listing agreements or similar requirements governing the holding of a meeting or the
solicitation of proxies for use at such a meeting, the General Partner shall send a notice of the meeting to the Limited
Partners either directly or indirectly through the Transfer Agent. A meeting shall be held at a time and place
determined by the General Partner on a date not less than 10 days nor more than 60 days after the time notice of the
meeting is given as provided in Section 16.1. Limited Partners shall not vote on matters that would cause the Limited
Partners to be deemed to be taking part in the management and control of the business and affairs of the Partnership so
as to jeopardize the Limited Partners� limited liability under the Delaware Act or the law of any other state in which the
Partnership is qualified to do business.

Section 13.5  Notice of a Meeting.

Notice of a meeting called pursuant to Section 13.4 shall be given to the Record Holders of the class or classes of
Units for which a meeting is proposed in writing by mail or other means of written communication in accordance with
Section 16.1 at least 10 days in advance of such meeting. The notice shall be deemed to have been given at the time
when deposited in the mail or sent by other means of written communication.

Section 13.6  Record Date.

For purposes of determining the Limited Partners entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of the Limited Partners
or to give approvals without a meeting as provided in Section 13.11 the General Partner may set a Record Date, which
shall not be less than 10 nor more than 60 days before (a) the date of the meeting (unless such requirement conflicts
with any rule, regulation, guideline or requirement of any National Securities Exchange on which the Units are listed
or admitted to trading, in which case the rule, regulation, guideline or requirement of such National Securities
Exchange shall govern) or (b) in the event that approvals are sought without a meeting, the date by which Limited
Partners are requested in writing by the General Partner to give such approvals. If the General Partner does not set a
Record Date, then (a) the Record Date for determining the Limited Partners entitled to notice of or to vote at a
meeting of the Limited Partners shall be the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which notice is
given, and (b) the Record Date for determining the Limited Partners entitled to give approvals without a meeting shall
be the date the first written approval is deposited with the Partnership in care of the General Partner in accordance
with Section 13.11.

Section 13.7  Adjournment.

When a meeting is adjourned to another time or place, notice need not be given of the adjourned meeting and a new
Record Date need not be fixed, if the time and place thereof are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment is
taken, unless such adjournment shall be for more than 45 days. At the adjourned meeting, the Partnership may transact
any business which might have been transacted at the original meeting. If the adjournment is for more than 45 days or
if a new Record Date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given in
accordance with this Article XIII.

Section 13.8  Waiver of Notice; Approval of Meeting.

The transactions of any meeting of Limited Partners, however called and noticed, and whenever held, shall be as valid
as if it had occurred at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if a quorum is present either in person or by
proxy. Attendance of a Limited Partner at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of the meeting, except when
the Limited Partner attends the meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of the meeting, to the
transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened; and except that attendance at a
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the meeting, but not so included, if the disapproval is expressly made at the meeting.

Section 13.9  Quorum and Voting.

The holders of a majority of the Outstanding Units of the class or classes for which a meeting has been called
(including Outstanding Units deemed owned by the General Partner) represented in person or by
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proxy shall constitute a quorum at a meeting of Limited Partners of such class or classes unless any such action by the
Limited Partners requires approval by holders of a greater percentage of such Units, in which case the quorum shall be
such greater percentage. At any meeting of the Limited Partners duly called and held in accordance with this
Agreement at which a quorum is present, the act of Limited Partners holding Outstanding Units that in the aggregate
represent a majority of the Outstanding Units entitled to vote and be present in person or by proxy at such meeting
shall be deemed to constitute the act of all Limited Partners, unless a greater or different percentage is required with
respect to such action under the provisions of this Agreement, in which case the act of the Limited Partners holding
Outstanding Units that in the aggregate represent at least such greater or different percentage shall be required. The
Limited Partners present at a duly called or held meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to transact
business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough Limited Partners to leave less than a quorum, if
any action taken (other than adjournment) is approved by the required percentage of Outstanding Units specified in
this Agreement (including Outstanding Units deemed owned by the General Partner). In the absence of a quorum any
meeting of Limited Partners may be adjourned from time to time by the affirmative vote of holders of at least a
majority of the Outstanding Units entitled to vote at such meeting (including Outstanding Units deemed owned by the
General Partner) represented either in person or by proxy, but no other business may be transacted, except as provided
in Section 13.7.

Section 13.10  Conduct of a Meeting.

The General Partner shall have full power and authority concerning the manner of conducting any meeting of the
Limited Partners or solicitation of approvals in writing, including the determination of Persons entitled to vote, the
existence of a quorum, the satisfaction of the requirements of Section 13.4, the conduct of voting, the validity and
effect of any proxies and the determination of any controversies, votes or challenges arising in connection with or
during the meeting or voting. The General Partner shall designate a Person to serve as chairman of any meeting and
shall further designate a Person to take the minutes of any meeting. All minutes shall be kept with the records of the
Partnership maintained by the General Partner. The General Partner may make such other regulations consistent with
applicable law and this Agreement as it may deem advisable concerning the conduct of any meeting of the Limited
Partners or solicitation of approvals in writing, including regulations in regard to the appointment of proxies, the
appointment and duties of inspectors of votes and approvals, the submission and examination of proxies and other
evidence of the right to vote, and the revocation of approvals in writing.

Section 13.11  Action Without a Meeting.

If authorized by the General Partner, any action that may be taken at a meeting of the Limited Partners may be taken
without a meeting if an approval in writing setting forth the action so taken is signed by Limited Partners owning not
less than the minimum percentage of the Outstanding Units (including Units deemed owned by the General Partner)
that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all the Limited Partners were present
and voted (unless such provision conflicts with any rule, regulation, guideline or requirement of any National
Securities Exchange on which the Units are listed or admitted to trading, in which case the rule, regulation, guideline
or requirement of such National Securities Exchange shall govern). Prompt notice of the taking of action without a
meeting shall be given to the Limited Partners who have not approved in writing. The General Partner may specify
that any written ballot submitted to Limited Partners for the purpose of taking any action without a meeting shall be
returned to the Partnership within the time period, which shall be not less than 20 days, specified by the General
Partner. If a ballot returned to the Partnership does not vote all of the Units held by the Limited Partners, the
Partnership shall be deemed to have failed to receive a ballot for the Units that were not voted. If approval of the
taking of any action by the Limited Partners is solicited by any Person other than by or on behalf of the General
Partner, the written approvals shall have no force and effect unless and until (a) they are deposited with the
Partnership in care of the General Partner, (b) approvals sufficient to take the action proposed are dated as of a date
not more than 90 days prior to the date sufficient approvals are deposited with the Partnership and (c) an Opinion of
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control of the business and affairs of the Partnership so as to jeopardize the Limited Partners� limited liability, and
(ii) is otherwise permissible under the state statutes then governing the rights, duties and liabilities of the Partnership
and the Partners.

Section 13.12  Right to Vote and Related Matters.

(a) Only those Record Holders of the Units on the Record Date set pursuant to Section 13.6 (and also subject to the
limitations contained in the definition of �Outstanding�) shall be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, a meeting of
Limited Partners or to act with respect to matters as to which the holders of the Outstanding Units have the right to
vote or to act. All references in this Agreement to votes of, or other acts that may be taken by, the Outstanding Units
shall be deemed to be references to the votes or acts of the Record Holders of such Outstanding Units.

(b) With respect to Units that are held for a Person�s account by another Person (such as a broker, dealer, bank, trust
company or clearing corporation, or an agent of any of the foregoing), in whose name such Units are registered, such
other Person shall, in exercising the voting rights in respect of such Units on any matter, and unless the arrangement
between such Persons provides otherwise, vote such Units in favor of, and at the direction of, the Person who is the
beneficial owner, and the Partnership shall be entitled to assume it is so acting without further inquiry. The provisions
of this Section 13.12(b) (as well as all other provisions of this Agreement) are subject to the provisions of Section 4.3.

ARTICLE XIV

MERGER, CONSOLIDATION OR CONVERSION

Section 14.1  Authority.

The Partnership may merge or consolidate with or into one or more corporations, limited liability companies, statutory
trusts or associations, real estate investment trusts, common law trusts or unincorporated businesses, including a
partnership (whether general or limited (including a limited liability partnership)) or convert into any such entity,
whether such entity is formed under the laws of the State of Delaware or any other state of the United States of
America, pursuant to a written plan of merger or consolidation (�Merger Agreement�) or a written plan of conversion
(�Plan of Conversion�), as the case may be, in accordance with this Article XIV.

Section 14.2  Procedure for Merger, Consolidation or Conversion.

(a) Merger, consolidation or conversion of the Partnership pursuant to this Article XIV requires the prior consent of
the General Partner, provided, however, that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the General Partner shall have no
duty or obligation to consent to any merger, consolidation or conversion of the Partnership and may decline to do so
free of any fiduciary duty or obligation whatsoever to the Partnership, any Limited Partner or Assignee and, in
declining to consent to a merger, consolidation or conversion, shall not be required to act in good faith or pursuant to
any other standard imposed by this Agreement, any other agreement contemplated hereby or under the Act or any
other law, rule or regulation or at equity.

(b) If the General Partner shall determine to consent to the merger or consolidation, the General Partner shall approve
the Merger Agreement, which shall set forth:

(i) name and state of domicile of each of the business entities proposing to merge or consolidate;

(ii) the name and state of domicile of the business entity that is to survive the proposed merger or consolidation (the
�Surviving Business Entity�);
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(iv) the manner and basis of exchanging or converting the equity securities of each constituent business entity for, or
into, cash, property or interests, rights, securities or obligations of the Surviving Business Entity; and (i) if any general
or limited partner interests, securities or rights of any
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constituent business entity are not to be exchanged or converted solely for, or into, cash, property or general or limited
partner interests, rights, securities or obligations of the Surviving Business Entity, the cash, property or interests,
rights, securities or obligations of any general or limited partnership, corporation, trust, limited liability company,
unincorporated business or other entity (other than the Surviving Business Entity) which the holders of such general or
limited partner interests, securities or rights are to receive in exchange for, or upon conversion of their interests,
securities or rights, and (ii) in the case of securities represented by certificates, upon the surrender of such certificates,
which cash, property or general or limited partner interests, rights, securities or obligations of the Surviving Business
Entity or any general or limited partnership, corporation, trust, limited liability company, unincorporated business or
other entity (other than the Surviving Business Entity), or evidences thereof, are to be delivered;

(v) a statement of any changes in the constituent documents or the adoption of new constituent documents (the articles
or certificate of incorporation, articles of trust, declaration of trust, certificate or agreement of limited partnership,
certificate of formation or limited liability company agreement, operating agreement or other similar charter or
governing document) of the Surviving Business Entity to be effected by such merger or consolidation;

(vi) the effective time of the merger, which may be the date of the filing of the certificate of merger pursuant to
Section 14.4 or a later date specified in or determinable in accordance with the Merger Agreement (provided, that if
the effective time of the merger is to be later than the date of the filing of such certificate of merger, the effective time
shall be fixed at a date or time certain at or prior to the time of the filing of such certificate of merger and stated
therein); and

(vii) such other provisions with respect to the proposed merger or consolidation that the General Partner determines to
be necessary or appropriate.

(c) If the General Partner shall determine to consent to the conversion, the General Partner shall approve the Plan of
Conversion, which shall set forth:

(i) the name of the converting entity and the converted entity;

(ii) a statement that the Partnership is continuing its existence in the organizational form of the converted entity;

(iii) a statement as to the type of entity that the converted entity is to be and the state or country under the laws of
which the converted entity is to be incorporated, formed or organized;

(iv) the manner and basis of exchanging or converting the equity securities of each constituent business entity for, or
into, cash, property or interests, rights, securities or obligations of the converted entity;

(v) in an attachment or exhibit, the certificate of limited partnership of the Partnership; and

(vi) in an attachment or exhibit, the certificate of limited partnership, articles of incorporation, or other organizational
documents of the converted entity;

(vii) the effective time of the conversion, which may be the date of the filing of the articles of conversion or a later
date specified in or determinable in accordance with the Plan of Conversion (provided, that if the effective time of the
conversion is to be later than the date of the filing of such articles of conversion, the effective time shall be fixed at a
date or time certain at or prior to the time of the filing of such articles of conversion and stated therein); and

(viii) such other provisions with respect to the proposed conversion that the General Partner determines to be
necessary or appropriate.
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(a) Except as provided in Sections 14.3(d) and 14.3(c), the General Partner, upon its approval of the Merger
Agreement or the Plan of Conversion, as the case may be, shall direct that the Merger Agreement
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or the Plan of Conversion, as applicable, be submitted to a vote of Limited Partners, whether at a special meeting or
by written consent, in either case in accordance with the requirements of Article XIII. A copy or a summary of the
Merger Agreement or the Plan of Conversion, as the case may be, shall be included in or enclosed with the notice of a
special meeting or the written consent.

(b) Except as provided in Sections 14.3(d) and 14.3(c), the Merger Agreement or Plan of Conversion, as the case may
be, shall be approved upon receiving the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of a Unit Majority.

(c) Except as provided in Sections 14.3(d) and 14.3(c), after such approval by vote or consent of the Limited Partners,
and at any time prior to the filing of the certificate of merger or articles of conversion pursuant to Section 14.4, the
merger, consolidation or conversion may be abandoned pursuant to provisions therefor, if any, set forth in the Merger
Agreement or Plan of Conversion, as the case may be.

(d) Notwithstanding anything else contained in this Article XIV or in this Agreement, the General Partner is
permitted, without Limited Partner approval, to convert the Partnership or any Group Member into a new limited
liability entity, to merge the Partnership or any Group Member into, or convey all of the Partnership�s assets to,
another limited liability entity that shall be newly formed and shall have no assets, liabilities or operations at the time
of such conversion, merger or conveyance other than those it receives from the Partnership or other Group Member if
(i) the General Partner has received an Opinion of Counsel that the conversion, merger or conveyance, as the case may
be, would not result in the loss of the limited liability of any Limited Partner or cause the Partnership to be treated as
an association taxable as a corporation or otherwise to be taxed as an entity for federal income tax purposes (to the
extent not previously treated as such), (ii) the sole purpose of such conversion, merger, or conveyance is to effect a
mere change in the legal form of the Partnership into another limited liability entity and (iii) the governing instruments
of the new entity provide the Limited Partners and the General Partner with the same rights and obligations as are
herein contained.

(e) Additionally, notwithstanding anything else contained in this Article XIV or in this Agreement, the General
Partner is permitted, without Limited Partner approval, to merge or consolidate the Partnership with or into another
entity if (A) the General Partner has received an Opinion of Counsel that the merger or consolidation, as the case may
be, would not result in the loss of the limited liability of any Limited Partner or cause the Partnership to be treated as
an association taxable as a corporation or otherwise to be taxed as an entity for federal income tax purposes (to the
extent not previously treated as such), (B) the merger or consolidation would not result in an amendment to the
Partnership Agreement, other than any amendments that could be adopted pursuant to Section 13.1, (C) the
Partnership is the Surviving Business Entity in such merger or consolidation, (D) each Unit outstanding immediately
prior to the effective date of the merger or consolidation is to be an identical Unit of the Partnership after the effective
date of the merger or consolidation, and (E) the number of Partnership Securities to be issued by the Partnership in
such merger or consolidation do not exceed 20% of the Partnership Securities Outstanding immediately prior to the
effective date of such merger or consolidation.

(f) Pursuant to Section 17-211(g) of the Delaware Act, an agreement of merger or consolidation approved in
accordance with this Article XIV may (a) effect any amendment to this Agreement or (b) effect the adoption of a new
partnership agreement for the Partnership if it is the Surviving Business Entity. Any such amendment or adoption
made pursuant to this Section 14.3 shall be effective at the effective time or date of the merger or consolidation.

Section 14.4  Certificate of Merger.

Upon the required approval by the General Partner and the Unitholders of a Merger Agreement or the Plan of
Conversion, as the case may be, a certificate of merger or articles of conversion, as applicable, shall be executed and
filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware in conformity with the requirements of the Delaware Act.
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Section 14.5  Effect of Merger, Consolidation or Conversion.

(a) At the effective time of the certificate of merger:

(i) all of the rights, privileges and powers of each of the business entities that has merged or consolidated, and all
property, real, personal and mixed, and all debts due to any of those business entities and all other things and causes of
action belonging to each of those business entities, shall be vested in the Surviving Business Entity and after the
merger or consolidation shall be the property of the Surviving Business Entity to the extent they were of each
constituent business entity;

(ii) the title to any real property vested by deed or otherwise in any of those constituent business entities shall not
revert and is not in any way impaired because of the merger or consolidation;

(iii) all rights of creditors and all liens on or security interests in property of any of those constituent business entities
shall be preserved unimpaired; and

(iv) all debts, liabilities and duties of those constituent business entities shall attach to the Surviving Business Entity
and may be enforced against it to the same extent as if the debts, liabilities and duties had been incurred or contracted
by it.

(b) At the effective time of the articles of conversion:

(i) the Partnership shall continue to exist, without interruption, but in the organizational form of the converted entity
rather than in its prior organizational form;

(ii) all rights, title, and interests to all real estate and other property owned by the Partnership shall continue to be
owned by the converted entity in its new organizational form without reversion or impairment, without further act or
deed, and without any transfer or assignment having occurred, but subject to any existing liens or other encumbrances
thereon;

(iii) all liabilities and obligations of the Partnership shall continue to be liabilities and obligations of the converted
entity in its new organizational form without impairment or diminution by reason of the conversion;

(iv) all rights of creditors or other parties with respect to or against the prior interest holders or other owners of the
Partnership in their capacities as such in existence as of the effective time of the conversion will continue in existence
as to those liabilities and obligations and may be pursued by such creditors and obligees as if the conversion did not
occur;

(v) a proceeding pending by or against the Partnership or by or against any of Partners in their capacities as such may
be continued by or against the converted entity in its new organizational form and by or against the prior partners
without any need for substitution of parties; and

(vi) the Partnership Units that are to be converted into partnership interests, shares, evidences of ownership, or other
securities in the converted entity as provided in the plan of conversion shall be so converted, and Partners shall be
entitled only to the rights provided in the Plan of Conversion.

ARTICLE XV
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Section 15.1  Right to Acquire Limited Partner Interests.

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if at any time the General Partner and its Affiliates hold
more than 80% of the total Limited Partner Interests of any class then Outstanding, the General Partner shall then have
the right, which right it may assign and transfer in whole or in part to the Partnership or any Affiliate of the General
Partner, exercisable at its option, to purchase all, but not less than all, of such Limited Partner Interests of such class
then Outstanding held by Persons other than the General Partner and its Affiliates, at the greater of (x) the Current
Market Price as of the date three days prior to the date that the notice described in Section 15.1(b) is mailed and
(y) the highest price paid by
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the General Partner or any of its Affiliates for any such Limited Partner Interest of such class purchased during the
90-day period preceding the date that the notice described in Section 15.1(b) is mailed.

(b) If the General Partner, any Affiliate of the General Partner or the Partnership elects to exercise the right to
purchase Limited Partner Interests granted pursuant to Section 15.1(a), the General Partner shall deliver to the
Transfer Agent notice of such election to purchase (the �Notice of Election to Purchase�) and shall cause the Transfer
Agent to mail a copy of such Notice of Election to Purchase to the Record Holders of Limited Partner Interests of such
class or classes (as of a Record Date selected by the General Partner) at least 10, but not more than 60, days prior to
the Purchase Date. Such Notice of Election to Purchase shall also be published for a period of at least three
consecutive days in at least two daily newspapers of general circulation printed in the English language and published
in the Borough of Manhattan, New York. The Notice of Election to Purchase shall specify the Purchase Date and the
price (determined in accordance with Section 15.1(a)) at which Limited Partner Interests will be purchased and state
that the General Partner, its Affiliate or the Partnership, as the case may be, elects to purchase such Limited Partner
Interests, upon surrender of Certificates representing such Limited Partner Interests in exchange for payment, at such
office or offices of the Transfer Agent as the Transfer Agent may specify, or as may be required by any National
Securities Exchange on which such Limited Partner Interests are listed. Any such Notice of Election to Purchase
mailed to a Record Holder of Limited Partner Interests at his address as reflected in the records of the Transfer Agent
shall be conclusively presumed to have been given regardless of whether the owner receives such notice. On or prior
to the Purchase Date, the General Partner, its Affiliate or the Partnership, as the case may be, shall deposit with the
Transfer Agent cash in an amount sufficient to pay the aggregate purchase price of all of such Limited Partner
Interests to be purchased in accordance with this Section 15.1. If the Notice of Election to Purchase shall have been
duly given as aforesaid at least 10 days prior to the Purchase Date, and if on or prior to the Purchase Date the deposit
described in the preceding sentence has been made for the benefit of the holders of Limited Partner Interests subject to
purchase as provided herein, then from and after the Purchase Date, notwithstanding that any Certificate shall not have
been surrendered for purchase, all rights of the holders of such Limited Partner Interests (including any rights pursuant
to Article IV, Article V, Article VI, and Article XII) shall thereupon cease, except the right to receive the purchase
price (determined in accordance with Section 15.1(a)) for Limited Partner Interests therefor, without interest, upon
surrender to the Transfer Agent of the Certificates representing such Limited Partner Interests, and such Limited
Partner Interests shall thereupon be deemed to be transferred to the General Partner, its Affiliate or the Partnership, as
the case may be, on the record books of the Transfer Agent and the Partnership, and the General Partner or any
Affiliate of the General Partner, or the Partnership, as the case may be, shall be deemed to be the owner of all such
Limited Partner Interests from and after the Purchase Date and shall have all rights as the owner of such Limited
Partner Interests (including all rights as owner of such Limited Partner Interests pursuant to Article IV, Article V,
Article VI and Article XII).

(c) At any time from and after the Purchase Date, a holder of an Outstanding Limited Partner Interest subject to
purchase as provided in this Section 15.1 may surrender his Certificate evidencing such Limited Partner Interest to the
Transfer Agent in exchange for payment of the amount described in Section 15.1(a), therefor, without interest thereon.

ARTICLE XVI

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 16.1  Addresses and Notices; Written Communications.

(a) Any notice, demand, request, report or proxy materials required or permitted to be given or made to a Partner or
Assignee under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed given or made when delivered in person or
when sent by first class United States mail or by other means of written communication to the Partner or Assignee at
the address described below. Any notice, payment or report to be given or made to a Partner or Assignee hereunder
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conclusively to have been fully satisfied, upon sending of such notice, payment or report to the Record Holder of such
Partnership Securities at his address as shown on the records of the Transfer Agent or as otherwise shown on the
records of the Partnership, regardless of any claim of any Person who may have an interest in such Partnership
Securities by reason of any assignment or otherwise. An affidavit or certificate of making of any notice, payment or
report in accordance with the provisions of this Section 16.1 executed by the General Partner, the Transfer Agent or
the mailing organization shall be prima facie evidence of the giving or making of such notice, payment or report. If
any notice, payment or report addressed to a Record Holder at the address of such Record Holder appearing on the
books and records of the Transfer Agent or the Partnership is returned by the United States Postal Service marked to
indicate that the United States Postal Service is unable to deliver it, such notice, payment or report and any subsequent
notices, payments and reports shall be deemed to have been duly given or made without further mailing (until such
time as such Record Holder or another Person notifies the Transfer Agent or the Partnership of a change in his
address) if they are available for the Partner or Assignee at the principal office of the Partnership for a period of one
year from the date of the giving or making of such notice, payment or report to the other Partners and Assignees. Any
notice to the Partnership shall be deemed given if received by the General Partner at the principal office of the
Partnership designated pursuant to Section 2.3. The General Partner may rely and shall be protected in relying on any
notice or other document from a Partner, Assignee or other Person if believed by it to be genuine.

(b) The terms �in writing�, �written communications,� �written notice� and words of similar import shall be deemed satisfied
under this Agreement by use of e-mail and other forms of electronic communication.

Section 16.2  Further Action.

The parties shall execute and deliver all documents, provide all information and take or refrain from taking action as
may be necessary or appropriate to achieve the purposes of this Agreement.

Section 16.3  Binding Effect.

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their heirs, executors,
administrators, successors, legal representatives and permitted assigns.

Section 16.4  Integration.

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among the parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof and
supersedes all prior agreements and understandings pertaining thereto.

Section 16.5  Creditors.

None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be for the benefit of, or shall be enforceable by, any creditor of the
Partnership.

Section 16.6  Waiver.

No failure by any party to insist upon the strict performance of any covenant, duty, agreement or condition of this
Agreement or to exercise any right or remedy consequent upon a breach thereof shall constitute waiver of any such
breach of any other covenant, duty, agreement or condition.

Section 16.7  Third-Party Beneficiaries.
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Each Partner agrees that any Indemnitee shall be entitled to assert rights and remedies hereunder as a third-party
beneficiary hereto with respect to those provisions of this Agreement affording a right, benefit or privilege to such
Indemnitee.

Section 16.8  Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, all of which together shall constitute an agreement binding on all
the parties hereto, notwithstanding that all such parties are not signatories to the original or the same counterpart. Each
party shall become bound by this Agreement immediately upon affixing its
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signature hereto or, in the case of a Person acquiring a Unit, upon accepting the certificate evidencing such Unit or
executing and delivering a Transfer Application as herein described, independently of the signature of any other party.

Section 16.9  Applicable Law.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Delaware, without
regard to the principles of conflicts of law.

Section 16.10  Invalidity of Provisions.

If any provision of this Agreement is or becomes invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality
and enforceability of the remaining provisions contained herein shall not be affected thereby.

Section 16.11  Consent of Partners.

Each Partner hereby expressly consents and agrees that, whenever in this Agreement it is specified that an action may
be taken upon the affirmative vote or consent of less than all of the Partners, such action may be so taken upon the
concurrence of less than all of the Partners and each Partner shall be bound by the results of such action.

Section 16.12  Facsimile Signatures.

The use of facsimile signatures affixed in the name and on behalf of the transfer agent and registrar of the Partnership
on certificates representing Common Units is expressly permitted by this Agreement.

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.

GENERAL PARTNER

SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS (DE) GP, LP

By: SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS GP, LLC,
its general partner

By: 
Name: 

Title: 

ORGANIZATIONAL LIMITED PARTNER

SPECTRA ENERGY TRANSMISSION, LLC

By: 
Name: 

Title: 

LIMITED PARTNERS:

All Limited Partners now and hereafter admitted as Limited Partners of the Partnership, pursuant to powers of
attorney now and hereafter executed in favor of, and granted and delivered to the General Partner.

SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS (DE) GP, LP

By: Spectra Energy Partners GP, LLC,
its general partner

By: 
Name: 

Title: 

[Signature Page � First Amended & Restated Agreement
of Limited Partnership of Spectra Energy Partners, LP]
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EXHIBIT A
to the First Amended and Restated
Agreement of Limited Partnership of

Spectra Energy Partners, LP

Certificate Evidencing Common Units
Representing Limited Partner Interests in

Spectra Energy Partners, LP
No.                    Common Units

In accordance with Section 4.1 of the First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Spectra
Energy Partners, LP, as amended, supplemented or restated from time to time (the �Partnership Agreement�), Spectra
Energy Partners, LP, a Delaware limited partnership (the �Partnership�), hereby certifies that           (the �Holder�) is the
registered owner of Common Units representing limited partner interests in the Partnership (the �Common Units�)
transferable on the books of the Partnership, in person or by duly authorized attorney, upon surrender of this
Certificate properly endorsed and accompanied by a properly executed application for transfer of the Common Units
represented by this Certificate. The rights, preferences and limitations of the Common Units are set forth in, and this
Certificate and the Common Units represented hereby are issued and shall in all respects be subject to the terms and
provisions of, the Partnership Agreement. Copies of the Partnership Agreement are on file at, and will be furnished
without charge on delivery of written request to the Partnership at, the principal office of the Partnership located at
5400 Westheimer Court, Houston, Texas, 77056. Capitalized terms used herein but not defined shall have the
meanings given them in the Partnership Agreement.

The Holder, by accepting this Certificate, is deemed to have (i) requested admission as, and agreed to become, a
Limited Partner and to have agreed to comply with and be bound by and to have executed the Partnership Agreement,
(ii) represented and warranted that the Holder has all right, power and authority and, if an individual, the capacity
necessary to enter into the Partnership Agreement, (iii) granted the powers of attorney provided for in the Partnership
Agreement and (iv) made the waivers and given the consents and approvals contained in the Partnership Agreement.

THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY ACKNOWLEDGES FOR THE BENEFIT OF SPECTRA ENERGY
PARTNERS, LP THAT THIS SECURITY MAY NOT BE SOLD, OFFERED, RESOLD, PLEDGED OR
OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED IF SUCH TRANSFER WOULD (A) VIOLATE THE THEN APPLICABLE
FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION, ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR ANY OTHER GOVERNMENTAL
AUTHORITY WITH JURISDICTION OVER SUCH TRANSFER, (B) TERMINATE THE EXISTENCE OR
QUALIFICATION OF SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS, LP UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, OR (C) CAUSE SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS, LP TO BE TREATED AS AN ASSOCIATION
TAXABLE AS A CORPORATION OR OTHERWISE TO BE TAXED AS AN ENTITY FOR FEDERAL INCOME
TAX PURPOSES (TO THE EXTENT NOT ALREADY SO TREATED OR TAXED). SPECTRA ENERGY
PARTNERS (DE) GP, LP, THE GENERAL PARTNER OF SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS, LP, MAY IMPOSE
ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS ON THE TRANSFER OF THIS SECURITY IF IT RECEIVES AN OPINION OF
COUNSEL THAT SUCH RESTRICTIONS ARE NECESSARY TO AVOID A SIGNIFICANT RISK OF SPECTRA
ENERGY PARTNERS, LP BECOMING TAXABLE AS A CORPORATION OR OTHERWISE BECOMING
TAXABLE AS AN ENTITY FOR FEDERAL INCOME TAX PURPOSES. THE RESTRICTIONS SET FORTH
ABOVE SHALL NOT PRECLUDE THE SETTLEMENT OF ANY TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING THIS
SECURITY ENTERED INTO THROUGH THE FACILITIES OF ANY NATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ON WHICH THIS SECURITY IS LISTED OR ADMITTED TO TRADING.
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This Certificate shall not be valid for any purpose unless it has been countersigned and registered by the Transfer
Agent and Registrar.

Dated:     Spectra Energy Partners, LP

Countersigned and Registered by: By: Spectra Energy Partners (DE) GP, LP,
its General Partner

By: Spectra Energy Partners GP, LLC,
its General Partner

 _ _ By: _ _
as Transfer Agent and Registrar Name: _ _

By: _ _ By: _ _
Authorized Signature Secretary

[Reverse of Certificate]

ABBREVIATIONS

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this Certificate, shall be construed as follows
according to applicable laws or regulations:

TEN COM - as tenants in common UNIF GIFT/TRANSFERS MIN ACT
TEN ENT - as tenants by the entireties           Custodian            

(Cust)               (Minor)
JT TEN - as joint tenants with right of survivorship and

not as tenants in common
under Uniform Gifts/Transfers to CD Minors
Act (State)

Additional abbreviations, though not in the above list, may also be used.

FOR VALUE RECEIVED,           hereby assigns, conveys, sells and transfers unto          

(Please print or typewrite nameand address of Assignee) (Please insert Social Security or otheridentifying number
of Assignee)

           Common Units representing limited partner interests evidenced by this Certificate, subject to the Partnership
Agreement, and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint           as its attorney-in-fact with full power of
substitution to transfer the same on the books of Spectra Energy Partners, LP

Date: NOTE: The signature to any endorsement hereon must
correspond with the name as written upon the face
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of this Certificate in every particular, without
alteration, enlargement or change.

THE SIGNATURE(S) MUST BE GUARANTEED
BY AN ELIGIBLE GUARANTOR
INSTITUTION (BANKS, STOCKBROKERS,
SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATIONS AND
CREDIT UNIONS WITH MEMBERSHIP IN AN
APPROVED SIGNATURE GUARANTEE
MEDALLION PROGRAM), PURSUANT TO
S.E.C. RULE 17Ad-15

(Signature)

(Signature)

No transfer of the Common Units evidenced hereby will be registered on the books of the Partnership, unless the
Certificate evidencing the Common Units to be transferred is surrendered for registration or transfer and an
Application for Transfer of Common Units has been properly completed and executed by a transferee either (a) on the
form set forth below or (b) on a separate application that the Partnership will furnish on request without charge. A
transferor of the Common Units shall have no duty to the transferee with respect to execution of the Application for
Transfer of Common Units in order for such transferee to obtain registration of the transfer of the Common Units.
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APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF COMMON UNITS

Transferees of Common Units must execute and deliver this application to Spectra Energy Partners, LP,
c/o Spectra Energy Partners (DE) GP, LP, 5400 Westheimer Court, Houston, Texas, 77056; Attn: CFO, to be
admitted as limited partners to Spectra Energy Partners, LP.

The undersigned (�Assignee�) hereby applies for transfer to the name of the Assignee of the Common Units evidenced
hereby and hereby certifies to Spectra Energy Partners, LP (the �Partnership�) that the Assignee (including to the best
of Assignee�s knowledge, any person for whom the Assignee will hold the Common Units) is an Eligible Holder.1

The Assignee (a) requests admission as a Substituted Limited Partner and agrees to comply with and be bound by, and
hereby executes, the First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Spectra Energy Partners, LP,
as amended, supplemented or restated to the date hereof (the �Partnership Agreement�), (b) represents and warrants that
the Assignee has all right, power and authority and, if an individual, the capacity necessary to enter into the
Partnership Agreement, (c) appoints the General Partner of the Partnership and, if a Liquidator shall be appointed, the
Liquidator of the Partnership as the Assignee�s attorney-in-fact to execute, swear to, acknowledge and file any
document, including the Partnership Agreement and any amendment thereto and the Certificate of Limited Partnership
of the Partnership and any amendment thereto, necessary or appropriate for the Assignee�s admission as a Substituted
Limited Partner and as a party to the Partnership Agreement, (d) gives the powers of attorney provided for in the
Partnership Agreement, and (e) makes the waivers and gives the consents and approvals contained in the Partnership
Agreement. Capitalized terms not defined herein have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Partnership
Agreement. This application constitutes a Taxation Certification, as defined in the Partnership Agreement.

Date:

Social Security or other identifying number

Signature of Assignee

Purchase Price including commissions, if any

Name and Address of Assignee

Type of Entity (check one):

o Individual o  Partnership o Corporation

o Trust o  Other (specify)

1 The Term �Eligible Holder� means (a) an individual or entity subject to United States federal income taxation on the
income generated by the Partnership; or (b) an entity not subject to United States federal income taxation on the
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income generated by the Partnership, so long as all of the entity�s owners are subject to United States federal income
taxation on the income generated by the Partnership. Individuals or entities are subject to taxation, in the context of
defining an Eligible Holder, to the extent they are taxable on the items of income and gain allocated by the Partnership
or would be taxable on the items of income and gain allocated by the Partnership if they had no offsetting deductions
or tax credits unrelated to the ownership of the Common Units. Schedule I below contains a list of various types of
investors that are categorized and identified as either �Eligible Holders� or �Non-Eligible Holders.�
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If not an Individual (check one):

o the entity is subject to United States federal income taxation on the income generated by the Partnership;

o the entity is not subject to United States federal income taxation, but it is a pass-through entity and all of its
beneficial owners are subject to United States federal income tax on the income generated by the Partnership;

o the entity is not subject to United States federal income taxation and it is (a) not a pass-through entity or (b) a
pass-through entity, but not all of its beneficial owners are subject to United States federal income taxation on the
income generated by the Partnership. Important Note � by checking this box, the Assignee is contradicting its
certification that it is an Eligible Holder.

Nationality (check one):

o  U.S. Citizen, Resident or Domestic Entity                         o  Non-resident Alien

o  Foreign Corporation

If the U.S. Citizen, Resident or Domestic Entity box is checked, the following certification must be completed.

Under Section 1445(e) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the �Code�), the Partnership must withhold
tax with respect to certain transfers of property if a holder of an interest in the Partnership is a foreign person. To
inform the Partnership that no withholding is required with respect to the undersigned interestholder�s interest in it, the
undersigned hereby certifies the following (or, if applicable, certifies the following on behalf of the interestholder).

Complete Either A or B:

A. Individual Interestholder

1. I am not a non-resident alien for purposes of U.S. income taxation.

2. My U.S. taxpayer identification number (Social Security Number) is          .

3. My home address is          .

B. Partnership, Corporation or Other Interestholder

1.            is not a foreign corporation, foreign partnership, foreign trust (Name of Interestholder) or foreign estate (as
those terms are defined in the Code and Treasury Regulations).

2. The interestholder�s U.S. employer identification number is          .

3. The interestholder�s office address and place of incorporation (if applicable) is          .

The interestholder agrees to notify the Partnership within sixty (60) days of the date the interestholder becomes a
foreign person.
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The interestholder understands that this certificate may be disclosed to the Internal Revenue Service and the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission by the Partnership and that any false statement contained herein could be punishable
by fine, imprisonment or both.
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Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this certification and, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, it is true, correct and complete and, if applicable, I further declare that I have authority to sign this document on
behalf of:

Name of Interestholder

Signature and Date

Title (if applicable)

Note: If the Assignee is a broker, dealer, bank, trust company, clearing corporation, other nominee holder or an agent
of any of the foregoing, and is holding for the account of any other person, this application should be completed by an
officer thereof or, in the case of a broker or dealer, by a registered representative who is a member of a registered
national securities exchange or a member of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., or, in the case of any
other nominee holder, a person performing a similar function. If the Assignee is a broker, dealer, bank, trust company,
clearing corporation, other nominee owner or an agent of any of the foregoing, the above certification as to any person
for whom the Assignee will hold the Common Units shall be made to the best of the Assignee�s knowledge.
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SCHEDULE I

Eligible Holders

The following are considered Eligible Holders:

� Individuals (U.S. or non-U.S.)

� C corporations (U.S. or non-U.S.)

� Tax exempt organizations subject to tax on unrelated business taxable income or �UBTI,� including IRAs, 401(k)
plans and Keough accounts

� S corporations with shareholders that are individuals, trusts or tax exempt organizations subject to tax on UBTI

Potentially Eligible Holders

The following are considered Eligible Holders, unless the information in parenthesis applies:

� S corporations (unless they have ESOP shareholders*()

� Partnerships (unless their partners include mutual funds, real estate investment trusts or �REITs,� governmental
entities and agencies, S corporations with ESOP shareholders* or other partnerships with such partners)

� Trusts (unless beneficiaries are not subject to tax)

Non-Eligible Holders

The following are not considered Eligible Holders:

� Mutual Funds

� REITs

� Governmental entities and agencies

� S corporations with ESOP shareholders*

(     * �S corporations with ESOP shareholders� are S corporations with shareholders that include employee stock
ownership plans.
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Appendix B

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF COMMON UNITS

Transferees of Common Units must execute and deliver this application to SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS, LP,
c/o Spectra Energy Partners GP, LP, 5400 Westheimer Ct., Houston, TX 77056; Attn: CFO, to be admitted as
limited partners to SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS, LP.

The undersigned (�Assignee�) hereby applies for transfer to the name of the Assignee of the Common Units evidenced
hereby and hereby certifies to SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS, LP (the �Partnership�) that the Assignee (including to
the best of Assignee�s knowledge, any person for whom the Assignee will hold the Common Units) is an Eligible
Holder.*(

The Assignee (a) requests admission as a Substituted Limited Partner and agrees to comply with and be bound by, and
hereby executes, the Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of the Partnership, as amended,
supplemented or restated to the date hereof (the �Partnership Agreement�), (b) represents and warrants that the Assignee
has all right, power and authority and, if an individual, the capacity necessary to enter into the Partnership Agreement,
(c) appoints the General Partner of the Partnership and, if a Liquidator shall be appointed, the Liquidator of the
Partnership as the Assignee�s attorney-in-fact to execute, swear to, acknowledge and file any document, including,
without limitation, the Partnership Agreement and any amendment thereto and the Certificate of Limited Partnership
of the Partnership and any amendment thereto, necessary or appropriate for the Assignee�s admission as a Substituted
Limited Partner and as a party to the Partnership Agreement, (d) gives the powers of attorney provided for in the
Partnership Agreement, and (e) makes the waivers and gives the consents and approvals contained in the Partnership
Agreement. Capitalized terms not defined herein have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Partnership
Agreement. This application constitutes a Taxation Certification, as defined in the Partnership Agreement.

Date:

Social Security or other identifying number of Assignee

Signature of Assignee

Purchase Price including commissions, if any Name and Address of Assignee

Type of Entity (check one):

o Individual o  Partnership o Corporation

o Trust o  Other (specify)

(     * The Term �Eligible Holder� means (a) an individual or entity subject to United States federal income taxation on
the income generated by the Partnership; or (b) an entity not subject to United States federal income taxation on the
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income generated by the Partnership, so long as all of the entity�s owners are subject to United States federal income
taxation on the income generated by the Partnership. Individuals or entities are subject to taxation, in the context of
defining an Eligible Holder, to the extent they are taxable on the items of income and gain allocated by the Partnership
or would be taxable on the items of income and gain allocated by the Partnership if they had no offsetting deductions
or tax credits unrelated to the ownership of the Common Units. Schedule I hereto contains a list of various types of
investors that are categorized and identified as either �Eligible Holders� or �Non-Eligible Holders.�
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If not an Individual (check one):

o the entity is subject to United States federal income taxation on the income generated by the Partnership;

o the entity is not subject to United States federal income taxation, but it is a pass-through entity and all of its
beneficial owners are subject to United States federal income taxation on the income generated by the Partnership;

o the entity is not subject to United States federal income taxation and it is (a) not a pass-through entity or (b) a
pass-through entity, but not all of its beneficial owners are subject to United States federal income taxation on the
income generated by the Partnership. Important Note � by checking this box, the Assignee is contradicting its
certification that it is an Eligible Holder.

Nationality (check one):

o  U.S. Citizen, Resident or Domestic Entity                         o  Non-resident Alien

o  Foreign Corporation

If the U.S. Citizen, Resident or Domestic Entity box is checked, the following certification must be completed.

Under Section 1445(e) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the �Code�), the Partnership must withhold
tax with respect to certain transfers of property if a holder of an interest in the Partnership is a foreign person. To
inform the Partnership that no withholding is required with respect to the undersigned interestholder�s interest in it, the
undersigned hereby certifies the following (or, if applicable, certifies the following on behalf of the interestholder).

Complete Either A or B:

A. Individual Interestholder

1. I am not a non-resident alien for purposes of U.S. income taxation.

2. My U.S. taxpayer identification number (Social Security Number) is          .

3. My home address is          .

B. Partnership, Corporation or Other Interestholder

1. The interestholder is not a foreign corporation, foreign partnership, foreign trust or foreign estate (as those terms are
defined in the Code and Treasury Regulations).

2. The interestholder�s U.S. employer identification number is          .

3. The interestholder�s office address and place of incorporation (if applicable) is          .

The interestholder agrees to notify the Partnership within sixty (60) days of the date the interestholder becomes a
foreign person.
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The interestholder understands that this certificate may be disclosed to the Internal Revenue Service and the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission by the Partnership and that any false statement contained herein could be punishable
by fine, imprisonment or both.
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Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this certification and, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, it is true, correct and complete and, if applicable, I further declare that I have authority to sign this document on
behalf of:

Name of Interestholder

Signature and Date

Title (if applicable)

Note: If the Assignee is a broker, dealer, bank, trust company, clearing corporation, other nominee holder or an agent
of any of the foregoing, and is holding for the account of any other person, this application should be completed by an
officer thereof or, in the case of a broker or dealer, by a registered representative who is a member of a registered
national securities exchange or a member of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., or, in the case of any
other nominee holder, a person performing a similar function. If the Assignee is a broker, dealer, bank, trust company,
clearing corporation, other nominee owner or an agent of any of the foregoing, the above certification as to any person
for whom the Assignee will hold the Common Units shall be made to the best of the Assignee�s knowledge.
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SCHEDULE I

Eligible Holders

The following are considered Eligible Holders:

� Individuals (U.S. or non-U.S.)

� C corporations (U.S. or non-U.S.)

� Tax exempt organizations subject to tax on unrelated business taxable income or �UBTI,� including IRAs, 401(k)
plans and Keough accounts

� S corporations with shareholders that are individuals, trusts or tax exempt organizations subject to tax on UBTI

Potentially Eligible Holders

� S corporations (unless they have ESOP shareholders*()

� Partnerships (unless its partners include mutual funds, real estate investment trusts or �REITs,� governmental
entities and agencies, S corporations with ESOP shareholders* or other partnerships with such partners)

� Trusts (unless beneficiaries are not subject to tax)

Non-Eligible Holders

The following are not considered Eligible Holders:

� Mutual Funds

� REITs

� Governmental entities and agencies

� S corporations with ESOP shareholders*

(     * �S corporations with ESOP shareholders� are S corporations with shareholders that include employee stock
ownership plans.
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Appendix C

CERTIFICATION FORM FOR NON-INDIVIDUAL INVESTORS

As described in this Prospectus, only Eligible Holders (as defined on Schedule I hereto) may purchase common units
in the Partnership�s proposed public offering (the �Offering�). In order to comply with this requirement, all potential
investors that are not natural persons, including institutions, partnerships and trusts (�Non-individual Investors�), must
complete this Certification Form.

� If you have an institutional sales account with Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Lehman Brothers Inc., you
should fax signed forms to (646) 328-2872 by 12:00 pm Eastern time on June 26, 2007 (the �Return Date�).

� If you have any other type of brokerage account with any of the broker-dealers on page 2, you should fax
signed forms to your retail broker or financial advisor upon initial indication of interest.

Non-individual Investors who do not complete and return this form by the
Return Date will not be allocated units in this offering.

1. Acknowledgement and Consent to Forward this Certification Form.  The undersigned Non-individual Investor
acknowledges and understands that an underwriter who receives this Certification Form may forward it to the
Partnership and/or the transfer agent for the Common Units. Accordingly, the undersigned hereby grants its consent
for Citigroup Global Markets Inc. or Lehman Brothers Inc. or any underwriter or affiliate thereof listed on page 2 to
forward this Certification Form to the Partnership and/or the transfer agent for the Common Units.

2. Acknowledgement of Obligation to Complete a Transfer Application.  The undersigned Non-individual Investor
further acknowledges that, if it purchases Common Units in the Offering, it must complete a Transfer Application in
the form included as Appendix B to the Prospectus and deliver it to the address as instructed on the Transfer
Application. The undersigned Non-individual Investor further acknowledges that no underwriter or affiliate of an
underwriter has any responsibility or obligation to complete or deliver a Transfer Application on behalf of the
undersigned.

3. Certification as to Tax Status.  The undersigned Non-individual Investor hereby certifies that it is either (check
one):

o an entity that is subject to United States federal income taxation on the income generated by the Partnership; or

o an entity that is not subject to United States federal income taxation, but is a pass-through entity and all of its
beneficial owners are subject to United States federal income taxation on the income generated by the Partnership.

Signing this form shall not obligate the undersigned Non-individual Investor to provide or share any
tax-related information with the Partnership, the transfer agent or any underwriter in connection with the
purchase and sale of common units in the Offering.
Executed this day of June   , 2007.

(Name of Entity)
By: 
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Title: 

NON-INDIVIDUAL INVESTOR RETAIL BROKER DEALERS

Smith Barney, a division of Citigroup Global Markets Inc.

Lehman Brothers Private Wealth Management
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SCHEDULE I

An �Eligible Holder� is (a) an individual or entity subject to United States federal income taxation on the income
generated by the Partnership or (b) an entity not subject to United States federal income taxation on the income
generated by the Partnership, so long as all of the entity�s owners are subject to United States federal income taxation
on the income generated by the Partnership or would be taxable on the items of income and gain allocated by the
Partnership if they had no offsetting deductions or tax credits unrelated to the ownership of the Common Units. Set
forth below is a list of various types of investors that are categorized and identified as Eligible Holders, Potentially
Eligible Holders or Non-Eligible Holders.

Eligible Holders

The following are considered Eligible Holders:

� Individuals (U.S. or non-U.S.)

� C corporations (U.S. or non-U.S.)

� Tax exempt organizations subject to tax on unrelated business taxable income or �UBTI,� including IRAs, 401(k)
plans and Keough accounts

� S corporations with shareholders that are individuals, trusts or tax exempt organizations subject to tax on UBTI

Potentially Eligible Holders

The following are considered Eligible Holders, unless the bracketed information applies:

� Partnerships (unless its partners include mutual funds, real estate investment trusts or �REITs,� governmental
entities and agencies, S corporations with ESOP shareholders1( or other partnerships with such partners)

� Trusts (unless beneficiaries are not subject to tax)

Non-Eligible Holders

The following are not considered Eligible Holders:

� Mutual Funds

� REITs

� Governmental entities and agencies

� S corporations with ESOP shareholders1

(     1 �S corporations with ESOP shareholders� are S corporations with shareholders that include employee stock
ownership plans.
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Appendix D

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Adjusted Operating Surplus:  For any period, operating surplus generated during that period is adjusted to:

(a) increase operating surplus by any net decreases made in subsequent periods in cash reserves for operating
expenditures initially established with respect to such period;

(b) decrease operating surplus by any net decrease in cash reserves for operating expenditures with respect to that
period not relating to an operating expenditure made with respect to that period; and

(c) increase operating surplus by any net increase in cash reserves for operating expenditures with respect to that
period required by any debt instrument for the repayment of principal, interest or premium.

Adjusted operating surplus does not include the portion of operating surplus described in subpart (a)(2) of the
definition of �operating surplus� in this Appendix D.

Available Cash:  For any quarter ending prior to liquidation:

(a) the sum of:

(1) all cash and cash equivalents of Spectra Energy Partners, LP and its subsidiaries on hand at the end of that
quarter; and

(2) if our general partner so determines all or a portion of any additional cash or cash equivalents of Spectra Energy
Partners, LP and its subsidiaries on hand on the date of determination of available cash for that quarter;

(b) less the amount of cash reserves established by our general partner to:

(1) provide for the proper conduct of the business of Spectra Energy Partners, LP and its subsidiaries (including
reserves for future capital expenditures and for future credit needs of Spectra Energy Partners, LP and its subsidiaries)
after that quarter;

(2) comply with applicable law or any debt instrument or other agreement or obligation to which Spectra Energy
Partners, LP or any of its subsidiaries is a part or its assets are subject; and

(3) provide funds for minimum quarterly distributions and cumulative common unit arrearages for any one or more of
the next four quarters;

provided, however, that our general partner may not establish cash reserves pursuant to clause (b)(3) immediately
above unless our general partner has determined that the establishment of reserves will not prevent us from
distributing the minimum quarterly distribution on all common units and any cumulative common unit arrearages
thereon for that quarter; and provided, further, that disbursements made by us or any of our subsidiaries or cash
reserves established, increased or reduced after the end of that quarter but on or before the date of determination of
available cash for that quarter shall be deemed to have been made, established, increased or reduced, for purposes of
determining available cash, within that quarter if our general partner so determines.
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Bcf:  One billion cubic feet of natural gas.

Bcf/d:  One billion cubic feet per day.

Btu:  British Thermal Units.

Capital Account:  The capital account maintained for a partner under the partnership agreement. The capital account
of a partner for a common unit, a Class B unit, a subordinated unit, an incentive distribution right or any other
partnership interest will be the amount which that capital account would be if that common unit, a Class B unit,
subordinated unit, incentive distribution right or other partnership interest were the only interest in Spectra Energy
Partners, LP held by a partner.
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Capital Surplus:  All available cash distributed by us on any date from any source will be treated as distributed from
operating surplus until the sum of all available cash distributed since the closing of the initial public offering equals
the operating surplus from the closing of the initial public offering through the end of the quarter immediately
preceding that distribution. Any excess available cash distributed by us on that date will be deemed to be capital
surplus.

Closing Price:  The last sale price on a day, regular way, or in case no sale takes place on that day, the average of the
closing bid and asked prices on that day, regular way, in either case, as reported in the principal consolidated
transaction reporting system for securities listed or admitted to trading on the principal national securities exchange on
which the units of that class are listed or admitted to trading. If the units of that class are not listed or admitted to
trading on any national securities exchange, the last quoted price on that day. If no quoted price exists, the average of
the high bid and low asked prices on that day in the over-the-counter market, as reported by the New York Stock
Exchange or any other system then in use. If on any day the units of that class are not quoted by any organization of
that type, the average of the closing bid and asked prices on that day as furnished by a professional market maker
making a market in the units of the class selected by the our board of directors. If on that day no market maker is
making a market in the units of that class, the fair value of the units on that day as determined reasonably and in good
faith by our board of directors.

Cumulative Common Unit Arrearage:  The amount by which the minimum quarterly distribution for a quarter during
the subordination period exceeds the distribution of available cash from operating surplus actually made for that
quarter on a common unit, cumulative for that quarter and all prior quarters during the subordination period.

Current Market Price:  For any class of units listed or admitted to trading on any national securities exchange as of
any date, the average of the daily closing prices for the 20 consecutive trading days immediately prior to that date.

Eligible Holders:  Individuals or entities either (a) subject to United States federal income taxation on the income
generated by us or (b) in the case of entities that are pass-through entities for United States federal income taxation, all
of whose beneficial owners are subject to United States federal income taxation on the income generated by us.

GAAP:  Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.

Greenfield Construction:  The construction of an asset or system in an area where no previous facilities existed.

Interim Capital Transactions:  The following transactions if they occur prior to liquidation:

(a) borrowings, refinancings or refundings of indebtedness and sales of debt securities (other than for items purchased
on open account in the ordinary course of business) by Spectra Energy Partners, LP or any of its subsidiaries;

(b) sales of equity interests and debt securities of Spectra Energy Partners, LP or any of its subsidiaries;

(c) sales or other voluntary or involuntary dispositions of any assets of Spectra Energy Partners, LP or any of its
subsidiaries (other than sales or other dispositions of inventory, accounts receivable and other assets in the ordinary
course of business, and sales or other dispositions of assets as a part of normal retirements or replacements);

(d) the termination of interest rate swap agreements or commodity hedge contracts prior to the termination date
specified therein;

(e) capital contributions; and
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(f) corporate reorganizations or restructurings.

Local Distribution Company or LDC:  LDCs are companies involved in the delivery of natural gas to consumers
within a specific geographic area.
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Mcf:  One thousand cubic feet of natural gas. We have converted each of the throughput numbers from a heating
value number to a volumetric number based upon the following conversion factor: 1 MMBtu = 1 Mcf.

MMBtu:  One million British thermal units which is roughly equivalent to one Mcf.

MMcf:  One million cubic feet of natural gas.

MMBtu/d:  One million British Thermal Units per day.

MMcf/d:  One million cubic feet per day.

Operating Expenditures:  All of our expenditures and expenditures of our subsidiaries, including, but not limited to,
taxes, payments to our general partner reimbursements of expenses incurred by our general partner on our behalf,
non-pro rata purchases of units, interest payments, payments made in the ordinary course of business under interest
rate swap agreements and commodity hedge contracts and maintenance capital expenditures, subject to the following:

(a) Payments (including prepayments) of principal of and premium on indebtedness will not constitute operating
expenditures.

(b) Operating expenditures will not include:

(1) expansion capital expenditures;

(2) payment of transaction expenses (including taxes) relating to interim capital transactions;

(3) distributions to unitholders; and

(4) non-pro rata purchases of units of any class made with the proceeds of an interim capital transaction.

Where capital expenditures consist of both maintenance capital expenditures and expansion capital expenditures, the
general partner, with the concurrence of the conflicts committee, shall determine the allocation between the amounts
paid for each.

Operating Surplus:  For any period prior to liquidation, on a cumulative basis and without duplication:

(a) the sum of:

(1) all cash receipts of Spectra Energy Partners, LP and our subsidiaries for the period beginning on the closing date of
our initial public offering and ending with the last day of the period, other than cash receipts from interim capital
transactions; and

(2) an amount equal to the sum of (A) two times the amount needed for any one quarter for us to pay the minimum
quarterly distribution on all units (including the general partner units) and (B) two times the amount in excess of the
minimum quarterly distribution for any quarter to pay a distribution on all Common Units at the same per unit amount
as was distributed on the Common Units in excess of the minimum quarterly distribution in the immediately preceding
quarter, provided the amount in (B) will be deemed to be Operating Surplus only to the extent that the distribution
paid in respect of such amounts is paid on Common Units, less

(b) the sum of:
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(1) operating expenditures for the period beginning on the closing date of our initial public offering and ending with
the last day of that period; and

(2) the amount of cash reserves (or our proportionate share of cash reserves in the case of subsidiaries that are not
wholly owned) established by our general partner to provide funds for future operating expenditures; provided
however, that disbursements made (including contributions to Spectra Energy Partners LP or our subsidiaries or
disbursements on behalf of Spectra Energy Partners, LP or our subsidiaries) or cash reserves established, increased or
reduced after the end of that period but on or before the date of determination of available cash for that period shall be
deemed to have been made, established, increased or reduced for purposes of determining operating surplus, within
that period if our general partner so determines.
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Peak Day:  The highest level of throughput transported through a pipeline system on any given day.

Subordination Period:  The subordination period will extend from the closing of the initial public offering until the
first to occur of the following dates:

(a) The first day of any quarter beginning after June 30, 2010 in respect of which each of the following tests are met:

(1) distribution of available cash from operating surplus on each of the outstanding common units and subordinated
units equaled or exceeded the sum of the minimum quarterly distributions on all of the outstanding common units and
subordinated units for each of the three consecutive, non-overlapping four-quarter periods immediately preceding that
date;

(2) the adjusted operating surplus generated during each of the three consecutive, non-overlapping four-quarter
periods immediately preceding that date equaled or exceeded the sum of the minimum quarterly distributions on all of
the outstanding common units, subordinated units and general partner units during those periods on a fully diluted
basis; and

(3) there are no outstanding cumulative common units arrearages.

(b) The first date after we have earned and paid at least $0.45 per quarter (150% of the minimum quarterly distribution
of $0.30 per quarter, which is $1.80 on an annualized basis) on each outstanding limited partner unit and general
partner unit for any four consecutive quarters ending on or after June 30, 2008; and

(c) The date on which the general partner is removed as our general partner upon the requisite vote by the limited
partners under circumstances where cause does not exist and units held by our general partner and its affiliates are not
voted in favor of the removal.

When the subordination period ends, all remaining subordinated units will convert into common units on a
one-for-one basis, and the common units will no longer be entitled to arrearages.

Throughput:  The volume of natural gas transported or passing through a pipeline, plant, terminal or other facility in
an economically meaningful period of time.

Working Gas:  Natural gas storage capacity that can be used for system operations or is available to be sold to the
market as firm or interruptible storage capacity or as the storage component of no notice service.
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Spectra Energy Partners, LP

10,000,000 Common Units
Representing Limited Partner Interests

PROSPECTUS

JUNE 26, 2007

Citi

Lehman Brothers

Merrill Lynch & Co.

UBS Investment Bank

Wachovia Securities

A.G. Edwards

Raymond James
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